
  
TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2012 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

5:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

December 20, 2011, Regular Meeting 
December 20, 2011, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 17, 2012 AGENDA   9 
5:40 4  SHERIFF’S OFFICE VEHICLE BID AWARD REQUEST  CAPTAIN KELLY REDMON 11 
5:45 5  USDA’S PROPOSED LEASE REQUEST FOR THE LOCATION OF 

THE WATAUGA/AVERY COUNTY SERVICE CENTER 
MR. CHARLES E. ZINK 13 

5:50 6  PRESENTATION OF W.A.M.Y. COMMUNITY ACTION, INC.’S, 
2012-2013 COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT  (CSBG) 
APPLICATION 

MS. JANE LENTZ 
MS. DEBBIE BOWMAN 

91 

5:55 7  GREEN VALLEY COMMUNITY PARK REQUEST MS. JANICE CARROLL 129 
6:00 8  PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION’S 
SECONDARY ROAD IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM FOR FY 2012 

MR. MICHAEL POE 131 

6:05 9  TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MATTERS 
A. Bid Award Requests for Rocky Knob Park 
 1.  Bike Skills Area 
 2.  Playground  
B. Recreation Trails Program Grant Application Request 

MR. ERIC WOOLRIDGE  
 

135 
195 
215 

6:10 10  LANDFILL GAS TO ENERGY PROJECT MATTERS 
A.  PROPOSED INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENT WITH 

BREMCO 
B.  Proposed Facilities Charge Agreement 
C.  Proposed Baseline Gas Monitoring 

 
 
MR. BRIAN CRUTCHFIELD 
MR. BRIAN CRUTCHFIELD 
MR. BRIAN RAICHLE 

 
 

251 
286 
293 

6:15 11  PROPOSED GATED COMMUNITY ORDINANCE MR. JOE FURMAN 295 
6:20 12  TAX MATTERS 

A. Monthly Collections Report 
B. Refunds and Releases 

MR. KELVIN BYRD  
301 
303 

6:25 13  FINANCE MATTERS 
A.  BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
B.  RECORDS RETENTION REQUEST 

MS. MARGARET PIERCE  
339 
341 

6:30 14  UPDATE ON CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH VICE-CHAIRMAN GABLE 351 



Page 2 
Tuesday, January 17, 2012 

Tentative Agenda & Meeting Notice 
Board of County Commissioners 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

6:35 15  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Request to Donate Bleachers from Old High School 
B. Boards & Commissions 
C. Announcements  

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
355 
357 
364 

6:40 16  PUBLIC COMMENT  369 
7:40 17  BREAK  369 
7:45 18  CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 369 

8:00 19  ADJOURN   
  



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
December 20, 2011, Regular Meeting 
December 20, 2011, Closed Session Meeting 
 

 
 

 
 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 20, 2011 

 
 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
December 20, 2011, at 5:00 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
    Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
    David Blust, Commissioner 
    Jim Deal, Commissioner 
    Stacy C. Eggers, IV, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 5:04 P.M. 
 
[Clerk’s Note:  Commissioner Tim Futrelle was not in attendance due to a prior commitment.] 
 
Commissioner Deal opened the meeting with a prayer and Vice-Chairman Gable led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the December 6, 2011, regular and 
closed session minutes. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the December 6, 
2011, regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 
By consensus, the Board tabled approval of the December 6, 2011, closed session minutes until 
after closed session to allow for review of proposed amendments. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the December 20, 2011, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to add Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees under 
Boards and Commissions. 
 

DRAFT 

011712 BCC Meeting

2



Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the December 20, 
2011, agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

PRESENTATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2011 AUDIT 
Mr. Bryce Holder presented the County’s Fiscal Year 2010/2011 audit.  Mr. Holder stated that 
the County’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $110,806,926.  The unassigned fund balance was 
$11,880,356 representing 25.63% of the total General Fund expenditures while the state average 
was approximately 25%.   
 

This report was given for information only; therefore, no action was required. 

PROPOSED AMERICAN RED CROSS SHELTER AGREEMENT 
Mr. Tom Dunn, Mountain Area Emergency Services Manager with the American Red Cross, 
presented a proposed agreement requesting permission for the Western Watauga Community 
Center to be designated as an emergency disaster shelter when/if needed. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the agreement with 
the American Red Cross, contingent upon the County Attorney’s review. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS 

A.  Update Regarding Proposed Acceptance of NC Rural Center Grant 
Mr. Joe Furman stated that the County’s requests for amendments to the Building Reuse and 
Restoration Program grant award presented at the October 18, 2011, Board meeting had been 
denied by the NC Rural Center.  However, Rural Center staff assured Mr. Furman that there was 
no language within the agreement requiring the local governments to repay funds in the event of 
the recipient’s default. 
 
The grant application was originally submitted, per Board approval of an Economic 
Development Commission request, with the NC Rural Center Building Reuse and Restoration 
Program requesting an amount of $64,000 which required a commitment from Giant Street 
Ventures dba Aaron’s, the benefactor of the grant, to create eight new jobs within eighteen 
months and maintain the same number for another six months.  Funds were awarded in the 
amount of $44,843 and the job requirement was reduced to six positions.  The reason for the 
reduction was that the grant was to only fund the renovation portion of the project.  The local 
match was to be covered by Mr. Furman’s administrative time which would total approximately 
30 hours.  A promissory note was included as a part of the grant agreement. 

011712 BCC Meeting

3



 
County Attorney Eggers stated that, according to correspondence from the NC Rural Center, the 
County should not be responsible for repaying funds in the event of the recipient’s default; 
however, the County would be responsible for attempting to collect funds from the project owner 
if a default resulted due to the grant stipulations not being met. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to authorize staff to enter into 
the contract with the NC Rural Center as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

B. NCDOT Secondary Roads Program Public Hearing Request 
Mr. Furman stated that each year the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) 
presented their Secondary Road Improvement Program to the County at a public hearing.  The 
NCDOT requested that a public hearing be scheduled on January 17, 2012.   
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to schedule a public hearing to 
allow citizen comment on the North Carolina Department of Transportation’s Secondary Road 
Improvement Program on Tuesday, January 17, 2012, at 6:00 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, reviewed the following budget amendments: 
 
Account # Description Debit Credit 
103586-332006 Senior Health Insurance Information Pro. (SHIIP) Grant  $8,803 
105550-449901 SHIIP supplies $8,803  
 
The amendment recognized a grant award for Senior Health Insurance Information Program 
(SHIIP).  The award was accepted at the August 2, 2011, regular Board meeting. 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
103586-332000 Home & Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG)  $9,932 
105550-429200 POA Program Supplies $4,966  
105550-422000 POA Food and Provisions $4,966  
    
The amendment recognized the award of Home and Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) 
funds for an additional allocation received from the High Country Area Agency on Aging.  The 
County match of $1,103 was present in the Project on Aging’s budget.  The award was approved 
at the December 6, 2011, regular Board meeting. 
    

011712 BCC Meeting

4



Account # Description Debit Credit 
103300-343313 Homeland Security Training Grant  $1,857 
104330-439501 EM Training Grant $1,857  
    
The amendment recognized a grant award for a search and rescue and level 330-400 Incident 
Command Classes for first responders.  No County match was required.  The award was 
approved at the November 15, 2011, regular Board meeting. 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
103300-345000 E&D Transportation Grant  $40,359 
103300-345001 WorkFirst Transportation Assistance  $11,822 
103300-345002 Rural General Public  $60,222 
104500-469843 AppalCART – RGP  $60,222  
104500-469844 AppalCART – WorkFirst  $11,822  
104500-469845 Elderly & Disabled Transportation Assistance $1,500  
105550-431301 POA – E&D $21,859  
105890-469846 Watauga Opportunities – E&D  $17,000  
143300-345000 E&D Transportation Grant  $18,645 
145310-469845 E&D Transportation Grant $18,645  
 
The amendment recognized the award of the NC Public Transportation Division FY 2011-12 
Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) grant funds. 
 

Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the budget 
amendments as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A.  Boards & Commissions 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Farmland Preservation Advisory Board requested the 
reappointment of Mr. Johnny Moretz whose term expired November 2011. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to waive the second reading 
and reappoint Mr. Johnny Moretz to the Farmland Preservation Advisory Board. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees had 
requested the appointment of Mr. Joe Miller, Mr. Paul Miller, Jr., and Dr. Mark Murrey to serve 
three-year terms beginning January 2012 and ending December 2014.   
 

011712 BCC Meeting

5



Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to recuse Chairman Miller from 
this vote as his father, Mr. Paul Miller, Jr., was considered for appointment.  
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to waive the second reading and 
reappoint Mr. Joe Miller and Mr. Paul Miller, Jr., and appoint Dr. Mark Murrey to serve three-
year terms on the Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees beginning January 1, 2012, and 
ending December 31, 2014. 

 
VOTE: Aye-3(Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 
 Recused-1(Miller) 

B.  Announcements 
The County Manager announced that the first regular meeting of the Board scheduled in January 
had been cancelled due to the holiday schedule.  Therefore, the only regularly scheduled meeting 
of the Board of Commissioners in January would be on the 17th at 5:30 P.M. 
 
The County Manager announced that the National Association of Counties’ (NACo) 2012 
Annual Legislative Conference had been scheduled for March 3-7, 2012, in Washington DC. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 
 
Chairman Miller wished the citizens of Watauga County a Merry Christmas and Happy New 
Year on behalf of the Watauga County Board of Commissioners. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 5:26 P.M., Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to resume the open meeting at 
6:23 P.M. 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

011712 BCC Meeting

6



ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the December 6, 
2011, closed session minutes as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Futrelle) 

ADJOURN 
Chairman Miller adjourned the meeting at 6:24 P.M. 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

7



Blank Page 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

8



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 17, 2012, AGENDA 
 

 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

9



Blank Page 
 
 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE VEHICLE BID AWARD REQUEST 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Captain Redmon will present vehicle bids for three (3) new crew cab 4X4 pickup trucks.  A total of 
four bids were received with Bobby Jones Ford being the lowest responsive bidder at $91,584 plus 
$2,766 for taxes and tags for a total amount of $94,350.  Total budgeted for vehicles was $90,000.  
The County realized a savings in the purchase of radios and an administrative budget amendment 
will be processed to cover the $4,350 overage.   
 
Board action is requested to accept the low bid from Bobby Jones Ford in the amount of $91,584. 
 
 
 
 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

11



011712 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

USDA’S PROPOSED LEASE REQUEST FOR THE LOCATION OF THE WATAUGA/ 
AVERY COUNTY SERVICE CENTER 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Charles Zink, with the Farm Services Administration, will present a lease for office space at 
the West Annex.  The County, in conjunction with the USDA, has been working on this renewal 
for approximately three (3) plus years.  The request is to continue leasing the 1,718 square feet 
currently occupied by USDA at the existing rate of $10.00 per square foot, for a total amount of 
$17,180 per year.  Lease payments are electronically deposited monthly.  The term of the lease is 
10 years.   
 
The County Attorney has reviewed and approved the lease as presented.  Board approval is 
requested to accept the lease with the USDA for office space at the West Annex facility in the 
amount $10.00 per square foot for approximately 1,718 square feet for an annual amount of 
$17,180.      
 
 
 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

13



011712 BCC Meeting

14



011712 BCC Meeting

15



011712 BCC Meeting

16



011712 BCC Meeting

17



011712 BCC Meeting

18



011712 BCC Meeting

19



011712 BCC Meeting

20



011712 BCC Meeting

21



011712 BCC Meeting

22



011712 BCC Meeting

23



011712 BCC Meeting

24



011712 BCC Meeting

25



011712 BCC Meeting

26



011712 BCC Meeting

27



011712 BCC Meeting

28



011712 BCC Meeting

29



011712 BCC Meeting

30



011712 BCC Meeting

31



011712 BCC Meeting

32



011712 BCC Meeting

33



011712 BCC Meeting

34



011712 BCC Meeting

35



011712 BCC Meeting

36



011712 BCC Meeting

37



011712 BCC Meeting

38



011712 BCC Meeting

39



011712 BCC Meeting

40



011712 BCC Meeting

41



011712 BCC Meeting

42



011712 BCC Meeting

43



011712 BCC Meeting

44



011712 BCC Meeting

45



011712 BCC Meeting

46



011712 BCC Meeting

47



011712 BCC Meeting

48



011712 BCC Meeting

49



011712 BCC Meeting

50



011712 BCC Meeting

51



011712 BCC Meeting

52



011712 BCC Meeting

53



011712 BCC Meeting

54



011712 BCC Meeting

55



011712 BCC Meeting

56



011712 BCC Meeting

57



011712 BCC Meeting

58



011712 BCC Meeting

59



011712 BCC Meeting

60



011712 BCC Meeting

61



011712 BCC Meeting

62



011712 BCC Meeting

63



011712 BCC Meeting

64



011712 BCC Meeting

65



011712 BCC Meeting

66



011712 BCC Meeting

67



011712 BCC Meeting

68



011712 BCC Meeting

69



011712 BCC Meeting

70



011712 BCC Meeting

71



011712 BCC Meeting

72



011712 BCC Meeting

73



011712 BCC Meeting

74



011712 BCC Meeting

75



011712 BCC Meeting

76



011712 BCC Meeting

77



011712 BCC Meeting

78



011712 BCC Meeting

79



011712 BCC Meeting

80



011712 BCC Meeting

81



011712 BCC Meeting

82



011712 BCC Meeting

83



011712 BCC Meeting

84



011712 BCC Meeting

85



011712 BCC Meeting

86



011712 BCC Meeting

87



011712 BCC Meeting

88



011712 BCC Meeting

89



Blank Page 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

90



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

PRESENTATION OF W.A.M.Y. COMMUNITY ACTIONS, INC.’S, 2012-2013 
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT (CSBG) APPLICATION 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
W.A.M.Y. Community Action, Inc. is required to present their Community Anti-Poverty grant 
application to each Board of County Commissioners that it serves.  The report is for information 
only; therefore, no action is required.   
 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

91



W . A . M . Y .  C O M M U N I T Y  A C T I O N ,  I N C .  
225 Birch Street, Suite 2  

Boone, North Carolina 28607-2688 
Telephone: 828.264.2421   Fax: 828.264.0952 

Email:  wamyadmin@charter.net 

  Mary Ann Cole, Chairperson               Jane Lentz, Executive Director 

AVERY COUNTY 
P.O. Box 222 

723 Cranberry Street                                          
Newland, NC 28657 

MITCHELL COUNTY                    
29 Crystal Street 

Spruce Pine, NC 28777 

YANCEY COUNTY 
P.O. Box 596 

1019 E US Hwy 19E 
Burnsville, NC 28714 

 
 

"W.A.M.Y. Community Action, Inc. is an equal opportunity employer/program. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities." 

 
 
MEMO  
TO: Clerk of County Commissioners & County Commissioners 
RE: CSBG 2012-2013 Grant Application for January Agenda 
FROM: Debbie Bowman, Self-Sufficiency Program Coordinator  
DATE:  December 22, 2011 
 
 
To be in compliance with North Carolina Administrative Code [10A NCAC 97C.0111 (b)(1)(A)] 
we respectively submit our 2012-2013 grant application for the Community Services Block 
Grant (CSBG).  This years application is the fourth year of  our multiple-year (5 years) grant 
cycle.   
 
Funding from the CSBG is the only source of funding for WAMY’s Total Family Development 
(TFD) Program, a self-sufficiency program.  The TFD program provides a variety of services 
designed to assist low-income families in attaining the skills, knowledge, and motivation 
necessary to achieve self-sufficiency.  WAMY has a primary focus of  providing educational 
assistance to help participants rise above the federal poverty guidelines.  
 
We appreciate your willingness to review this grant application and all the work you each do for 
the community in which you serve. 
 
 
 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

92



 North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services 

 
 

Community Services Block Grant Program 
 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 
Project Period July 1, 2012 – June 30, 2013 

Application Due Date: February 15, 2012 
 

Applicant Information 
Agency: W.A.M.Y. Community Action, INC. 

Federal I.D. 56-0816292 

DUNS Number: 070628615 

Administrative Office Address: 225 Birch Street, Suite 2, Boone, NC 28607 

Mailing Address: Same as above 

Telephone Number: (828)264-2421 

Board Chairperson: Mary Ann Cole 

Board Chairperson’s Address: 
(where communications should be sent) 

897 Blowing Rock Rd., Boone, NC 28607 
 

Board Chairperson’s Term of Office: Jan. 2007-Dec. 2014 (second term) 

Executive Director: Jane T. Lentz 

Executive Director Email Address: jane@wamycommunityaction.org 

Agency Fiscal Officer: Melissa Soto 

Fiscal Officer Email Address: melissa@wamycommunityaction.org 
 

CSBG Program Director: Debbie Bowman 

CSBG Program Director Email Address: debbie@wamycommunityaction.org 
 

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services 
Office of Economic Opportunity 

Verna P. Best, Director 
2013 Mail Service Center 

Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-2013 
verna.best@dhhs.nc.gov 

http://www.ncdhhs.gov/oeo/ 

011712 BCC Meeting

93

mailto:jane@wamycommunityaction.org
mailto:melissa@wamycommunityaction.org
mailto:debbie@wamycommunityaction.org
mailto:verna.best@dhhs.nc.gov
http://www.ncdhhs.gov/oeo/


Checklist to Submit a Complete Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Application 
 
Please put a check mark in the appropriate box to show that you have included the completed 
document with your application.   
 

Item Included (√) or N/A 
Signed Application Certification (blue ink only)  
Signed Board Membership Roster (blue ink only)  
Board of Directors Officers and Committees  
Planning Process Narrative  
Form 210 – Agency Strategy for Eliminating Poverty  
Form 212 – One Year Work Program   
Monitoring, Assessment and Evaluation Plan  
Form 212A – CSBG Administrative Support Worksheet (if applicable)  
Form 225 – Agency Budget Information  
Form 225N-Budget Narrative  
Documentation of Submission to County Commissioners  
Appendices (to be attached by the Applicant):  

• Organizational Chart  
• Job Description and Resume for the Agency’s Executive Director  
• Job Description and Resume for the Agency’s Chief Financial Officer  
• Affirmative Action Plan  
• Documentation of Public Hearings for Initial Planning Process:  

                      Copy of Public Notice(s) from Newspaper(s)  
Agenda of Public Meeting(s)  

       Copy of Attendance Sheet(s)   
       Minutes of Public Meeting(s)  

• Documentation for Notice of Intent to Apply:   
                      Copy of advertisement(s)  

• Documentation of Submission to County Commissioners:  
                     Certified document from county clerk  
                     Commissioners’ comments or minutes (if applicable)  

• Cognizant-Approved Indirect Cost Agreement  
• Cost Allocation Plan  

 

011712 BCC Meeting

94



Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

Certification and Assurances 
 

 
Public Hearing on the Initial Plan 
We herein certify that a public hearing as required by 10A NCAC 97B .0402 Citizen Participation in the 
Application Process occurred on             Feb. 24, 2009            for the initial planning process for the 
agency’s current project plan and the agency has maintained documentation to confirm the process of the 
public hearing.   
 
For multi-county providers, indicate the date and the county the hearing was held.  
 

Date County Date  County 
See above Watauga   
See above Avery   
See above Mitchell   
See above Yancey   
    
 
County Commissioners’ Review 
We herein certify that the application for this project period was submitted to the Board of County 
Commissioners for review and comment on ____________December 20, 2011________ as required by 
10A NCAC 97C .0111(A). 
 
For multi-county providers, indicate the county and date the application for funding was presented to the 
Board of County Commissioners as required by 10A NCAC 97C .0111(B). 
 

Date County Date  County 
12/20/2011 Watauga   
12/20/2011 Avery   
12/20/2011 Mitchell   
12/20/2011 Yancey   
    
 
 
Board of Directors Approval of the Application 
I hereby certify that the information contained in the attached application is true and the Board of Directors 
has reviewed and approved this application for the Community Services Block Grant Program. 
       
Date of Board Approval:    
 
 
Board Chairperson:   
          (Signature)                      (Date) 
 
Finance Committee Chairperson:     
     (Signature)    (Date) 

011712 BCC Meeting

95



Board of Directors’ Membership Roster 
Total Seats Per Agency Bylaws 18  Total Current Vacant 

Seats 
3 

       
Total Number of Seats Reserved for Each 
Sector 

Poor 6 Public 7 Private 5 

Total Number of Vacant Seats Per Each 
Sector 

Poor 1 Public  Private 2 

 
Name County of 

Residence  
Address Community Group/ 

Area Represented 
Date Initially 

Seated 
[month/year] 

Number of 
Terms Served 

[completed] 

Current Term 
Expiration 

[month/year] 
Representatives of the Poor 

1.  Burleson, Stella Avery 521 Little Buck Hill Rd., Newland, NC  28657 NC Forest Service 4/1/10 1 12/31/12 
2.  Watts, Lori Watauga 356 Greer Lane, Villas, NC  28692 Mental Health 2/22/11  12/31/14 
3.  Crowder, Toby Yancey 1150 Arbuckle Rd., Burnsville, NC  28714 DMV Examiner 1/1/08 1 12/31/13 
4.  Vacant Mitchell   1/1/10  12/31/13 
5.  Willard, Bobbie Watauga 311 Bennett Way, Boone, NC 28607  Avery Coop. Ext. 1/1/2005 1 12/31/12 
6.  Miller, John Yancey 20 Academy Street, Burnsville, NC 28714 Reconciliation Hous 1/1/09  12/31/12 

Public Elected Officials 
1. Cole, Rose Avery 421 Lakeville Rd., Newland, NC  28657 Retired 1/1/05 1 12/31/12 
2. Heath, Scott Avery P.O. Box 682, Banner Elk, NC  28607 County Comm. 1/1/06 1 12/31/13 
3. Graham, Dan Yancey 643 Upper PigPen Rd., Green Mountain, NC 28740 Retired School Coun Pending  12/31/14 
4. Coffey, Joy Watauga P.O. Box 1414, Boone, NC  28607 Retired Banker 1/1/09  12/31/13 
5. Hensley, Bryan Yancey 416 Fir Rd., Burnsville, NC  28714 Post Master 1/1/08  12/31/12 
6. Dipietrantonio, Debby Mitchell 2525 Hughes Gap Rd., Bakersville, NC 28705 NC Forest Service 1/1/11  12/31/14 
7. Styles, Ruthie Mitchell PO Box 35, Spruce Pine, NC 28777 Bereavement Couns 1/1/09  12/31/12 

Representatives of Private Organizations 
1. Berckemeyer, Donita Avery 1825 Land Harbor, Newland, NC  28657 Sr.Ctr.Employ 1/1/09 1 12/31/11 
2. Godwin, Nancy Mitchell 88 Mountain Breeze Dr., Spruce Pine, NC 28777 Mayland CC 10/1/07  12/31/11 
3. Cole, Mary Ann Watauga 897 Blowing Rock Rd., Boone, NC  28607 Self-Employed 1/1/07 1 12/31/11 
4. Vacant Mitchell   1/1/10  12/31/13 
5. Vacant Yancey   1/1/09  12/31/12 
 
The signature of the Board of Directors Chairperson certifies that the persons representing the poor were selected by a democratic process and that there is documentation on file 
that confirms the selection of all board members.  In addition, by signing below, the Board of Directors Chairperson confirms that the selection of all board members coincide with 
the directives outlined in the agency’s bylaws.  A current Board of Directors Member Profile is on file for each member.          
 
          

Board of Directors Chairperson 

011712 BCC Meeting

96



Board of Directors’ Officers and Committees 
 
Note: All committees of the board should fairly reflect the composition of the board (10A NCAC 97C .0109).  Be sure to 
identify the chairperson and other committee positions. 
 

Name Office  Sector Represented County Represented*  
Officers of the Board  
Cole, Mary Ann Chairperson Private Watauga 
Cole, Rose Secretary/Treasurer Public Avery 
Godwin, Nancy 1st Vice Chairperson Private Mitchell 
Berekemeyer, Donita 2nd Vice Chairperson Private  Avery 
Hensley, Bryan 3rd Vice Chairperson Public Yancey 
    
Committee Name:Audit/Finance  
Hensley, Bryan Chairperson Public Yancey 
Godwin, Nancy  Private Mitchell 
Cole, Rose  Public Avery 
Watts, Lori  Low Income Watauga 
Miller, John  Low Income Yancey 
Committee Name:Personnel  
Berckemeyer, Donita Chairperson Private Avery 
Crowder, Toby  Low Income Yancey 
Styles, Ruthie   Public Mitchell 
Committee Name:Planning/Evaluation  
Godwin, Nancy Chairperson Private Mitchell 
Heath, Scott  Public Avery 
Cole, Mary Ann  Private Watauga 
Graham, Dan  Public Yancey 
    
    
Committee Name:Development/Public Relations  
Cole, Rose Chairperson Public Avery 
Burleson, Stella  Public Avery 
Coffey, Joy  Public Watauga 
Dipietrantonio, Debby  Public Mitchell 
    
Committee Name:  
    
    
    
    
    
    
Committee Name:  
    
    
    
    
    
    
*To be completed by agencies serving multiple counties. 

011712 BCC Meeting

97



Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

Planning Process Narrative 
 
ROMA Goals 1, 3 and 5  
Low income People Become More Self-Sufficient; Low income 
People Own a Stake in their Community; Agencies increase 
their capacity to achieve results 

DHHS Excels-Goal 2 
Expand understanding and use of information to enhance the 
health and safety of North Carolinians 

 
1. Explain in detail how each of the following was involved in the planning and development of this 

strategic plan. 
 
 a. The Poor: Community needs surveys were given out to all local human service 
agencies for case workers to give to low-income and disadvantaged clients to fill out 
at the beginning of our planning process. The surveys were also placed in the lobbies 
of human service agencies, and were distributed to other local businesses. In addition, 
all WAMY Board members completed the survey, one-third of whom are low-income 
representatives. 74% of survey participants, or 296 people, were human service 
agency customers. The following is a chart showing annual income information for 
all survey participants: 

Family Annual Income 
11% less than $5,000 
29% $5,001-$10,000 
23% $10,001-$15,000 
7% $15,001-$20,000 
7% $20,001-$25,000 
6% $25,001-$30,000 
17% more than $30,000 

 
As shown, the two largest brackets were participants whose family annual income 
was between $5,001 and $10,000 and $10,001 and $15,000. We can infer then, that 
most survey participants could be considered “poor.” During follow-up focus groups, 
demographic information was not collected; however, based on contact information 
gathered, we can assume there were at least several low-income representatives that 
participated in each group. 

 
 

b. The Staff: All WAMY staff completed community needs surveys and participated 
in the follow-up focus groups. Additionally, 15% of survey participants, or 60 people, 
were human service agency staff members. These staff members work with clients of 
similar demographics to WAMY’s clientele base, so brought good insight to the table. 
WAMY also facilitates bi-monthly staff meetings to discuss program and client 
needs, positives, negatives, and areas that need improvement. Issues of program 
accomplishments and sustainability are continually discussed and informal short and 
long-term plans are created and implemented to ensure overall agency and individual 
program success. 

011712 BCC Meeting

98



 
c.  The Board:  All Board members completed WAMY’s comprehensive community 
needs assessment, and many also participated in the follow-up focus groups. The 
Planning and Evaluation Committee met to determine those strategies recommended 
for funding during the next five years.  That committee discussed various program 
and budget options prior to presentation to the full Board of Directors for preliminary 
approval.  Following the prescribed review and comment period and after the Public 
Hearing, the Board gave final approval to the Agency Strategy for Eliminating 
Poverty and the One-Year Work Program and Budget. 

 
 
ROMA Goal 5 
Agencies increase their capacity to achieve results 

DHHS Excels-Goals 1 and 2 
Manage resources that provide an elevated level of effective 
and efficient delivery of services and programs to North 
Carolinians; Expand understanding and use of information to 
enhance the health and safety of North Carolinians 

 
2. Describe your agency’s method and criteria for identifying poverty causes and list the identified 

causes. Also describe the methods and criteria used to determine priority and selection of 
strategies to be implemented that will address the poverty causes.     
                                                                                                                                                              

A survey was created by a senior, college intern with a focus and background in 
community and regional planning. The survey sought to gather information regarding 
participant demographics, community strengths and weaknesses, existing community 
resources, and needed community resources in response to the causes and effects of 
poverty. Follow-up focus groups identified the very same needs as the survey, then 
overlap between the survey and focus groups were determined to identify the area of 
highest need. The survey was distributed to local human service agencies, local 
government offices, local businesses, and medical facilities. The follow-up focus group 
was advertised through local newspapers, radio stations, through e-mail, and by word of 
mouth. 400 people completed the community needs survey, and a total of 26 people 
participated in the follow-up focus groups.  The following poverty causes and conditions 
within the area were identified from analysis of the data: 

Poverty Causes:  
1)  Lack of education (assistance for drop-outs, more educational opportunities, and 
financial literacy) 
2)  Lack of employment (help obtaining jobs, job training, and job development) 
3)  Need for affordable housing 
4)  Lack of transportation (help w/ car repair, more public transportation, etc.) 
5)  Coordination of information and referral (more resources for low-income people, 
better access to programs) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

99



ROMA Goal 1, 2, 3 and 6 
Low income People Become More Self-Sufficient; The 
conditions in which low income people live are improved; Low-
income people own a stake in their community; Low-income 
people, especially vulnerable populations, achieve their potential 
by strengthening family and other support systems 

DHHS Excels- Goal 4 
Provide services to individuals and families identified as being at 
risk of compromised health and safety. 
 

 
3. Describe activities that your agency has undertaken or plans to advocate for and empower low-

income individuals and families to achieve a greater sense of authority over their own lives and 
future. 
 

Through our participation on numerous community boards, planning committees, 
advisory councils, and initiatives, the staff of WAMY Community Action advocates for 
greater inclusion of low-income representatives and consideration of their unique needs 
and concerns.  One of the ways that the agency has sought to empower low-income 
individuals and families to achieve a greater sense of authority over their own lives is by 
enlisting their participation and involvement in the development and implementation of 
the agency’s plans and programs.  Thus, low-income persons participate directly and 
extensively in the identification of the chief causes of poverty and the major needs of the 
poor in communities within the agency’s four-county service area.  They were also 
involved in the development of strategies to alleviate poverty at the root level and to 
enhance the quality of life of the citizens of these four counties. 
 
In addition, one-third of the members of the Board of Directors are chosen democratically 
at community meetings attended by low-income individuals.  Those six Board members 
represent the needs and views of the low-income population at Board meetings and in 
other contexts.  Moreover, the achievement of success in the CSBG MicroBusiness 
Program, and other agency programs enables low-income persons to become 
economically self-sufficient and empowers them to participate fully and with dignity in 
the political, social, and economic life of their communities.  Those successes will also 
enable them to develop leadership potential and to influence decisions that affect their 
lives. 
 
Future plans to empower low-income women include creation of training modules 
specifically tailored to their needs and life goals, including but not limited to: financial 
literacy, home and car maintenance, job skills training, and basic computer skills.   
This will be housed in our Family Resource Center, which offers child care facilities, a 
full-scale kitchen, and classroom for workshops and educational programming. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

100



ROMA Goals  1, 2  4, 5 and 6 
Low income People Become More Self-Sufficient; The 
conditions in which low income people live are improved;   
Agencies increase their capacity to achieve results; 
Partnerships among supporters and providers of services to 
low-income people are achieved;  Low-income people, 
especially vulnerable populations, achieve their potential by 
strengthening family and support systems 

DHHS Excels-Goals 1 and 2 
Manage resources that provide an elevated level of effective 
and efficient delivery of services and programs to North 
Carolinians; Expand understanding and use of information to 
enhance the health and safety of North Carolinians 

 
 

4. Describe how your agency plans to make more effective use of, and to coordinate and form 
partnerships with other organizations and programs including: State welfare reform efforts; public 
and private resources; religious organizations, charitable groups, and community organizations.  

 
Over the years, this agency has worked closely with other community agencies and 
organizations to provide the resources and supportive services needed by low-income 
individuals and families to become self-sufficient.  In order to make better use of other 
resources and to coordinate more effectively with other programs, W.A.M.Y. has made a 
commitment to continue to be an active partner with the JobLink Career Centers in all 
four counties.  Other collaborative efforts include, but are not limited to, involvement on 
Work First Advisory Committees, Habitat for Humanity, System of Care Initiatives, 
Partnership for Children Boards, Juvenile Crime Prevention Committees, Interagency 
Task Force groups, county Child Protection Teams and Youth Councils across the four-
county area.   
 
 

5.   Describe how your agency will establish linkages between governmental and other social services 
 programs to assure the effective delivery of such services to low-income individuals, to avoid the 
 duplication of such services and to fill identified gaps in services, through the provision of 
 information, referrals, case management and follow-up consultations. 
 

 
In all 4 counties of our service area, efforts are made to integrate the delivery of services, 
avoid duplication, and maximize available resources.  Initially, individuals identified as 
eligible for W.A.M.Y’s Total Family Development Program receive a comprehensive 
assessment of their strengths and needs to assist the case manager in developing an 
individual and on-going plan of action to meet the goals of the participant.  Activities are 
closely coordinated with other area agencies, such as Department of Social Services, 
Workforce Investment Act, community colleges, and other programs to support the 
family in achieving their goals.  When appropriate, referrals are made to W.A.M.Y’s 
Weatherization Assistance, HARRP, and MicroBusiness Programs to assist families to 
overcome barriers to self-sufficiency.  W.A.M.Y. staff works with area resources to 
identify gaps in services and to create the means to fill those gaps.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

101



ROMA Goal 2, 4 and 6 
Low income People Become More Self-Sufficient; Partnerships 
among supporters and providers of services to low-income 
people are achieved; Low-income people, especially vulnerable 
populations, achieve their potential by strengthening family and 
other support systems 

DHHS Excels-Goals 1 and 3 
Manage resources that provide an elevated level of effective 
and efficient delivery of services and programs to North 
Carolinians; Offer outreach and services to individuals and 
families identified as being at risk of compromised health and 
safety. 

 
6.  Provide a description of how your agency will support innovative community and neighborhood- 
 based initiatives related to the purposes of the Community Services Block Grant (fatherhood 
 initiatives and other initiatives with the goal of strengthening families and encouraging effective 
 parenting). 

 
Families are empowered when allowed to participate on an equal basis in planning for 
their future and when given a voice in all aspects of their lives.  One community model 
that supports this view is called “system of care,” an organized network of services that 
include parents as integral components of a team in obtaining the resources they need.  
W.A.M.Y. supports “system of care” (SOC) initiatives in its constituent counties both in 
the planning process and in implementation of SOC objectives.  W.A.M.Y. also promotes 
the concept that “information is power.”  Families who have information about resources 
and who know how to access them are in a better position to meet their goals of self-
sufficiency.  To this end, the agency has been instrumental in publishing a resource 
directory in one of its counties.  Finally, agency staff promotes and makes clients aware 
of any new and innovative community initiatives which strengthen the family unit either 
through education and/or services. 
 
ROMA Goal 5 and 6 
Agencies increase their capacity to achieve results; Low-income 
people, especially vulnerable populations, achieve their potential 
by strengthening family and other support systems 

DHHS Excels-Goals 1 and  5 
Manage resources that provide an elevated level of effective 
and efficient delivery of services and programs to North 
Carolinians; Provide services and protection to individuals and 
families experiencing serious health and safety needs who are 
not, at least temporarily, able to assist themselves. 

 
7.  Describe activities that your agency has undertaken or plans to undertake, on an emergency basis, 
 for the provision of such supplies and services, nutritious foods, and related services, as may be 
 necessary to counteract conditions of starvation and malnutrition among low-income individuals. 

 
   W.A.M.Y. Community Action, Inc. coordinates closely with agencies that provide 

emergency assistance to forestall hunger and malnutrition.  These agencies include, but 
are not limited to, the Hunger Coalition of Watauga County, RAM Emergency Food 
Pantry, the American Red Cross, USDA Commodities Program (TEFAP), Manna Food 
Bank, Project on Aging, the Salvation Army, Shelter Rock Ministries, local churches, 
community organizations, and civic groups.  W.A.M.Y’s former CSBG Coordinator 
has served as chair on the Avery County Emergency Food and Shelter Program Local 
Board in order to ensure that any excess FEMA funds would be made available in the 
county.  She also co-chaired the Avery County CROP Walk for Hunger for seven years.  
This event brings in an average of five thousand dollars a year to the county to support 
the local food pantry.  In 2005, the Total Family Development Program became a 
MANNA Food Bank agency to bring low-cost, nutritious food to families enrolled in 
the program.  MANNA allows WAMY to order food for program participants at just 
.19 cents a pound, and in some cases, at no cost.  WAMY also coordinates MANNA’s 

011712 BCC Meeting

102



monthly Fresh Produce Distribution for low-income families and individuals in Avery 
County; and collaborates with DayMark Recovery Services to provide site coordination 
and distribute produce. This distribution provides fresh produce to an average of 90+ 
families a month, twelve months a year.    

 
8.  Describe how your agency will coordinate the provision of employment and training activities with 
 entities providing activities through statewide and local workforce investment systems under the 
 Workforce Investment Act of 1998. 

 
WAMY Community Action has long-standing linkages with governmental and social 
service agencies to assure the effective delivery of services to low-income families and to 
avoid duplication of such services.  These linkages include participation on Department 
of Social Services boards, area Interagency Councils, and JobLink Career Centers in 
order to coordinate the provision of employment and training activities as well as other 
needed resources and services even more effectively and without unnecessary 
duplication.  For example, our CSBG staff sit on JobLink Management Teams in three 
out of four counties served, and work very closely with the Workforce Investment Act 
staff to meet the employment and training needs of area residents.  In Yancey County, 
our CSBG case manager is housed in the JobLink Center and works side by side with 
Employment Security Commission and Workforce Investment Act staff. 
 
ROMA Goal 4 and 6 
Partnerships among supporters and providers of services to 
low-income people are achieved; Low-income people, especially 
vulnerable populations, achieve their potential by strengthening 
family and other support systems 

DHHS Excels-Goal 5 
Provide services and protection to individuals and families 
experiencing serious health and safety needs who are not, at 
least temporarily, able to assist themselves. 
 

 
9.  Describe how your agency will ensure coordination with the emergency energy crisis intervention  
 program under title XXVI (relating to low-income home energy assistance). 

 
All CSBG case managers work closely with local Departments of Social Services in all 
four counties and are apprised in a timely manner by DSS staff about the application 
process and time frames for referral of low-income individuals to the LIHEAP Program.  
Case managers also refer qualified individuals to the Weatherization Assistance and 
HARRP programs on a regular basis. W.A.M.Y’s Weatherization Coordinator routinely 
presents information concerning these programs to DSS staff and agency representatives 
in each county to ensure that all appropriate resources are used in provide energy 
assistance.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

103



 
ROMA Goals  4 and 5 
Partnerships among supporters and providers of services to 
low-income people are achieved;  Agencies increase their 
capacity to achieve results 

DHHS Excels-Goals 1 and 2 
Manage resources that provide an elevated level of effective 
and efficient delivery of services and programs to North 
Carolinians; Expand understanding and use of information to 
enhance the health and safety of North Carolinians 

 
1. Describe the needs of low-income youth and your agency’s efforts to promote increased 

community coordination and collaboration in meeting the needs of low-income youth. 
 
Youth living in low income households often face the following challenges in academic 
and social settings: 
1) Educational and technological resources are often not available in the home setting for 
students to complete homework and classroom assignments;  
2) They are more likely to lack adequate food, warmth, and housing security than their 
middle and upper income counterparts; 
3) They are more likely to be latch-key children and might be taking care of younger 
brothers and sisters at an earlier age;  
4) They often feel the need to either drop out of high school or not attend college because 
of the family economic situation;  
5) They are less likely to receive homework and tutoring help from the adults in their 
home.  
 
In order to address the needs of low income youth from a grassroots and hands on 
perspective, WAMY Community Action has worked within the community to create the 
Avery Youth Opportunities (Avery YO!) Program. Avery YO! is a comprehensive 
partnership made up of the 21st Century Community Learning Center Program (funded 
by the Department of Public Instruction) for grades kindergarten through 8th, and the 
Avery County 4-H Afterschool Program. In 2007, WAMY received grant funding to 
incorporate health and wellness services into Avery YO! WAMY developed and 
implemented our ‘Survivor: The Ultimate Afterschool Experience’ into the varied 
afterschool services available to all Avery YO! students. Survivor is specifically an 
obesity-prevention, wellness program funded by Kate B. Reynolds Charitable Trust.  
WAMY collaborates with the Avery County 4-H and Cooperative Extension, the Avery 
County School system, Appalachian State University, Lees McCrae College, Mayland 
Community College, MANNA Food bank, GEAR-UP, Department of Social Services, 
DayMark Recovery Services, Cannon Memorial Hospital, the Avery YMCA, Avery 
Partnership for Children, and Parent to Parent and many more local agencies.  
 
As a result of this collaboration, Avery YO! helps to alleviate poverty on a grassroots 
level for over 200 Avery County youth each year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

104



 
ROMA Goals 1 and 5 
Low-income People Become More Self-Sufficient; Agencies 
increase their capacity to achieve results 

DHHS Excels-Goal 1 
Manage resources that provide an elevated level of effective 
and efficient delivery of services and programs to North 
Carolinians. 

 
11. Describe activities that your agency has undertaken or plans to undertake to establish a pool of    
 unrestricted funds to further the agency’s mission and reduce dependency on government funding. 

 
a. Funds to support services for low-income persons 

• We solicit funds from local sources such as town and county government, 
United Way affiliates, and local and regional foundations.  Our United Way 
funding has almost tripled in the past few years. 

• We operate a thrift store and use the profit to enhance grant funds. 

 
b.    Funds to support the overall agency 

• We have rented available office space to other agencies and utilized those 
funds to serve clients and promote our mission. 

• We conduct regular fundraising events to benefit clients such as yard sales, a 
barbeque fund raiser, and annual Christmas auction. 

We are presently exploring other fee for service projects to increase our capacity to 
help our client population. 

 
ROMA Goal 2, 4 and 6 
Low income People Become More Self-Sufficient; Partnerships 
among supporters and providers of services to low-income 
people are achieved; Low-income people, especially vulnerable 
populations, achieve their potential by strengthening family and 
other support systems 

DHHS Excels-Goals 1 and 3 
Manage resources that provide an elevated level of effective 
and efficient delivery of services and programs to North 
Carolinians; Offer outreach and services to individuals and 
families identified as being at risk of compromised health and 
safety. 

 
12. Describe your agency’s method for informing custodial parents in single-parent families that 
 participate in CSBG programming about the availability of child support services.  In addition, 
 describe your method for referring eligible parents to the child support office[s]. 

 
With an established, 45+ year, presence in our rural, 4 county service area, referring the 
individuals and families we serve as well as those that ‘walk-in’ with needs, to 
appropriate services is second nature to how we operate on a daily basis.  All Total 
Family Development Program customers complete an in-depth pre-assessment prior to 
receiving services; if child-care/support is an identified need, the customer is provided 
with the needed resources for obtaining services. 
 

13. Does your agency calculate return on investment for your CSBG program?  If so, please explain 
 and give the calculation?    
 
  No, we do not. 

 

011712 BCC Meeting

105



 
 
 

Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

Form 210 
 

Agency Strategy for Eliminating Poverty 

 
Planning Period:   July 1,2009-June 30,2014 
 
(1)  Poverty Cause Name  Lack of Education/Lack of Job Skills     
 
(2)  Poverty Cause Description:  The new economy places an increasing premium on 
education, however, in rural North Carolina educational attainment is falling behind 
urban areas. According to US Census figures, over 25% of area residents above age 24, 
or 15,162 persons, do not have a high school diploma. The four-county area has an 
average dropout rate of 4.62%. It is well known that family income serves as a reliable 
indicator for the other social and economic factors related to a youth’s decision to drop 
out of school. Lack of education limits employment opportunities, life management 
skills, and decision-making capabilities.   Local resources to address employment and 
training have decreased significantly in the past five years due to federal and state budget 
reductions. 
 
(3)  Priority Number ___1____ 
 
             
SECTION II.  RESOURCE ANALYSIS  (Use additional sheets if necessary)      
 
(4)  Resources Available: The local public school systems operate with an average cost of 
$10,150 per pupil in 2010-2011; community colleges offer opportunities for general 
education and skills training; adult literacy programs operate in each county;  dropout  
prevention programs operate within the public school systems; Title I programs are 
funded for educationally at-risk children; TRIO projects such as Upward Bound and 
Talent Search, which encourage first generation, low-income high school students to stay 
in school and go on to college operate out of the local community colleges and 
universities; the Gear-Up Program designed to increase the number of students who enter 
and are successful in college; Total Family Development educational counseling and 
support services for low-income individuals; and Workforce Investment Act programs 
with a standard budget of $795,917 for Watauga, Avery, Mitchell and Yancey Counties.  
A program called Early College encourages high school students to be dual-enrolled in 
high school and the local community college so that they will graduate with both a high 
school diploma and an associate degree.  Currently, 50 students are enrolled in the Avery 
County program with 30 anticipated for the coming year.   

 

 

011712 BCC Meeting

106



Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

Form 210 
 

Agency Strategy for Eliminating Poverty 
 
Planning Period:   July 1,2009-June 30,2014 
 
(5)  Resources Needed: Additional funds are needed for innovative programming to 
motivate adults to improve educational levels where possible and encourage youth to 
remain in school; increased funding for after school programming such as the Avery 
YO!/21st Century Community Learning Centers.  Additional funds to develop 
information and referral networks to provide better access to programs already in 
existence; increased vocational training for adults, and expansion of family literacy 
projects to more residents of the four counties. 
 
             
SECTION III.  GOAL AND STRATEGY ________________________      
 
(6)  Long-Range Goal:  To increase by 52, the number of families with household 
incomes above the federal poverty guidelines by 6/30/14.  
 
(7) Strategies for Achieving Long-Range Goal:  (Use asterisk to denote strategies to be 

implemented by  agency) 
*Operate dropout prevention programs, such as the Avery YO!/ 21st Century 
Community Learning Centers. 
*Provide educational assistance through CSBG-funded Total Family Development 
Programming. 
 *Work with the community college system to develop more vocational skills and 
career counseling opportunities for low-income adults. 
*Coordinate with other human service agencies and JobLink partners to ensure that 
education and job skills training needs are met. 

 
SECTION I.  CAUSE (PROBLEM) IDENTIFICATION  (Use additional sheets if necessary)    
 
(1)  Poverty Cause Name  Lack of Jobs/Unemployment_____     
 
(2)  Poverty Cause Description:  Rural North Carolina has seen a major transformation in 

the structure of its economy over the last decade. Manufacturing and agricultural 
employment continue to decline, replaced by jobs in services and the retail and wholesale 

trade.  These new jobs have lower wages and fewer benefits for workers.  Current, 
(October 2011) statistics show that over 4,000 persons are unemployed within the area. 

Unemployment rates vary from 7.3% in Watauga County, 9.8% in Avery County, 10.2% 
in Mitchell County and 11.1% in Yancey County.  Statistics are skewed due to the failure  
of many residents to register with ESC. 

 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

107



 
Community Services Block Grant Program 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 
Form 210 

 
Agency Strategy for Eliminating Poverty 

 
Planning Period:   July 1,2009-June 30,2014 
 

Current median income and poverty data for the area is as follows:   

 
County  Median Per Capita Income      % Below Poverty 

Watauga   $17,258                   18% 

Yancey   $16,335    16% 

Mitchell   $15,933    14% 

Avery    $15,176    15%  

Many individuals in the area are unable to rise above the poverty level due to the lack of 
industry, wide-scale loss of manufacturing jobs in the region, and the low wages they are 
paid by limited, seasonal jobs. The population segment most affected is the low-income 
resident with limited education and skills.  The problem results in insufficient income to 
meet living expenses. 

(3)  Priority Number ___2____ 
 
SECTION II.  RESOURCE ANALYSIS  (Use additional sheets if necessary    
 
(4)  Resources Available: Economic Development Commissions seek to attract new 
industries; Workforce Investment Act operates with a total budget of approximately 
$3,000,000 to provide job-training skills; MAY Coalition encourages new business 
development; W.A.M.Y.’s MicroBusiness and Financial Literacy Programs encourage 
the development of business activities by low-income entrepreneurs with loans and 
technical assistance. 
 
(5)  Resources Needed: Additional employment opportunities and industry, especially 
cottage industries supporting local needs within the area; education beginning at the 
grade school level to prepare young people to become entrepreneurs; increased wage 
rates for existing jobs; improved benefits packages to increase self-sufficiency; additional 
training programs; job creation efforts; continued education and technical assistance for 
low-income entrepreneurs. 
 
 

 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

108



 

Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

Form 210 
 

Agency Strategy for Eliminating Poverty 
 
Planning Period:   July 1,2009-June 30,2014 

 

SECTION III.  GOAL AND STRATEGY       
 
(6)  Long-Range Goal: To increase by 15 the number of MicroBusiness loan recipients with 
incomes above the poverty level by 6/30/14. 
 
(7) Strategies for Achieving Long-Range Goal:  (Use asterisk to denote strategies to be 
implemented by agency) 
*Operate MicroBusiness and Financial Literacy Programs for low-income entrepreneurs. 
 
*Assist with local efforts to attract or develop new industry in the area by participating on 
JobLink Management Teams and supporting Chamber of Commerce outreach efforts. 
 
*Advocate for expansion of entrepreneurial training and technical assistance through educational 
programs. 
 
             
SECTION I.  CAUSE (PROBLEM) IDENTIFICATION  (Use additional sheets if necessary)  
 
(1)  Poverty Cause Name:  Lack of Affordable Housing/Poor Housing Conditions  
 
(2) Poverty Cause Description:  According to US Census information, 248 occupied 
housing units have incomplete plumbing; 115 have incomplete kitchen facilities; and 
3,955 have only one, or no, bedroom.  An estimated 7,500 homes are in need of 
weatherizing, repair, or rehabilitation.  4,141 occupied dwellings were built prior to 1940.   
There is a shortage of affordable rental units, which meet acceptable standards, and also a 
shortage of low-cost housing units for purchase.  Homes which are poorly insulated, and 
therefore not heated sufficiently, can lead to illness especially for elderly or disabled 
individuals.  A statewide Point-in-Time Homeless Survey was conducted on January 26, 
2011; for the 7-county Northwest Region that includes WAMY’s service area, region 
wide, there were 974 homeless individuals, 558, (57%), who were children. A study 
conducted by the National Low-Income Housing Coalition concluded that a worker 
earning a minimum wage of $7.25 would have to work a minimum of 85 hours a week, 
52 weeks a year, in order to afford a two-bedroom apartment in Western North Carolina. 
A family paying the suggested maximum of 30% of a family’s annual median income 
could afford rent of $333 in Avery, $320 in Mitchell, $407 in Watauga, and $317 in 
Yancey County.  Unfortunately, those figures represent less than half of the average 
available rent in those counties. 

011712 BCC Meeting

109



 
(3)  Priority Number ___3____ 

Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

Form 210 
 

Agency Strategy for Eliminating Poverty 
 
Planning Period:   July 1,2009-June 30,2014 

 
             
SECTION II.  RESOURCE ANALYSIS  (Use additional sheets if necessary    
 
(4) Resources Available: Weatherization Assistance which includes HARRP and 
American Recovery and Reinvestment  funds totaling $931,980; three chapters of Habitat 
for Humanity operate in the four counties and build an average of 3 homes a year for 
low-income families;  Section 8 rental assistance available through Northwestern 
Regional Housing Authority for 900 households, in approximate total amount of 
$5,700,000.  As of December 2010, a total of 900 Section 8 housing units are available in 
area, with a waiting list of approximately the same number of households. 
 
(5) Resources Needed: Additional low-income rental units; additional funds for urgent 
home repair and rehabilitation; incentives for construction of affordable homes; 
additional funds for weatherization and repair and replacement of defective heating and 
cooling appliances; continued involvement in Habitat for Humanity and its effort to build  
homes for the poor; creation of funding opportunities for Individual Development 
Accounts that help low-income families save for a home, and concerted efforts  involving 
churches, agencies and private organizations to address gaps in services for low-income  
renters and homeowners.                                         
 
 

SECTION III.  GOAL AND STRATEGY      
    
(6) Long-Range Goal: To assist 500 low-income families in improving housing 
conditions by 6/30/14. 
(7)  Strategies for Achieving Long-Range Goal:  (Use asterisk to denote strategies to be 
implemented the agency) 
* Operate Weatherization Assistance, HARRP, and Total Family Development Programs.       
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

011712 BCC Meeting

110



Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

Form 210 
 

Agency Strategy for Eliminating Poverty 
 
Planning Period:   July 1,2009-June 30,2014 

 
             
SECTION I.  CAUSE (PROBLEM) IDENTIFICATION  (Use additional sheets if necessary)  
 
(1)  Poverty Cause Name:  Lack of Transportation/High Cost of Transportation   

(2) Poverty Cause Description:  Some fundamental issues facing basic rural areas are a) 
availability of funding for new and/or upgraded roads and for maintenance of existing 
roads is very limited, b) public transportation choices are often unavailable, and, c) while 
most rural households own a car, poor rural households are three times more likely than 
the non-poor to lack a vehicle.  Statistics from the US Census show that an average of 
18.8% of residents or 7,538 people carpool to work, and 2,089 walk to work in our 
service area.  According to Bureau of Transportation statistics, an average amount of 
$8,121 is spent annually on vehicle upkeep, gas and maintenance by families in the 
service area.  This represents approximately 32% of a low-income family’s annual 
income based upon average per capita income of Watauga, Avery, Mitchell, and Yancey 
Counties. 

(3)  Priority Number ___4____ 
             
SECTION II.  RESOURCE ANALYSIS  (Use additional sheets if necessary    
 
(4)  Resources Available: Area public transportation agencies with a combined budget of 
$2,394,819 provided 1,287,686 passenger trips in 2010, including trips to school, work, 
medical visits, and grocery shopping; county Work First programs assist clients with car 
repair if necessary for a family to maintain employment; emergency assistance programs 
help with vehicle costs in crisis situations; Total Family Development helps participants 
with the cost of transportation when that service supports a family’s school or work 
goals. 
 
(5) Resources Needed: Increased funding for rural public transit systems; vehicle 
assistance programs that provide incentives for donation of reliable used cars to low-
income households; coordinated efforts by social service agencies and local mechanic 
training programs to provide free or reduced-cost car repair. 
 
 

 

 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

111



Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

Form 210 
 

Agency Strategy for Eliminating Poverty 
 
Planning Period:   July 1,2009-June 30,2014 

SECTION III.  GOAL AND STRATEGY       
 
(6)  Long-Range Goal: Assist 125 self-sufficiency participant families with transportation 
costs necessary for participation in school and work by 6/30/2014. 
 
(7) Strategies for Achieving Long-Range Goal:  (Use asterisk to denote strategies to be 
implemented by agency) 
 
* Coordinate efforts with local transportation authorities, Work First Programs, etc. to 
ensure the transportation needs of rural residents are identified and addressed. 
* Provide transportation assistance to Total Family Development participants to maintain 
school and work requirements. 
 
             
SECTION I.  CAUSE (PROBLEM) IDENTIFICATION  (Use additional sheets if necessary)  
 
(1)  Poverty Cause Name  Lack of Information and Referral Coordination   
 
(2) Poverty Cause Description:  Even in a community with an adequate number and 
variety of resources for low-income residents, it remains a challenge to reach the target 
population with the information required to access those services.  Several factors 
influence this problem: 1) low-income people most often obtain information by word of 
mouth instead of through media sources and Public Service Announcements; 2) the 
culture of stoic self-reliance permeates our rural service area, resulting in a fierce 
determination to “do without” rather than depend on an outside agency; and 3) creation of 
a service directory is an effective approach, however, maintaining an up-to-date directory 
can be costly and time-consuming for any one organization, leading to the need for 
collaboration among agencies to create, publish and maintain pertinent resource 
information for a community.   
 
(3)  Priority Number ___5____ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

112



Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

Form 210 
 

Agency Strategy for Eliminating Poverty 
 
Planning Period:   July 1,2009-June 30,2014 
             
SECTION II.  RESOURCE ANALYSIS  (Use additional sheets if necessary    
 
(4) Resources Available: The United Way of America’s “2-1-1” call line to local 
resources which provides free community directory 24 hours a day, 365 days a year, has 
just become available to one of WAMY’s four counties; individual agencies publish 
directories of resources available for their constituencies, for instance, services for 
seniors or youth; the North Carolina Department of Commerce Share Network seeks to 
bring together workforce development partners, faith-based organizations, business and 
government entities to share resource information specific to each country; local efforts 
like the Avery County Resource Directory, originally updated by WAMY Community 
Action, but more recently maintained and revised through the concerted efforts of 
Western Youth Network, and Avery RAPS for Kids. 
 
(5) Resources Needed: Expansion of “2-1-1” into all counties; continued funding and 
marketing of online systems such as the Share Network; local collaborative efforts to 
produce widely available resource directories. 
 

SECTION III.  GOAL AND STRATEGY       
 
(6)  Long-Range Goal: To assist 1,200 individuals with information and referral services 
by June 30, 2014. 
 
(7)  Strategies for Achieving Long-Range Goal:  (Use asterisk to denote strategies to be 
implemented by agency) 
 
* Provide information and referral to the community on an as-needed basis upon request. 
* Assist in the creation and maintenance of county resource directories through 
collaboration with other service agencies and community organizations. 
* Remain an active partner in community collaborative efforts to share information about 
services (eg. JobLink Centers, Systems of Care, Continuum of Care, etc.) 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

011712 BCC Meeting

113



Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

One-Year Work Program 
Form 212 

        
 

Section I: Project Identification 
1.  Project Name: W.A.M.Y. Community Action, INC. 
2.  Poverty Cause Name: Lack of Education/Lack of Job Skills 
3.  Long-Range Goal: 
 
 

To increase by 52, the number of families with household incomes above the federal 
poverty guidelines by 6/30/2014. 

4.  Selected Strategy: 
 
 

Provide educational assistance through CSBG-funded Total Family Development 
Programming. 
 

5.  Project Period: July 1, 2012 To June 30, 2013 Plan Year  4 of 5 
6.  CSBG Funds Requested for this Project: $226,367 
7.  Total Number Expected to Be Served: 40 
           a. Expected Number of New Clients 24 
           b. Expected Number of Carryover  Clients 16 
8.  Number expected to be moved above Federal Poverty Guidelines this year (Self-Sufficiency 
     Projects): 

10 

9.  Percent of Long-Range Goal Expected to be Met this Year (For projects other than Self-  
     Sufficiency): 

 

 
Section II: One-Year CSBG Program Objective and Activities 

Activities Position Title(s) 
 

Implementation Schedule 
 

 
First 

Quarter 
Second 
Quarter 

Third 
Quarter 

Fourth 
Quarter 

 
Objective: To provide intensive development and 
support services to 40 low-income families in their 
efforts to become self-sufficient by 6/30/2013. 

  
16 

 

 
18 

(10) 

 
28 

(10) 

 
40 
(4) 

1) Identify staff training needs.  Promote staff 
development through in-service training, bi-
monthly CSBG staff meetings, and local and 
regional workshops. 

CSBG/Self-
Sufficiency 
Coordinator and 
Case Managers 

 
9/12 

 
12/12 

 
3/13 

 
6/13 

2) Assess progress towards goals, and status of 
participants enrolled in previous program 
year. 

CSBG/Self-
Sufficiency Coord. & 
Case Managers 

 
9/12 

 
12/12 

 
3/13 

 
6/13 

3) Discharge participants unwilling or unable to 
follow through with goals. 

CSBG Case 
Managers 

 
As 

needed 

 
“ 

 
“ 

 
“ 

011712 BCC Meeting

114



Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

One-Year Work Program 
Form 212 (continued) 

        
Section II: One-Year CSBG Program Objective and Activities 

 (continued) 

Activities Position Title(s) Implementation Schedule 
 

 
First 

Quarter 
Second 
Quarter 

Third 
Quarter 

Fourth 
Quarter 

 
4) Update comprehensive plans for families 

carried over to new program year, and as 
needed.      

CSBG Case Managers  
9/12 

 
--- 

 
--- 

 
--- 

5) Promote program through community 
education and collaboration with community 
agencies etc.  

 

CSBG/Self-Sufficiency 
Coordinator  

 
2+ times 
per qtr. 

 
“ 

 
“ 

 
“ 

6) Verify eligibility of potential applicants, 
including income at or below 100% of federal 
poverty guidelines, and residency in the 
service area. 

 

CSBG Case Manangers  
--- 

 
10 New 
clients 

 
10 New 
clients 

 
4 New 
clients 

 

7) Accept applications for participation, 
including survey of family situation, 
employment, housing, and health needs, 
education status, family strengths, and other 
relevant information 

CSBG Case Manangers  
--- 

 
10 New 
clients 

 
10 New 
clients 

 
4 New 
clients 

 

8) Ensure that a minimum of 40 families are 
enrolled during the program year, with first 
priority being given to Workfirst and WIA 
clients. 

CSBG Self-Sufficiency 
Prog. Coordinator 

 
--- 

 
12/12 

 
--- 

 
6/13 

9) Identify agency resources which are 
appropriate to each participant and their 
family: weatherization, microenterprise, 
afterschool program, clothing or household 
items available from agency thrift store, and 
refer as needed. 

CSBG Case Manangers  
All 

clients 
enrolled/

as 
needed 

 
“ 

 
“ 

 
“ 

10) Identify community resources appropriate to 
each family, and assist with referrals as 
needed. 

CSBG Case Manangers  
All 

clients 
enrolled/

as 
needed 

 
“ 

 
“ 

 
“ 

11) Develop comprehensive plans designed to 
improve each family’s condition, to include all 
assistance to be sought or provided during 
the development period, and action steps 
which will move the family towards self-
sufficiency.  Enter customer data in 
Accountable Results for Community Action 
(AR4CA). 

CSBG Case Manangers  
--- 

 
10 New 
clients 

 
10 New 
clients 

 
4 New 
clients 

 

011712 BCC Meeting

115



12) Define expectations and obligations of each 
family member, sharing copies of plans, 
goals, and action steps with the family. 

CSBG Case Manangers  
--- 

 
10 New 
clients 

 
10 New 
clients 

 
4 New 
clients 

 
13) Develop one-year agreement between 

participant and agency, explicitly defining 
terms and conditions of program 
participation. Ensure that families have a 
copy of all written agreements. 

CSBG Case Manangers  
--- 

 
10 New 
clients 

 
10 New 
clients 

 
4 New 
clients 

 

14) Review comprehensive plans and approve, 
or ensure appropriate revisions are made. 

CSBG Case Manangers  
9/12 

AR4CA 

 
12/12 

“ 

 
3/13 

“ 

 
6/13 

“ 
15) Apply non-CSBG funds to needs of the 

participants family as appropriate through 
referrals to WIA, Weatherization Assistance, 
HARRP, SBA Microbusiness, and non-
federal sources. 

CSBG Case Manangers  
All client 
enrolled/

as 
needed 

 
“ 

 
“ 

 
“ 

16) Assist participant families in obtaining 
needed resources through other agencies 
when appropriate. 

CSBG Case Manangers  
All client 
enrolled/

as 
needed 

 
“ 

 
“ 

 
“ 

17) Apply CSBG resources in average amount of 
$585 per family to meet individualized needs 
for the following: 
a) Transportation assistance: car repairs, 
tires, insurance, etc. 
b) Educational assistance: books, supplies, 
uniforms. 
c) Miscellaneous work or school-related 
necessities including clothing. 
d) Miscellaneous household needs  
e) Day Care 
f) Minimal emergency needs. 

CSBG Case Manangers     

18) Assist members of participant families to 
secure or upgrade employment as needed. 

CSBG Case Manangers  
All client 
enrolled/

as 
needed 

 
“ 

 
“ 

 
“ 

19) Provide counseling services to families in 
accordance with identified needs and 
strengths of each. Provide a minimum of two 
contacts per family per month. 

CSBG Case Manangers  
All client 
enrolled/

as 
needed 

 
“ 

 
“ 

 
“ 

20) Monitor progress of each family on a monthly 
basis, including progress towards identified 
goals and participant compliance with terms 
of written program agreement. 

CSBG Case Manangers     

21) Maintain up-to-date records of client 
contacts, services given, progress, referrals, 
and financial information on AR4CA system. 

CSBG Case Manangers     

22) Maintain complete central file of all 
participant program data.  Monitor input of 
customer data in AR4CA. 

CSBG Self-Sufficiency 
Prog. Coordinator 

    

011712 BCC Meeting

116



23) Evaluate program in accordance with 
approved evaluation plan. 

CSBG Self-Sufficiency 
Prog. Coordinator 

 
--- 

 
12/12 

 
--- 

 
6/13 

 

011712 BCC Meeting

117



Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

One-Year Work Program 
Form 212 (continued) 

 
10. Use the tables below to enter your agency’s projected outcome results (targets).  The outcome 

measures will be included in the agency’s CSBG contract.  
 
All CSBG grantees operating self-sufficiency projects are required to complete Table 1.  All CSBG 
grantees operating non self-sufficiency projects are required to enter applicable outcomes in the 
Table 2.  If your agency operates more than one non self-sufficiency project, please add tables as 
needed.  There should be one table of outcome measures per project. 

 
Table 1 

Outcome Measures for Self-Sufficiency Projects 
Project Name:  Expected to Achieve the 

Outcome in Reporting Period 
(Target) Outcome Measures 

Number of persons served 40 

The number of low-income families rising above the poverty level 10 

The average change in annual income per participant family  
(in whole #’s) 

$11,000 

The number of participants obtaining employment 10 

The number of participants obtaining jobs with medical benefits 9 

The participant average wage rate $12 

The number of participants completing education/training programs 16 

The number of participants securing standard housing 1 

The number of participants provided emergency assistance 25 

 
Table 2 

Outcome Measures for Non Self-Sufficiency Projects 
Project Name:  Expected to Achieve the 

Outcome in Reporting Period 
(Target) Outcome Measures 

Number of persons served  

  

  

  

  

011712 BCC Meeting

118



Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

One-Year Work Program 
Form 212 (continued) 

 
11. For Community Action Agencies that serve multiple counties, provide a breakdown of the expected number of persons served in each 

designated county in the table below.  Show the total number of persons served in the table. 
 
 

Number of Families to be Served Per County 
Agency Name: WAMY Community Action, Inc. 
Project Name: Total Family Development 
County Watauga Avery Mitchell  Yancey       Total 
Total Planned 19 7 6 8       40 

 
Project Name: 
County           Total 
Total Planned            

011712 BCC Meeting

119



Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

Monitoring, Assessment and Evaluation Plan 
 
 
1. Describe the role and responsibilities of the following in the assessment and evaluation of agency 
programs. 

 
Board of Directors:  Program data, including cost information, are compiled quarterly by the 
CSBG Program Coordinator for preparation of the Project Review Report.    The Planning and 
Evaluation Committee reviews this document, comparing progress to planned 
accomplishments. That committee makes recommendations for any programmatic changes 
indicated by the data. Two Board members representing the low-income sector serve on that 
committee.  Program updates, success stories, and customer testimonials are often an item on 
the agenda of board meetings to keep the members informed about the program.  Members of 
the Planning and Evaluation Committee review any activities that are a part of the planning 
process, including needs assessment tools and interpretation of data, and make suggestions for 
changes if necessary. 

Low-Income Community:  Through their representatives on the Board of Directors, low-
income persons participate in the assessment and evaluation of agency programs at the Board 
level.  Community needs assessments are targeted towards low-income residents through 
special outreach activities, such as working through social service networks  and channels 
known be used by this population. 

 Program Participants:  Participants in Total Family Development are invited to be active in 
the assessment and evaluation of the program by participating in intermittent focus groups and 
written evaluations to share their unique perspectives on  the program. Their insights and 
comments are seriously considered when fine-tuning the project and its activities. 

Others:  Notification of the availability of the CSBG proposed application is made throughout 
the service area by the most widely read news media to solicit a wide range of community 
input.  W.A.M.Y.’s Community needs assessment was distributed widely in order to receive a 
broad spectrum of opinions and community involvement. 
 
2. Describe how administrative policies and procedures are monitored by the Board of 
Directors:   
 
Administrative staff is charged with the responsibility of maintaining administrative policies 
and procedures in compliance with current applicable laws and governing regulations.  All 
staff is charged with the responsibility of adhering to approved administrative policies and 
procedures. 

      
Private auditors are engaged annually to audit both fiscal and programmatic operations of the 
Agency, including contract compliance.  Administrative policies and procedures are monitored 
during the audit process.  Audit findings are presented to the Board of Directors at the 
conclusion of each audit. 

     

011712 BCC Meeting

120



 MONITORING, ASSESSMENT AND EVALUATION PLAN 

                 
 

Administrative and supervisory staff conducts internal monitoring of administrative policies 
and procedures on an ongoing basis.  Minor problems are corrected as they are identified.  
Recommendations for any changes in policy, warranted either by changed regulations or by 
other causes, are presented to the appropriate board committee for consideration.               

                                                                                                                                                                                  
  The Board of Directors, or any committee of the Board, may request an administrative report of 
any policy or procedures at their discretion.  Staff gives full cooperation by preparing a 
comprehensive report of any area upon request. 
 
3.   Describe how the Board acts on monitoring, assessment and evaluation reports: 

 
Monitoring, assessment, and evaluation reports are usually first presented to the appropriate 
committee of the Board.  Agency audit reports may first be presented to the full Board of 
Directors. 

      
The committee reviews the report presented and determines if the report is sufficiently 
comprehensive or if additional information may be required.  Should additional information be 
necessary, staff is instructed as to such need.  The committee next reviews the final report and 
determines if the report indicates any needed changes in the areas covered. 
The committee presents the report to the full Board of Directors, along with any 
accompanying committee recommendations.  The Board of Directors then acts upon the 
committee report.  All evaluation reports are utilized as planning instruments for planning 
future programs.         

. 
4.  Describe the Board’s procedure for conducting the agency self-evaluation:   
 
Each year the upcoming year’s Community Services Block Grant Program Application for 
Funding is carefully reviewed by the Planning and Evaluation Committee of the Board of 
Directors.  If changes in the application are necessary, these are made before the application is 
submitted to the Board of Directors for its review and approval.  Special attention is given to 
the Monitoring, Assessment and Evaluation Plan detailed in the application. 

 
The Year-End Report of Project Outcomes is submitted to the Chairman of the Board and the 
Chairman of the Planning and Evaluation Committee and then to the Board for review.  After 
his/her annual review, the CSBG Program Analyst sends a report of his/her review of CSBG 
administrative and programmatic records. This report also goes through the same channels to 
the Board of Directors.  Thus, the Board is able to evaluate the activities of the agency and 
recommend any changes that seem to be needed or desirable at many times during the course 
of the year. 

 
    4(a) Summarize the results of the Board’s most recent self-evaluation, and indicate when the   
next evaluation will begin and be completed: 
 

The June 30, 2011 Year-End Evaluation of the OEO-funded program activities yielded the 
following results for Total Family Development: 

011712 BCC Meeting

121



MONITORING, ASSESSMENT AND EVALUATION PLAN 
             
 
*Fifty families were served. These families comprised 112 individuals.  Single parents 

headed 25 families.  As of June 30, 2011, 14 families rose above the poverty guidelines; 8 
obtained employment with an average wage rate of $13.73 an hour; 11 that obtained employment 
also were receiving health benefits; and 20 received emergency assistance.   The average increase 
in family income was $10,016 and 17 completed educational/training programs. 

 
The cost per family was $5,500. 
 
The next evaluation will begin July 1, 2012, and will be completed by July 31, 2012. 

 
5. List outcome measures to be used to monitor your agency’s success in promoting self-
sufficiency, family stability, and community revitalization: 

 
Outcome Measures: 

  
Number of low-income families rising above the poverty level. 
Average change in the annual income per participant family. 
Number  participants obtaining employment (as compared with the total # of participants). 
Number of jobs with medical benefits obtained. 
Participant average wage rate. 
Number of participants completing education/training programs. 
Number of participants securing standard housing. 
Number of participants provided emergency assistance. 

             
6.   All CSBG grantees are required to report on the outcome measures listed in the chart below.  
These outcome measures are also attached to the CSBG contract between your agency and our 
Office.  As a result of your agency’s planning process, please enter in Column A the projected 
outcome results (target) for each outcome measure.  
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

122



Community Services Block Grant Program 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 Application for Funding 

Administrative Support Worksheet 
Form 212A 

 
1. Administrative Support requested for 21st Century Community Learning Centers 

 
2. Total amount of Administrative Support requested:  $11,162 

3. Brief description of grant including the name of the funding source: Afterschool program in Avery 
County that assists at-risk students with tutoring, health and physical education as well as 
programs in career readiness and general awareness. 

4. Total Grant Amount:  $58,500 
5. Give the reason for requesting Administrative Support from CSBG and describe how the funds will 

be used:  (Attach supporting documentation in the Appendices) Program only allows 3% for indirect 
costs.  CSBG Admin Support funds will be used to allow the agency to continue operating the 
program without being in a deficit. 

6. How will the agency track the CSBG funds used for Administrative Support? Administrative support 
will be expended and reported monthly on the 286 form. 

7. Basis for determining amount of Administrative Support needed. Indirect Costs 
(Please select either Indirect Costs or Cost Allocation, not both.) 

Indirect Costs   
Indirect Cost Base Salaries 
Indirect Cost Rate %: 41% 
Indirect cost base mount for this grant: $48,000 
Percent indirect allowed by funding source for this 
grant: 

3% 

Dollar amount indirect allowed by funding source for 
this grant: 

$1440 
 

  
Cost Allocation  
Percent of administrative costs allowed by funding 
source for this grant %: 

% 

Dollar amount of administrative costs allowed by 
funding source for this grant: 

$ 

  
8. Actual numerical calculation used to 

determine Administrative Support needed: 
48,000 x 41% = $19,680  

$19,680 - $1,440 allowed by grant =$18,240 
(Only requesting $11,162) 

9. Administrative Support to be applied: 
(choose one) 

Monthly X 
Quarterly  
Annually  

 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

123



OEO Form 225N-The Budget Narrative 
 

Item Description 
Section III-Budget Summary 

Indirect Cost Rate Information Rate is 41% of salaries. Applied to cognizant 
agency for indirect cost rate approval 12/15/11 
and awaiting a response.  

Section IV-Salary and Wages 
Staff Names and Positions Debbie Bowman, CSBG Self-Sufficiency 

Coordinator; Colleen Bare, CSBG Self-
Sufficiency Specialist, Anita Buchanan, CSBG 
Self-Sufficiency Specialist.  All positions are 
100% CSBG 

Section IVa-Budget Support Data 
Fringe Benefits Colleen Bare is the only employee currently 

taking advantage of our health insurance plan.  
Our workers compensation rate increased for 
all staff.  

Communications No additional information 
Section IVb-Budget Support Data 

Equipment No new equipment is needed for the program. 
Section IVc-Budget Support Data 

Space Costs Rent changed somewhat due to change in 
programs occupying facilities.  In Avery, 
Mitchell and Yancey counties, CSBG will be the 
only program occupying the facility. 

Travel Mileage at .55 per mile 
Supplies/Materials  

Section IVd-Budget Support Data-Contractual 
Sub-contractor  
[DBA if applicable] 

Pitney Bowes Primary Contact Lane Wrenn 

Address/Phone 27 Waterview Drive, Shelton, CT 06484  800-203-2581 
Service Description Lease of a postage machine 
Payment Arrangement $447 quarterly Contract Duration 51 mos. (49 remaining) 
 
Sub-contractor  
[DBA if applicable] 

Toshiba Primary Contact Cathy Catoe 

Address/Phone One Town Square Blvd, Suite 215, Asheville, NC  28803  704-527-7995 
Service Description Lease of 2 copiers – Watauga and Avery County 
Payment Arrangement $329.52 monthly plus 

overages 
Contract Duration 36 mos. (19 remaining) 

 
Sub-contractor  
[DBA if applicable] 

Community Action 
Opportunities 

Primary Contact Ben Watts 

Address/Phone 25 Gaston Street, Asheville, NC  28801  828-252-2495 
Service Description AR4CA 
Payment Arrangement $5000 yr. (50% CSBG) Contract Duration 12 mos.  

011712 BCC Meeting

124



OEO Form 225N-The Budget Narrative Continued 
 

Section IVe-Budget Support Data 
Client Services  
Other Please note that the discrepancy in the county 

budgets is due to variation in rent costs and the 
application of admin support. 

 
 

 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

125



Blank Page 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

126



 
 

Community Services Block Grant [CSBG]  
Documentation of Submission to County Commissioners 

 
Background: The North Carolina Administrative Code [10A NCAC 97C.0111 (b)(1)(A)] requires that 
each CSBG grant recipient submit its Community Anti-Poverty Plan [grant application] to each 
County Commissioner Board that it serves. 
 
Instructions: This form is to be completed and notarized by the Clerk to the Board.  
 
 
Agency Name:   
 
County:       
 
Date of Application Submission:   
[Note: This application should be submitted to the County Commissioners at least thirty [30] days prior to 
application submission to the Office of Economic Opportunity [OEO].  The grant application is due OEO 
February 15, 2012.] 
 
Clerk to the Board should initial all items below. 
 
____  The agency submitted a complete grant application for Commissioner review. 
 
____ The Clerk to the Board will be responsible for assuring that the application is 

distributed to the Commissioners. 
 
____  Commissioners’ comments provided those to the agency. (If applicable) 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________  _________________________ 
Clerk to the Board       Date 
 
 
___________________________________  _________________________ 
Witness/Notary                     Date 
 

 

011712 BCC Meeting

127



OEO Form 225  Page   of    Pages 

Revised 09/15/2011  
WAMY Community Action, Inc.
SECTION IVe. - BUDGET SUPPORT DATA

COST CATEGORY Total Family Dev. (Insert Program 
Name)

(Insert Program 
Name)

(Insert Program 
Name) TOTAL

CLIENT SERVICES 
40 clients (approximately $585 per client) $23,400 $23,400
  Educational supports including books, supplies, fees $0
  Average $251.55 per client $0
  $0
  Transportation supports including fuel, repairs, tires $0
  Average $210.60 per client $0

$0
Other supports include daycare, health or dental care, $0
work or school related necessities, household needs, $0
and/or minimal emergency needs $0
   Average $122.85 per client $0

$0
$0
$0

TOTAL CLIENT SERVICES $23,400 $0 $0 $0 $23,400

OTHER (specify)

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

TOTAL OTHER $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

011712 BCC Meeting

128



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

GREEN VALLEY COMMUNITY PARK REQUEST 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Green Valley Park has received a grant in the amount of $5,300 for materials and gravel for 
repair and improvements to the driveway and parking areas.   Ms. Janice Carroll, President of the 
Green Valley Community Park, will request County forces to provide grading and hauling of 
gravel to the Green Valley Park.  Over the past several years, the County has assisted with 
multiple improvements to the park and should they default or cease to exist, the property reverts 
to the County.   
 
Should the Board grant the request, County staff is available to provide assistance depending on 
weather conditions.  Staff seeks direction from the Board.     
  

011712 BCC Meeting

129



011712 BCC Meeting

130



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE NORTH CAROLINA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION’S SECONDARY ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 
PROGRAM FOR FY 2012 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A public hearing has been scheduled to allow citizen comment on the Department of 
Transportation’s Secondary Roads Program for Fiscal Year 2012.  At the conclusion of the 
public hearing, by Statute, you may either endorse the plan or take no action.   
 
Direction from the Board is requested. 
 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

131



011712 BCC Meeting

132



011712 BCC Meeting

133



Blank Page 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

134



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MATTERS 

A.  Bid Award Requests for Rocky Knob Park 
 1.  Bike Skills Area 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Eric Woolridge, Watauga County TDA, will request the Board approve a contract with Trail 
Dynamics in an amount not to exceed $35,000 for the construction of a bike skills area.  The bike 
skills area is part of the match for the $500,000 PARTF grant for Rocky Knob Park.   
 
The WCTDA Board unanimously approved the contract at their January 10, 2012, meeting.  The 
contract has been reviewed by the County Attorney and requires Board approval to accept the 
contract with Trail Dynamics for an amount not to exceed $35,000.   
 
Direction from the Board is requested. 
 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

135



MEMO 
 
To: Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
From: Eric Woolridge, WCTDA Tourism Planner 
  
Date:  January 10, 2012 
 
Re:   Award of Bike Skills Area Contract for Rocky Knob Park 
 
 
As part of the current Watauga County Tourism Development Authority (WCTDA) 
general budget and specific budget for Rocky Knob Park, the WCTDA has allocated 
$35,000 for the development of a bike skills area at Rocky Knob Park. With the 
fulfillment of this project, along with the playground and shelter construction, the county 
will fulfill its obligation of the $500,000 Parks and Recreation Trust Fund grant. 
 
With the assistance of the county attorney, the WCTDA released a Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) for constructing the bike skills area. The county is now charged 
with selecting the most qualified firm to provide the work and negotiate a contract 
accordingly.  
 
Recommendation 
At their January 10, 2012 meeting, the WCTDA Board of Directors voted unanimously to 
recommend to the County Commissioners that they enter into a contract with Trail 
Dynamics to construct the bike skills area at Rocky Knob Park. Furthermore, the 
WCTDA Board recommends that WCTDA staff, along with the county attorney, 
negotiate the terms of an agreement and that the payment for such services shall not 
exceed the $35,000 currently budgeted by the WCTDA for this project. 
 
Why Trail Dynamics? Two firms submitted proposals (attached) to construct the bike 
skills area: Trail Dynamics and Benchmark Trails. Both of these firms have conducted 
previous work at Rocky Knob Park. WCTDA staff, after reviewing both proposals with 
board members of Boone Area Cyclists, feels that Trail Dynamics is the most qualified to 
implement this scope of work for the following reasons: 
 

1. Company Size. Trail Dynamics describes a sizable staff and an extensive fleet of 
equipment necessary to implement this project. Along with this, Trail Dynamics 
has committed to completing the project by Mid-May. 

2. Experience. Trail Dynamics has performed trail work all over the country, but 
particularly, they recently helped construct portions of Valmont Bike Park in 
Boulder, CO. This is a flagship bike skills area that is now drawing thousands of 
riders each year.  

3. Risk Management. Trail Dynamics is led by Woody Keen, who often serves as an 
expert witness for trail-related injury cases. The county attorney emphasized the 
need for appropriate risk management within the proposal. 

011712 BCC Meeting

136



Watauga County / WCtDa

Submitted by:

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC
5054 Drew Avenue South 
Minneapolis, MN 55410
Jeff Schoenbauer, Cofounder/RLA
612.578.1975

and

Benchmark Trails, Inc. 
9D  Victor St.
Greenville, SC 29609
Deno Contos, President
770.503.5993

5054 Drew Avenue South
MinneApoliS, MinneSotA 55410

612.578.1980 / 612.578.1975

ProPosal 
For 

roCky knob Park bike skills area ConstruCtion
 

as issueD by 
Watauga County anD the Watauga County tourism 

DeveloPment authority

Submittal Due Date: January 6, 2012

 

 

Rock Bridges 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Mini Suspension Bridge 

 
 
 
 

Rocky Knob Bike Skills Area 

011712 BCC Meeting

137



Watauga County / WCtDa

Rollers can be fun, if they are designed with the right crest spacing relative to height. Jeff 
and Deno designed these.  

011712 BCC Meeting

138



I

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC./Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

Table of Contents

1  Professional Qualifications   1

2  Project-related Work Portfolio 
 With references     7

3 Project aPProach     13

Deno, at work!

011712 BCC Meeting

139



ROCKY KNOB PARK – BIKE SKILLS AREA 

IIWatauga county / Wctda

Technical features 
designed and 
built by Jeff and 
Deno – from the 
simple to the more 
challenging. 

011712 BCC Meeting

140



1

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC./Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

Professional Qualifications 
statement of interest On behalf of the Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC/Benchmark Trails, Inc. team, 

we would like to thank Watauga County / WCTDA for the opportunity to 
present our proposal for ROCKY KNOB PARK – BIKE SKILLS AREA. As 
the statement describes, our team brings together a professional planning and 
landscape architect firm and a professional trail building company with the 
expertise, technical competence and flexibility to meet the unique challenges 
of this project. We are confident about our ability to work successfully with 
Watauga County/WCTDA to provide design-construction services that will 
result in a high quality mountain bike skills area that meets or exceeds your 
highest expectations for the project. The following provides the information as 
requested in the RFQ. Additional information will be provided upon request.  

Sincerely,

Jeff Schoenbauer, RLA, Cofounder, Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC 
Deno Contos, Owner, Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

a select team of 
sPecialists coming 
together for this 

uniQue Project 

schoenbauer consulting,  
llc 

5054 Drew Ave. S.
Minneapolis, MN 55410

Jeff Schoenbauer, Senior Principal, 
Cofounder

612.578.1975
jaschoenbauer@gmail.com

benchmark trails, inc. 
9D  Victor St.

Greenville, SC 29609
Deno Contos, President

770.503.5993
deno@benchmarktrails.com

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC and Benchmark Trails, Inc. have teamed 
up to bring together a select group of professional designers, construction 
managers and construction specialists to work with Watauga County/WCTDA 
to complete the mountain bike skills area at Rocky Knob Park.  

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC is a planning and design firm specializing 
in projects that add value to the public realm. Working exclusively on the 
public side, the firm provides professional landscape architecture, planning, 
and construction management services. With literally hundreds of public 
projects over the course of his 30-year career, the lead principal of the firm has 
extensive, relevant experience with projects of similar type, size, complexity, 
and importance as this project. Areas of practice include:

• Natural and hard surfaced trails – planning, design, and development 
• Local and regional park, open space and, trail system planning 
• Public outreach and research – to inform decision-making
• National, state, and local standards – parks, trails, and recreation facilities 
• Local, regional, and state parks and recreational facilities – master 

planning, design, and development
• Community planning – maximizing the public value of private 

development
• Natural open space and conservation corridor (greenway) planning
• Alternative transportation plans, with a focus on healthy living by design
• Public campground planning, design, and development

Benchmark Trails’ mission is to provide high quality trail services that 
includes design, planning, construction and education. The company 
routinely works with public agencies to design and develop a wide variety of 
natural-surfaced trails, including mountain bike trails that satisfy the demands 
of beginner through expert riders. The company places particular emphasis 
on developing sustainable trails and maintaining the aesthetics of the natural 
setting without compromising user enjoyment. Benchmark Trails has been a 
member of the Professional Trail Builders Association since 2003. 

1

Prime contacts

011712 BCC Meeting

141



ROCKY KNOB PARK – BIKE SKILLS AREA 

2Watauga county / Wctda

core comPetencies related to the mountain bike skills 
area at rocky knob Park 
Our team provides a unique set of professional design expertise and 
construction experience that make us uniquely qualified for this project. Our 
core competencies include direct involvement in: 

• Preparing design guidelines for natural surfaced trails – nationally-
recognized author of guidelines and standards for developing paved and 
natural surfaced trails – which involved field review of thousands of miles 
of trails across the country to discern best practices  

• Design and construction – hands-on work designing and building 
natural-surfaced trails and features for a variety of uses, with a focus on 
mountain bike trails in park-like settings; extensive experience with the 
use of “rolling grade” trails as defined in MN DNR’s Trail Planning, 
Design, and Development Guidelines, and publications by IMBA

• Trail-related education – including being featured speakers at national 
conferences on a host of trail-related subjects

• Trail advocacy – which connects us with the mountain bike community 
and biking industry, allowing for an up-to-date understanding of emerging 
trends in trail design and technical features

• Enhancing trail sustainability – through our direct involvement in all 
aspects of creating sustainable natural-surfaced trails – from construction 
through ongoing operation and maintenance

• Public process and outreach – which gives us the capacity to work with 
Watauga County/WCTDA to keep the local community and interest groups 
involved, informed on progress, enhance public support for the project and 
establish a baseline for marketing  

Value-added exPerience Pertinent to the skills area 
deVeloPment at rocky knob Park 
Given the importance of achieving a high quality outcome for this recreational 
endeavor, our team also adds value by offering the following:  

• Capacity to provide onsite construction management from beginning 
to end by those listed in our proposal – ensuring direct oversight of all 
aspects of concept planning, field design, construction, and quality control 
by those with the right experience; in other words, at no time will key 
project tasks be “handed down” to others

• Commitment to involving various project partners from Watauga 
County in design and construction decisions – making sure all final 
design and construction decisions are in alignment with the overall vision 
for the facility

• Commitment to working with Watauga County/WCTDA to identify 
and manage liability issues – while providing an enjoyable, challenging 
skills area that is also safe (relative to context) 

• Commitment to staying abreast of trends within the mountain bike 
industry – and to building the types of trails and trail features needed to 
attract repeated use of the facility

One of the strengths of our team is that all work tasks will be handled 
directly by experienced professionals and construction specialists who 
have a vested interested in the success of the project, thus ensuring:

• Continuity in project flow
• Accountability for outcomes and quality
• Timely completion 
• Direct communication with principals-in-charge

our team 

011712 BCC Meeting

142



3

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC./Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

Watauga county / Wctda 

Watauga county / WCTDA 
Project team 

general Project oVersight and 
contract administration

schoenbauer consulting/
benchmark trails

team
design, construction, construction 

oVersight

jeff schoenbauer
- concePt and field design - 

- landscaPe architect -
- technical sPecialist -

deno contos
- construction Project manager - 

- designer -
- technical sPecialist -

Jeff and Deno will work directly with local 
project partners to design a compelling 
skills area that is fun and safe, in a relative 
context. 

As construction manager, Deno will be 
involved in all aspects of building the skills 
area – from field design through building 
trails and structures. 

The following team structure and bios highlight the names, qualifications, and 
roles of key members of our team. 

011712 BCC Meeting

143



ROCKY KNOB PARK – BIKE SKILLS AREA 

4Watauga county / Wctda

jeff schoenbauer
Cofounder, Schoenbauer 

Consulting
 Registered Landscape Architect 

Lic. #19288 (MN)

Project Role: 
Design Project Manager
Landscape Architecture/

Trail Designer
Team Coordinator

Jeff Schoenbauer is CEO of Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC., a firm he 
cofounded in 2008 to focus on specific types of specialty projects related 
to public parks, trails, open space, recreation-related facilities and 
community planning. Prior to establishing his own firm, Jeff was a Senior 
Principal with Brauer & Associates, Ltd., where he gained much of his 30 
years experience working in his area of specialization. 

Jeff has extensive experience with managing controversial and complex public 
projects, with a capacity for working with diverse personalities and resolving 
conflicts through a consensus building approach. Jeff has also gained a 
reputation as an innovator – always looking for new possibilities and striving 
for ways to maximize the value of public projects. His most recent project of 
overseeing the design and construction of an extensive mountain bike trail 
system at the Cuyuna Country State Recreation Area (MN DNR) exhibits the 
breadth of pertinent experience that Jeff brings to this project. 

Key Qualifications: 
• Project manager, lead designer, project and construction manager for 

all aspects of developing the Cuyuna Country State Recreation Area 
Mountain Bike Trail

•  Designer on a wide range of natural surface trails and related features, 
recently including Phase II mountain bike trails at Rocky Knob Park and 
skills area at Lebanon Hills Regional Park (MN) 

•  Principal author of MN DNR’s Trail Planning, Design, and 
Development Guidelines – including sections related to natural surface 
trails 

• Project manager on a wide cross-section of planning, design, and 
construction projects over the last 30 years, including many regional and 
state-level park and trail master plans that include natural surfaced trails 

•  Nationally recognized trail planning and design expert, routinely 
presenting on the subject across the country 

•  Author or coauthor of a number of national publications, including the 
National Park, Recreation, Open Space, and Greenway Guidelines (NRPA) 
and Urban Planning and Design Standards Guidelines for Park and Trail 
System Planning (APA) 

•  Routine presenter at conferences across the country – recent conference 
engagements include: Three Rivers Park District’s Ask-the-Park-Expert 
Panel Discussion, Mid-America Trails and Greenways, MRPA, NRPA, 
Best Practices for Parks and Outdoor Recreation Summit and Workshops, 
American Trails, APA-Minnesota Chapter and Government Training 
Services workshop series

TRAIL PLANNING, DESIGN, 
AND DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

T  R  A  I  L  S    A  N  D    W  A  T  E  R  W  A  Y  S

                     S H A R E D  U S E   P A V E D   T R A I L S
N A T U R A L   S U R F A C E   T R A I L S

                          W I N T E R - U S E   T R A I L S
                                                             B I K E W A Y S

Related Project Experience:
Jeff was the project manager and/
or lead planner/designer for all of 

the Schoenbauer Consulting and 
Brauer projects illustrated under 
Project-Related  Work Portfolio

Jeff, left, and Deno, right, leading a discussion 
about field design decisions at Cuyuna Country State 
Recreation Area (MN DNR) 

011712 BCC Meeting

144



5

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC./Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

deno contos 
Owner, Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

 
Project Role 

Construction Manager 
Field Designer

Technical Specialist

Deno Contos is the owner & President of Benchmark Trails, a company 
specializing in the development of natural-surfaced trails across the 
country. Deno’s company evolved from his passion for building high 
quality trails for mountain biking and hiking. He also came to recognize that 
volunteer efforts, which remain important, needed to be augmented with the 
expertise and equipment of professional trail builders in order to build high 
quality, sustainable trails. Working both as an advocate and professional trail 
builder, Deno routinely works with public agencies to design and develop bike 
trails that satisfy the demands of beginner through expert riders within the 
context of public park and open space settings. 

Key Qualifications: 
• Lead professional trail builder for the Cuyuna Country State 

Recreation Area mountain bike trail system, where he worked 
day-to-day with Jeff over a 5-month period to build 22 miles of high 
quality trails 

• 15 years of trail building experience on a wide range of trails in varying 
landscapes

• Worked full-time in both state government and non-profit 
organization trail programs 

• Successfully owned and operated a landscape design-build firm prior 
to shifting his focus to trail design and construction

• Since 1997, has planned and performed trail education workshops, 
lectures, and conference presentations on a variety of topics, most recently 
at the SC State Trails and Greenway Conference (Fall 2010)

• Continues to be a local trail club volunteer and mountain biker  

Deno is the backbone of 
Benchmark Trails and 
will be onsite day-to-day 
working on field 
design and leading the 
construction crews. 

additional Project 
team members 

(as-needed basis)

Based on our current understanding of the project, our team as proposed has 
the qualifications to address the design and construction issues associated with 
all aspects of building a sustainable skills area on this site. 

The only potential exception to our team as outlined relates to 
engineering-related requirements as encountered, in which the services of 
an engineer may be necessary. In such a case, we will work with Watauga 
County/WCTDA staff to select a locally-based engineering firm to perform 
those services. 

011712 BCC Meeting

145



ROCKY KNOB PARK – BIKE SKILLS AREA 

6Watauga county / Wctda

Mountain bike trails at Cuyuna Country State Recreation Area, built summer and fall of 2010. Jeff was the Owner’s Representative for 
MN DNR and lead designer for the project. Deno was the lead professional trail builder and field designer. 

011712 BCC Meeting

146



7

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC./Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

Project-Related Work 
Portfolio with References

2

The following portfolio of work highlights a cross-section of our team’s 
experience dealing with issues pertinent to developing natural-surfaced 
trails. Project references are also listed. Note that these are only a few of 
the hundreds of successful public park and trail projects completed by team 
members over the last several decades of professional work. Additional 
project experience can be provided upon request. 

Trail Planning, Design, and Development Guidelines – MN DNR
Forrest Boe, MN DNR Parks and Trails, 651.259.5615

Jeff Schoenbauer was the lead author of a comprehensive trail manual 
covering all aspects of trail planning, design, and development for use by 
public agencies across the state, professional planners, designers, and lay 
persons interested in trails. The project involved securing input from trail 
advocates from across the country to ensure that the manual reflects the 
best, most sustainable practices available. The manual received two major 
awards, including 2007 Achievement Award from the National Coalition for 
Recreational Trails – the highest national award available – and a 2008 Merit 
Award from MASLA. The manual was published in March 2007.

Jeff reviewed the design and performance of literally thousands of miles of 
trails and interviewed experts from across the country in determining the best 
practices for developing all classifications of trails, including mountain bike 
trails.   

TRAIL PLANNING, DESIGN, 
AND DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

T  R  A  I  L  S    A  N  D    W  A  T  E  R  W  A  Y  S

                     S H A R E D  U S E   P A V E D   T R A I L S
N A T U R A L   S U R F A C E   T R A I L S

                          W I N T E R - U S E   T R A I L S
                                                             B I K E W A Y S

Jeff’s investigation of sustainable 
practices for natural-surfaced 
trails has taken him across North 
America, ranging from... ... trails in Yellowstone NP (nice scenery, 

but poor trail surfacing design) to...
... trails in Olympic NP (lots of rain 
reinforces need for rolling-grade) to...

... trails in Cascade NP to... ... trails in Alaska (boardwalk technical 
feature across a boggy area) 

Jeff Schoenbauer’s experience!

Project reference

011712 BCC Meeting

147



ROCKY KNOB PARK – BIKE SKILLS AREA 

8Watauga county / Wctda

Cuyuna Country State Recreation Area - Mountain Bike Trail System 
MN DNR – Larry Peterson – 651.592.4446 / Steve Weber – 218.546.5926 

Development of the mountain bike trail system within the Cuyuna Country 
State Recreation Area in central Minnesota is perhaps the best example of 
our team’s capabilities. Working under a federal grant, Jeff collaborated with 
MN DNR over the course of several years to design and build the project. 
From the project’s onset, the overarching goal was to develop a world class 
mountain biking destination that will draw riders from across the region. Of 
equal importance is the stated goal that this trail system should become one 
of  DNR’s cornerstone facilities as it implements it strategic plan focusing 
on providing quality facilities to entice more people to participate in outdoor 
recreation –a major area of concern for the agency. 

With quality as the mantra, development of the trails focused on providing 
riding opportunities for beginners through expert riders that were 
fun, challenging, safe (in relative context), and a rewarding outdoor 
experience. Developed in a long abandoned mining area, the 22 miles of 
trails are spread out across a series of “hills,” each of which were purposefully 
designed to exhibit a unique personality and level of challenge, as the 
accompanying photos illustrate.  

For this project, Jeff was the overall project manager, lead designer, and 
construction manager. Working under a general contractor, Deno was 
the lead professional trail builder, which was a requirement in the project 
specifications. Over a five-month period, Jeff and Deno worked together 
day-to-day in the field on designing and constructing high quality trails and 
trail features that met the owner’s expectations of quality.  Although just 
completed in fall 2010, the trails are already receiving high praise from the 
mountain bike community. Formal opening wasspring, 2011. 

From initial design through finished 
construction, Jeff oversaw all aspects of the 
project working as a consultant to MN DNR. 

Jeff and Deno worked 
together over a 5-month 
period to develop 
sustainable, fun, and 
challenging trails with 
many “personalities” ... 

... that was carried 
through the development 
of technical features to add 
excitement and challenge 
for riders of varying ability. 

011712 BCC Meeting

148



9

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC./Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

Lebanon Hills Regional Park Beginner/Intermediate Skills Trail and 
Skills Area Design 
Tim Wegner – TrailSource, Inc. – 612.845.1345 

Lebanon Hills is a 2600 acre regional park located in Eagan, MN and exhibits 
varied land forms, lakes, streams, marshes, flora and fauna, and provides 
an extensive array of outdoor recreational opportunities. In 2011, Jeff 
worked with a local trail builder on the design for a one + mile beginner to 
intermediate skills trail, plus a 150’ x 150’ skills development area near a new 
trailhead. The project is expected to open in the spring of 2012. 

• Lake Minnewashta Regional Park MP – Carver County
• Spring Lake Regional Park MP – Scott County
• St. Croix Bluffs Regional Park MP – Washington County 
• Rice Creek Chain of Lakes Regional Park Reserve MP – Anoka 

County
• St. Croix Valley Regional Trail MP – Washington County

• Cottage Grove Ravine Regional Park MP – Washington County
• Quarry Park MP – Stearns County 
• Lebanon Hills Regional Park MP – Dakota County
• Bunker Hills Regional Park MP – Anoka County
• Spring Lake Park Reserve MP – Dakota County 
• Lake Waconia Regional Park MP – Carver County 

Regional-Level Projects of Significance:

In each case, the layout of the trail system was based on using sustainable 
practices consistent with those we would propose for this project. The 
following highlights a few of these and other projects in greater detail. 

Regional-Level Park Planning/Design with Natural-Surfaced Trails  

As a principal with Brauer & Associates, Ltd., Jeff was the project manager 
on a multitude of regional-level park master plans that included laying out 
a system of natural-surfaced trails for mountain biking and hiking. The 
following list highlights a cross-section of these parks.

 

 

Rock Bridges 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Mini Suspension Bridge 

 
 
 
 

Rocky Knob Bike Skills Area 

Jeff prepared the design 
package for the skills 
trail (shown) and skills 
development area included 
under this phase of 
development.

Including features like this mini-suspension bridge adds 
to the appeal of the skills area, yet poses minimal risk 
to ride. 

011712 BCC Meeting

149



ROCKY KNOB PARK – BIKE SKILLS AREA 

10Watauga county / Wctda

Sportsman Lake Mountain Bike Trail – Cullman County Alabama
Bill St. John – 256.734.2114 – St. John & Associates, Inc.
Sammie Danford – 256.775.4696 – Cullman County Commission, AL

Deno’s company built over 3 miles of beginner to intermediate bike trails, 
which are also open to hikers and trail runners. All trails were planned, 
designed and built using standards that achieve long term sustainability. To 
add interest and challenge, stone drop-off skills features were incorporated 
along “B” lines. Bridges were also used to span creeks. 

As the photo highlights, Deno is well-versed in the use of rolling 
grade techniques to create sustainable trails that are also fun to 
ride. 

Bartram Trail, Clarks Hill,  – U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Ranger Pepper Shields – 864.333.1147 – U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 
Clarks Hill, SC

Deno’s company built a 9 mile bike/hike trail that included bridges for creek 
crossings, extensive use of stone and concrete armoring, and skill features 
constructed out of stone were used to provide challenge and diversity to 
the trail system. As with his other projects, Deno was involved in planning, 
designing and building the trail using sustainable trail design standards. 

Kanuga Mountain Bike Trail – Paris Mountain State Park
Crystal Robinson – 803.734.4225 – South Carolina State Parks, Columbia, SC

Deno’s company constructed 1.5 miles of singletrack, along with stone 
armoring and stone headwalls to ensure long-term sustainability. 

011712 BCC Meeting

150



11

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC./Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

Riley Creek Conservation Area Nature Trail and Bridges
Eden Prairie Parks – Jay Lotthammer, Director – 952.949.8440

Jeff prepared a master plan and construction documents and managed 
development of a nature trail and bridge system within the Riley Creek 
Conservation Area. The main challenge was integrating the trail system within 
the context of a protected woodland and steep, erodible slopes along Riley 
Creek. 

Jeff worked extensively in the field with the contractor to field design and construct the 
trail along Riley Creek. As the photos highlight, “rolling grade” technique was extensively 
used to ensure that these native soil trails will remain stable and sustainable from many 
years to come, with minimal maintenance.  

Lower Purgatory Creek Conservation Area Nature Trail and Bridges
Eden Prairie Parks – Jay Lotthammer, Director – 952.949.8440

Jeff prepared a master plan and construction documents and managed 
development of a nature trail and bridge system within the Lower Purgatory 
Creek Conservation Area. Even more so than at Riley Creek, the main 
challenge was integrating the trail system within the context of steep, erodible 
slopes along the creek. 

As the photo highlights, “rolling grade” technique was 
extensively used here as well to ensure that these native soil trails 
will remain stable and sustainable from many years to come, with 
minimal maintenance.  

Rocky Knob Phase II Mountain Bike Trail Development 

The project focused on developing a challenging purpose-built mountain 
bike trail to draw more outdoor enthusiasts to the recreation area surrounding 
Boone, NC. As with the Cuyuna Country State Recreation Area mountain bike 
trail, emphasis was placed on quality over quantity to ensure riders will return 
time and again. 

Essentially developed on the side of a mountain, the 5+ miles of trails 
designed and built under this phase provides riders with a rolling grade and 

flowing trail that takes advantage of rocky outcrops, views, 
and varying terrain. The long downhill section is particularly 
compelling, with a multitude of bermed turns and a sequence 
of events that make for a fun ride down the mountain that is 
still ridable for most skill levels.  

For this project, Jeff and Deno worked in concert to field 
design the trail, with Deno leading the construction process. 

011712 BCC Meeting

151



ROCKY KNOB PARK – BIKE SKILLS AREA 

12Watauga county / Wctda

Elm Creek Park Reserve Mountain Bike Trail – Three Rivers Park 
District (MN) 
Tim Wegner - 612.845.1345 – TrailSource, LLC, Rosemount, MN
Jay Thompson – 763.694.2071 – Three Rivers Park District, MN

Deno’s company teamed with another local trail builder to construct 10 miles 
of purpose-built mountain bike trail in a regional park reserve outside of 
Minneapolis. In addition to providing his construction expertise to the project,  
Jackson provided oversight of the trail crew to ensure that the project was 
built to desirable standards and efficiently completed prior to winter setting in. 

Croft Passage of the Palmetto Trail, Croft State Park, SC  – Palmetto 
Conservation Foundation
Jim Majors – 864.233.7576 – Palmetto Conservation Foundation,
Greenville, SC

Deno’s company constructed 5.25 miles of bike/hike trail, a 35-foot timber 
bridge, reconstructed 15 miles of existing trail/roadbed, constructed 60’ 
fiberglass bridge with concrete abutments and 32’ timber bridge ramp. 

Flatiron Vista Bike Trail
Clay Malcolm – 303.441.1857 – City of Boulder Colorado, Mountain Parks & 
Open Space

Deno’s company built 3 miles of new trail and converted double track to 
single track for hikers, trail runners and horses. All of the trails were planned, 
designed and built using trail standards that achieve long term sustainability. 
The project also included numerous technical features, such as stone retaining 
walls, steps and stone headwalls around culverts. 

011712 BCC Meeting

152



13

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC./Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

Project Approach3
The following project approach provides an overview of how we envision 
approaching this project to achieve desired ends. Please note that the outline 
is based on our current understanding of the project, and we fully expect 
to work with staff to refine our scope of services to meet your needs. 

Project 
understanding

Based on review of the RFQ, past experience with the site, and discussions 
with staff, the following outlines our understanding of the project.  

scoPe of Work

The RFQ calls for the following main components: 
• Construct a bike skills facility making use of the many natural rocks found 

throughout the site upon a site within an approximately 50 x 50 yard 
wooded area

• Recommend opportunities extending beyond the defined area
• A progression element to the facility is required, and the facility shall 

include skinnys, log rides, and wooden and natural ramps
• Risk management shall be emphasized and meet or exceed safety features 

and risk management practices standard in the field
• Adequate park signage is also required, for which Professional must assist 

with draft language and installation
• This is a partnership project, in which some of the labor may be donated or 

volunteered (but should not be considered as guaranteed to be available as 
part of this request for proposals)

We understand also that the selected Professional will be retained to work 
as the construction manager to coordinate and oversee construction of the 
skills park, fully carry out installation, and provide to training to Tourism 
Development Authority staff and operation managers concerning operation 
and maintenance of the facility.  The selected Professional is responsible for 
ensuring that the finished product is of excellent quality regardless of whether 
the labor was paid, volunteered, or donated.

As defined in the RFQ, we understand that the bike skills park shall provide 
opportunity for users of all skill levels (i.e., beginner, intermediate, and 
advanced), with the following considerations shall be addressed:

• Involvement of users and the TDA in the development phase
• Construction disturbances shall be limited to the 50x50 site unless 

authorized otherwise 
• Drainage must be retained and managed on the site
• Acceptable construction materials shall be of the highest quality and 

include earth, wood, stone, steel, and construction aggregate,
• Specification and sourcing of imported fill suitable for use in construction 

of the earth structures of the bike skills park
• Other considerations and issues raised by users, the County, and the TDA 

during the project

With respect to use and maintenance issues, we understand the following shall 
be addressed:

• Risk mitigation and user safety

Note that we anticipate that wood 
materials will be imported, and 
stone and soil fill will be salvaged/
mined from site!

011712 BCC Meeting

153



ROCKY KNOB PARK – BIKE SKILLS AREA 

14Watauga county / Wctda

• Training of users and TDA and County staff in facility assessment, 
maintenance, and repair,

• Use and maintenance issues raised by users, the County, and the TDA 
during the project construction or development

All work proposed or to be performed is to be performed to the satisfaction of 
Watauga County Tourism Development Authority Director Eric Woolridge or 
a successor designee to be named by the Watauga County Commissioners.

Finally, we understand that the Watauga County TDA has allocated no 
more than $35,000 for this project. 

bid reQuirements

In addition to the listed Scope of Work items, the RFQ calls for the following 
(note: any significant clarifications that affect approach and costs are 
highlighted in red):

• Contractor/Professional shall work on this project until it is completed, 
with the project being completed by June 30th, 2012

• Professional shall provide shop drawings, plans, and as built drawings of 
the skills area, if created, and the same shall become the sole property of 
the TDA upon project completion. (Preparation of formal shop drawings 
and final as built drawings will be provided as requested.)  

• Only materials of the highest quality shall be used. (As noted, with the 
exception of wood and fasteners, use of onsite materials is anticipated for 
the project.) 

• Professional, subprofessionals and all persons involved in this project shall 
be qualified by training and experience to perform the work required under 
this proposal.

• Professional shall have a fiduciary duty to County to ensure that all 
materials used are of the highest quality and that all work performed is 
performed in a workman-like manner, and free of defects. (All materials 
used will be as approved by Owner.)  

• Professional shall be responsible for all administrative costs.
• All materials used in this project shall be free of liens.
• No change orders or additional work shall commence or proceed unless 

authorized and agreed upon in writing by both parties.
• Work performed by the Professional shall be completed in compliance 

with the specifications set forth herein and shall be performed to the 
satisfaction of the Director of Tourism and Development for Watauga 
County.

• Professional shall warrant the facility to be free from structural defects and 
defects in workmanship under normal use and service for a period of two 
years. 

• If a dispute arises regarding this project, the parties agree to conduct 
pre-litigation meditation, consistent with the rules of Mediated Settlement 
Conferences for the Superior Court of North Carolina, prior to the filing 
of any suit arising out of this Contract.  In the event of any dispute, the 
appropriate forum for resolution of said dispute shall be in Watauga 
County, North Carolina.

• TDA shall not be responsible for incidental or consequential damages as a 
result of any breach of this contract, or for any Acts of God, fire, riot, war, 
civil unrest, or impossibility beyond the control of TDA.

• Professional shall maintain workers compensation insurance coverage 
upon all employees working upon this project, and provide proof of same 
to Watauga County upon signing of the contract

011712 BCC Meeting

154



15

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC./Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

O&M 
Sustainability

Ecological 
Sustainability

Entails developing a skills area that appeals to beginner and experienced 
mountain bikers alike – to which they will return to time and again. This 
centers on doing due diligence with the project partners to make sure the type 
of amenities being offered are indeed valued by targeted user groups. 

Entails adhering to baseline 
principles defined in MN DNR’s 
trail manual and other pertinent 
publications related to minimizing 
the impacts of trail construction to 
surrounding natural environments 
and ecological systems. 

Entails doing due diligence 
on minimizing the 
long-term costs and staffing 
requirements associated 
with taking care of the 
features that are built. 

commitment to 
sustainable Practices 

As was the case with our past work on the site, the Schoenbauer Consulting/
Benchmark Trails team understands the need for, and is committed to, using 
leading-edge trail practices to ensure that the skills area we design and build 
will remain sustainable and safe for many years to come, as the following 
illustration highlights. 

Throughout the course of the project, our team will work closely with 
Watauga County/WCTDA staff and any other project partner to make 
sure that the long-term sustainability of the skills area is given due 
consideration – in terms of its initial design as well as ecological impacts and 
the practical aspects of operations and maintenance. 

Recreational 
Sustainability

Includes balancing 
the needs of “hard 
core” mountain bikers 
with those that are 
just learning to ride 
purpose-built trails.

commitment to the 
nuances that matter

The Schoenbauer Consulting/Benchmark Trails team approach to designing 
and building the skills area is once again driven by the principles of 
landscape architecture and sustainable design standards. Contrary to what 
often seems to be the case, we do not view this project as simply an exercise 
of laying out a few skills features in the dirt. Instead, we are committed to 
paying attention to the nuances of design that matter to mountain bikers 
and create a compelling outdoor experience. The following highlights a 
few of the design nuances that we are familiar with and will take seriously in 
designing the skills area. 

using our Professional and Personal exPeriences With 
natural-surfaced trails and trail features as stePPing 
stones 
The Schoenbauer Consulting/Benchmark Trails team members have had the 
good fortune to work on a variety of trail and skills areas projects over the 
years – from master planning through design and construction. Of perhaps 
equal value are the personal experiences team members have from using 
thousands of miles of trails across North America. All of these past projects 
and personal experiences with trails will be used as stepping stones in 
designing the skills area at Rocky Knob Park. Our collective experience 
enables us to be very effective in dealing with the many issues that will arise 
during this project. 

boone area cyclists as a major Project Partner

As was the case with previous work our team recently completed at Rocky 
Knob, we very much look forward to working closely with BAC to develop a 
creative and unique, destination-quality skills area.  

011712 BCC Meeting

155



ROCKY KNOB PARK – BIKE SKILLS AREA 

16Watauga county / Wctda

An equally compelling aspect of our experience is that it provides us with 
the tools necessary to strive for new ideas, perspectives, and “ways of doing 
things” that establish new standards. With all of our projects, we strive to 
“raise the bar” for design outcomes. 

a commitment to defining, understanding and 
accommodating targeted user grouPs 
The Schoenbauer Consulting/Benchmark Trails team asserts that a 
state-of-the-art facility is only valuable if it successfully accommodates 
the targeted user groups. As such, our team is committed to designing the 
skills area based on: 1) a solid understanding of the spectrum of trail users to 
be accommodated and the experiences that each seeks; and 2) a thoughtful 
evaluation of how each type of trail user is best accommodated. Our goal, 
in concert with Watauga County, is to make sure that this issue is given due 
consideration. 

safety 
Above all, the relative safety of the trail is one of our foremost design 
concerns and one that trail riders also take seriously. In this instance, we 
consider safety in a couple of ways: 1) the physical safety of the rider relative 
to the trail’s level of difficulty; and 2) the personal safety/security of the trail 
user relative to the surrounding area. Although the latter of these is more 
subjective and individual, interviews with trail riders (especially females) 
suggest that this is a key factor in their decision to stay or return to a  trail. 
Fortunately, good, informed design can provide the visual cues that enhance 
a person’s sense of safety and security. We will work with Watauga County/
WCTDA staff on defining these nuances and addressing them in the design. 

sense of Place / seQuence of eVents

Respecting and taking advantage of the sense of place that the site offers 
is important to shaping the trail user’s experience and getting them 
excited about being there – and returning. The Schoenbauer Consulting/ 
Benchmark Trails team will begin the process of shaping the user experience 
from the point of entrance, then carry that through along the entire trail as a 
sequence of events. This involves paying attention to the nuances in landforms 
and scenic opportunities in order to maximize the user experience. We will 
also provide the necessary wayfinding signage and visual cues to guide trail 
users.

011712 BCC Meeting

156



17

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC./Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

As with our past work at Rocky Knob, the Schoenbauer Consulting/
Benchmark Trails team appreciates that building the skills area will include 
contributions from a number of project partners, each having distinct and 
important roles. At a minimum, we anticipate the following: 

• Watauga County/WCTDA staff –  will be full partners in the design 
process, making sure that all project outcomes are consistent with the 
larger park master plan; also provide general project oversight and 
administration of contract 

• Boone Area Cyclists – will assist in making sure that design ideas are 
consistent with need and that design features are “field tested” to ensure 
that they achieve desired intent and will appeal to the targeted user group 
and level of challenge; also directly participate in construction 

• Public at-large – individuals or groups that may have an opinion on the 
trail, want information, and have person concerns about the project

Our primary goal is to collaborate with Watauga County/WCTDA and all 
other project partners (listed or otherwise) to solicit ideas/perspectives on 
detail design issues and understand concerns that will result in the best 
experience for the user within the context of what is appropriate for this site. 
In addition to creating a great recreational experience, we will also be diligent 
about implementing skills features that are safe (relative to the activity), 
sustainable, and do not conflict with other current and future site uses. 

We are also comfortable working in concert with Watauga County/WCTDA 
staff in managing the involvement of the various partners in a respectful, 
good-faith manner to ensure that their input is appreciated and serves to better 
the end product. Note, however, that in making field decisions, we see our 
primary responsibility as acting in good faith to make decisions that are in the 
best interest of  Watauga County. 

managing liability concerns

The Schoenbauer Consulting/Benchmark Trails team appreciates that a 
mountain bike trail poses inherent user risk and responsibility that can exceed 
that of other activities. To ensure a common understanding of this issue and 
what is and is not acceptable risk, we recommend including a discussion 
with Watauga County’s risk manager and other project partners as part of the 
design process. Thereafter, our team will work with project staff to ensure 
that design decisions stay within acceptable risk boundaries.   

caPacity to resPond to unknoWn field conditions

Although the site seems well-suited for developing the skills area, there are 
always some inherent challenges and uncertainties that will have to be dealt 
with as encountered. Often, the most important of these are soils, vegetation 
patterns, extent of exposed rock and topography – each of which greatly and 
sometimes unexpectedly affecting design outcomes across a given site. 

In spite of any of these issues, we are confident about our ability to find 
solutions and develop the skills area to take advantage of the site’s 
unique qualities, and finding away around any site constraints. Note, 
however, that this will inherently require a degree of flexibility on everyone’s 
part. Nonetheless, we are confident that our experience allows us to manage 
through any issue that might arise. 

commitment to 
Working With 

Project Partners 
to achieVe highest 

Quality outcome 

Mountain biking carries inherent risk to the 
user. But well-designed trails can minimize 
the risk while still providing the desired 
challenge. 

011712 BCC Meeting

157



ROCKY KNOB PARK – BIKE SKILLS AREA 

18Watauga county / Wctda

Project aPProach 
outline 

Project initiation

confirm design Program

comPlete field layout/ 
design

clear trail corridor

As with our previous work, the Schoenbauer Consulting/Benchmark 
Trails team’s approach to the project centers around providing an A to 
Z service package from design through construction. We understand the 
importance of making sure that the project goes smoothly and is completed 
in a timely manner. Although our final approach will be tailored to the project 
with staff input, the following provides an outline of the phases and steps we 
envision that will ensure a successful outcome. 

rough grade skills 
area

initial floW test of 
skills area

finish trail tread and 
skills area

build skills features 
and site amenities

test ride skills area 
features

final adjustments to 
trails and features

Pre-construction 
design Phase

construction 
Phase

Focus is on making sure that the 
overall design for the skills area 
works on the ground and includes 
the features (i.e., program items) 
that meet the needs of Watauga 
County.  

Focus is on using a construction process with built-in checks and 
balances to make sure that what is actually built is meeting the 
larger goals of the project and achieving the best possible outcome. 

Field layout and design will 
occur over a two-day period, 

in which all of the design 
features will be field flagged 

and identified. Once Owner’s 
Representatives approve 
layout, construction will 

begin. 

Our team will meet with staff 
and BAC members to finalize 
a project schedule and define 

roles and responsibilities.

The first onsite meeting 
will be used to discuss the 
concept plan (provided in 
this proposal) and clarify 
goals for the skills area. 

If volunteers are involved, 
they would clear the corridor 
with oversight from Deno. 

Deno will take the lead in 
rough grading the skills area. 

Onsite materials will be 
salvaged within or near 
excavated areas for site 
features as needed. Deno 
will work side-by-side with 
volunteers on building desired 
site features, etc. 

Jeff and Deno doing field design of a previous phase of 
trail development at Rocky Knob. 

Deno making it happen in the field during 
a previous phase of trail development at 
Rocky Knob. 

Deno’s work creating a classic roller, paying special attention to height/
crest spacing ratio to ensure ridable flow at varying speeds.  

011712 BCC Meeting

158



19

Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC./Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

baseline concePt Plan

The following provides an initial concept plan for the skills area, as requested 
in the RFQ. Our intent is to simply highlight how we envision approaching 
the design for the area and the type of features and flow that could occur that 
riders of varying ability would typically find appealing. In reviewing the 
concept, please keep the following in mind:  

• The concept is meant to define the type of features envisioned as a starting 
point, with modifications occurring in the field as the skills area is field 
designed

• The concept defines what is achievable with the available budget of 
$35,000

• We fully expect that this will evolve in the field with input from project 
partners 

Concept Themes: 
•  Sequence of skills features that can 

accommodate beginners through 
experts

•  Three lines provided offering varying 
riding challenges: 

 - “A” line is for beginner riders
 - “B” line is for intermediate riders
 - “C” line is for experts
•  Design allows riders to “mix and 

match” which line they take as their 
skills improve

•  Design allows for friends with different 
skill levels to ride together and have fun

•  Design allows for new riders, especially 
younger ones, to observe first hand how 
better riders actually ride each of the 
skills features, while not feeling they are 
“in the way”   

Design Flexibility: The intent of the concept is to provide a starting 
point to establish themes and skills area design intent. From here, the 
design will evolve in the field with input from project partners. For 
example, adding in a pump track feature and/or using rollers instead of 
jumps might be desirable. The goal of the concept as presented is to set 
forth themes, as noted.   

5054 Drew Avenue South
MinneApoliS, MinneSotA 55410

612.578.1980 / 612.578.1975

5054 Drew Avenue South 
Minneapolis, MN 55410

612.578.1975
jaschoenbauer@gmail.com

Project #: 
Issue Date: 

Certification:
I hereby certify that this 
plan, specification, or 
report was prepared by 
me  or under my direct 
supervision.  
Registration #: 19288
Landscape Architect in 
the State of Minnesota 
Signature:

Sheet #:

Plan Notes:
Layout and details are 
general. Contractor 
responsible for proper 
installation and the 
final field design of 
trail tread, turns, 
berms, etc. to ensure 
proper function. 

Access 

“A” line log 
crossing – flat 
to 12” high

“B” line log 
crossing – 12”  to 
24” high

“C” line log 
crossing – 24”  
to 30” high

30
’ z

on
e

triple rock 
bridges – 
18” wide 
x 6” to 12” 
high 

Double raised 
wood bridges  
– 6” high x 18” 
wide x 8’ long

rock jump 
– 8” high

“A” line triple jump – to 15” high

“B” line triple jump – 24” to 30” high

“C” line triple jump – 30” to 40” high

100’ zone

Rock and 
wood bridge  – 
12” high x 18” 
wideTriple boulder 

rollover – up 
to 30” high

12” wide wood 
ramps up and 
down boulder – 
18” high

24” wide rock 
rollover – 12” 
high

“A” line 
boulder field – 
flat to 12” high

“C” line 
boulder 
field – 24”  
to 30” high

“B” line 
boulder field 
– 12” to 24” 
high

50
’ z

on
e

36” wide x 12’ 
long bridge – 
up to 4” high

36” wide x 12’ 
long bridge – 
up to 4” high

24” wide 
x 12’ long 
bridge – 
up to 12” 
high (with 
widened 
corner)

18” wide x 18’ 
long bridge – up 
to 12” high (with 
widened corner)

12” wide x 12’ 
long bridge – up 
to 12” high (with 
widened corner)

12” wide x 12’ 
long bridge – 
up to 12” high

8” wide x 12’ 
long bridge – 
up to 12” high

0 10 30 40 N20 50
Scale in Feet

Natural trail 
surface 

Sk
ill

s 
A

re
a 

La
yo

ut
 C

on
ce

pt

rock jump 
–12” high

bermed 
turn  
exiting 
“C” jump 
line

Wood jump – 
12” high at lip 
x 18” wide x 4’ 
long

dirt jumps 
staging area

bermed turn  
entering  “C” 
jump line

rock jump 
–12” high

Goal is to allow the rider to pick and choose the route that 
best suits their skill level, as the yellow track highlights!

011712 BCC Meeting

159



ROCKY KNOB PARK – BIKE SKILLS AREA 

20Watauga county / Wctda

construction schedule and creW makeuP

Once authorized to proceed, our entire team can mobilize quickly, starting 
the design process as soon as we receive notice to proceed. We expect 
construction to begin in the spring, and completion of the project by June 
30th, 2012 is very doable.  

Once into construction, Deno will be the day-to-day construction manager and 
will be onsite for the entire project. 

Working With boone 
area cyclists 

Volunteers 

The Schoenbauer Consulting/Benchmark Trails team is very comfortable 
with and fully supports working again with the Boone Area Cyclists in 
constructing these trails and site features. 

Value-added aPProach

As in the past, we recommend taking a value-added approach to using 
volunteers since it is hard to determine exactly what level of effort will 
materialize. Our work plan assumes that we will complete the work as 
defined by the concept, and then add features by using volunteer crews to best 
advantage as available. Basically, the thoughtful use of volunteer crews allows 
us to shift our crew and equipment time to building more features while the 
volunteers complete the more straightforward tasks. Conversely, we can also 
reduce our crew and equipment time where volunteer crews do the work if 
reducing project costs takes precedence over adding additional features. 

cost ProPosal 
negotiation 

As stated in the RFQ, “Watauga County shall select the most qualified 
Professional and strive to negotiate mutually agreeable contract terms. If 
terms cannot be met, the second most qualified Professional will be selected 
and so forth”. 

Note that our team is very comfortable with a good-faith negotiation on 
the final scope of work once we have had an opportunity to meet with 
staff to go over the concept and work tasks and develop a common 
understanding of all desired outcomes within the context of the project 
budget. We take pride in providing quality work for a fair price. Above all, 
we want to do the project justice, recognizing that our value to Watauga 
County rests with the overall quality of the process and the skills area that is 
ultimately built. 

meeting insurance 
and  related business 

reQuirements

The following are authorized representatives of the submitting firms. 

Jeff Schoenbauer, R.L.A. 
Cofounder
Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC 

submittal 
authorization

Deno Contos
Owner
Benchmark Trails, Inc. 

Both Schoenbauer Consulting, LLC and Benchmark Trails, Inc. have 
insurance coverage that meets or exceeds the requirements stipulated in the 
RFQ. Proof of insurance will be provided upon request, if selected. 

011712 BCC Meeting

160



011712 BCC Meeting

161



011712 BCC Meeting

162



011712 BCC Meeting

163



011712 BCC Meeting

164



011712 BCC Meeting

165



011712 BCC Meeting

166



011712 BCC Meeting

167



011712 BCC Meeting

168



011712 BCC Meeting

169



011712 BCC Meeting

170



011712 BCC Meeting

171



011712 BCC Meeting

172



011712 BCC Meeting

173



011712 BCC Meeting

174



011712 BCC Meeting

175



011712 BCC Meeting

176



011712 BCC Meeting

177



011712 BCC Meeting

178



011712 BCC Meeting

179



011712 BCC Meeting

180



011712 BCC Meeting

181



011712 BCC Meeting

182



011712 BCC Meeting

183



011712 BCC Meeting

184



011712 BCC Meeting

185



011712 BCC Meeting

186



011712 BCC Meeting

187



011712 BCC Meeting

188



011712 BCC Meeting

189



011712 BCC Meeting

190



011712 BCC Meeting

191



011712 BCC Meeting

192



011712 BCC Meeting

193



011712 BCC Meeting

194



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MATTERS 

A.  Bid Award Requests for Rocky Knob Park 
 2.  Playground 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Woolridge will present a contract with Beanstalk Journeys for the construction of a 
playground at the Rocky Knob Park.  At the October 11, 2011, meeting, the Board requested the 
project be rebid due to concerns with the original request for proposal.  With assistance from the 
County Attorney, TDA staff rebid the project.  Beanstalk Journeys was the only vendor to submit 
a proposal due to the desire to use natural materials.   
 
The WCTDA Board unanimously approved Beanstalk Journeys proposal and contract in the 
amount of $75,000.  The playground is another component of the County fulfilling its PARTF 
requirement for Rocky Knob Park. 
 
Staff requests the Board approve the contract with Beanstalk Journeys in the amount of $75,000 
to construct a playground at the Rocky Knob Park.   
 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

195



MEMO 
 
To: Watauga County Board of Commissioners  
 Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
From: Eric Woolridge, Tourism Planner 

Watauga County Tourism Development Authority (WCTDA) 
 
Date:  December 29, 2011 
 
Re:   Award of Playground Contract for Rock Knob Park 
 
 
At the October 11, 2011 Board of Commissioners meeting, TDA staff presented a 
recommendation to hire Beanstalk Journeys to construct the adventure playground at 
Rocky Knob Park. However, at this meeting the Commissioners and attorney expressed 
some concern about the bidding process. After further consultation with the county 
attorney after the meeting, the TDA rebid the playground project using a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) drafted by the county attorney.  
 
At the November 15th TDA board meeting, staff presented the new playground RFP 
drafted by the county attorney, which described in detail the county’s desire to construct 
a playground of natural materials. TDA staff, with the assistance of Stephen Poulos, 
Director of Parks and Recreation, appealed to the playground manufacturers that had 
originally submitted proposals, but only Beanstalk Journeys willingly submitted a revised 
proposal. The others companies declined, apparently because they only provide pre-
fabricated playground equipment.  
 
Request 
At their December 13th meeting, the TDA Board of Directors recommended (unanimous) 
that the Watauga County Board of Commissioners enter a contract for $75,000 with 
Beanstalk Journeys to construct the playground. This contract will be paid using TDA 
funds currently budgeted for this item, requiring no funds from Watauga County. With 
the completion of this facility, the bike skills area, and other facilities currently under 
contract, Watauga County will fulfill their obligations for the $500,000 Parks and 
Recreation Trust Fund grant. 
 
Also, from a legal perspective, the county attorney has expressed his support of this 
contract. 
 
Attachments 

1. Revised proposal from Beanstalk Journeys 
2. Previously submitted playground renderings, all of which were for same price 

point  
 

011712 BCC Meeting

196



011712 BCC Meeting

197



011712 BCC Meeting

198



011712 BCC Meeting

199



011712 BCC Meeting

200



This instrument drawn by: Eggers, Eggers, Eggers and Eggers, PLLC, 
Attorneys at Law, Boone, North Carolina 28607 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

CONTRACT 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the _____ day of 

_________, 2011, by and between Beanstalk Journeys, LLC (hereinafter referred 

to as “Beanstalk”), and Watauga County (hereinafter >County=); 

The County, being the owner of a 185 acre tract of land located in 

Watauga County known as Rocky Knob Park located near the town of Boone, 

County of Watauga, North Carolina, upon which it is desirous of constructing  

a timber frame playground facility, as more particularly described in the 

request for proposals issued by Watauga County for this project; 

W I T N E S S E T H : 

 WHEREAS, Beanstalk Journeys, LLC is a North Carolina limited liability 

company with its principal place of business in Jonas Ridge, North Carolina 

which specializes in wooden playground equipment and construction; and 

 WHEREAS, Watauga County is the Owner of 185 wooded acres located 

on Scenic Byway 421 just east of the Town of Boone, which is known as Rocky 

Knob Park; and 

 WHEREAS, the Watauga County Tourism Development Authority 

(WCTDA) is working to make the Boone Area a top outdoor recreation 

011712 BCC Meeting

201



destination in the United States; and 

 WHEREAS, the proposed park plans call for wooden playground complex 

consistent with the environment and other facilities at Rocky Knob Park; and 

 WHEREAS, Beanstalk Journeys, LLC was the sole bidder on this project 

at $75,000.00, which has been determined by Watauga County to be a 

reasonable price for the work to be performed; and  

WHEREAS, the purpose of this contract is for Beanstalk Journeys, LLC 

to work on this project to completion and to represent and advocate for the 

County’s interests among subcontractors, contractors, and suppliers in 

construction of the playground facility; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the County and Beanstalk, in mutual consideration 

of the terms and conditions set forth herein, and upon the recitals set forth 

above, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

 1.  Beanstalk shall fully construct and install the playground in 

accordance with the bid specifications and proposal, not inconsistent with the 

terms contained herein.  Beanstalk shall work on this project to completion 

and to represent and advocate for the County’s interests among 

subcontractors, contractors, and suppliers in construction of the playground.  

Prior to beginning work, Beanstalk shall provide shop drawings by a licensed 

North Carolina engineer to the satisfaction of Eric Woolridge.  The entire 

construction project, inclusive of the materials to be supplied by Beanstalk 

011712 BCC Meeting

202



shall be for a sum not to exceed seventy-five thousand ($75,000.00) dollars, 

which shall include all fees and expenses of Beanstalk, all materials necessary 

to build the playground to completion, and all necessary design services and 

engineering to the satisfaction of the County.  Only materials of the highest 

quality shall be supplied or used in construction, and the timber used shall be 

top quality Hemlock logs.  Beanstalk agrees to exercise a fiduciary duty to 

County to see that all materials used are of highest quality, and that all work 

performed by subcontractors, agents or employees is performed in a 

workmanlike fashion, free of defect, and in a manner so as to meet the 

specifications provided for in the request for proposals and bid submission.  

Beanstalk agrees to reject and to immediately notify county if any materials 

supplied by any entity or individual, or if any work performed by any 

subcontractor, agent, employee, or professional is not in keeping with the 

highest standards of workmanlike performance and to exercise a fiduciary duty 

with respect to ensuring that County’s best interests in this project are 

protected.  The price above includes the costs of any and all additional 

consultants, subcontractors, or others on behalf of Beanstalk, including but 

not limited to all costs associated with any work performed by licensed NC 

engineers and excavators who shall act as subcontractors of Beanstalk. 

 2.  No work shall commence or proceed on additional features other 

than the playground as set forth herein unless such work is authorized in 

011712 BCC Meeting

203



writing and signed by the County and Beanstalk which shall include a detailed 

statement of the additions to be performed and the amount of time to be spent 

on the additional features.  In no event shall the total project costs, inclusive 

of any change orders, exceed the total sum of seventy-five thousand dollars 

($75,000.00). 

 3.  Watauga County shall pay Beanstalk 10%, or $7,500.00, upon the 

execution of this contract; 40%, or $30,000.00, upon delivery of materials to 

the construction site; 35%, or $26,250.00, upon completion of sixty percent of 

the installation project; and the remaining 15%, or $11,250.00, upon 

successful completion of the total job.  Completion of the total job is to be 

determined in the sole discretion of the Watauga County designated project 

manager and a Watauga County building inspection official. Beanstalk shall 

pay all subcontractors, including but not limited to excavators and licensed NC 

engineers for work performed on this project. 

 4.  Beanstalk shall contract the playground consistent with the following 

requirements: 

 a.  The playground must provide at least 300 linear feet of activity area 

for children which provide different levels of challenges for children of different 

ages. 

 b.  The playground must be constructed of a log design framework, 

consisting of wood, nylon rope, chain and other materials appropriate for a 

011712 BCC Meeting

204



playground.  The playground must be consistent with best practices in the 

industry and comply with all required safety regulations for public children’s 

playground.  The playground must also be created in such a way that it allows 

for minimum maintenance and repair by the County. 

 c.  The playground must comply with all ASTM standards for materials. 

 d.  The playground must include at least sixteen events suitable for 

children’s entertainment, including but not limited to a tree house of at least 

64 square feet, peripheral cribbing where necessary to ensure safety, 

appropriate signage, at least one slide, swings, climbing structures, bridges, 

and other obstacles.   

 e.  Beanstalk shall, in addition to the work set forth herein, inspect the 

finished work at least yearly at an annual fee of no more than $400.00, and 

shall prepare a report which addresses the structural analysis of the 

playground and any adjustments necessary for the events for at least three 

years. 

 5.  Watauga County designates Eric Woolridge as the Project Manager 

for this project on behalf of the County.  As such, only Eric Woolridge or his 

duly appointed successor as named by the Watauga County Board of 

Commissioners, may act to sign any change orders relating to this project.  

However, in no event does Eric Woolridge have authority to increase the total 

contract price, including change orders, to exceed the total sum of seventy-five 

011712 BCC Meeting

205



thousand dollars ($75,000.00), without prior written approval from the 

Watauga County Manager. 

 6.  Beanstalk shall submit records of payment for materials and 

payments to subcontractors for the work described herein on a monthly basis 

to Watauga County on a monthly basis to Margaret Pierce, the Watauga 

County Finance Officer, at margaret.pierce@watgov.org, with a copy of the 

invoice to Eric Woolridge at eric@exploreboonearea.com.  Payment shall be due 

and payable upon the date of signed approval by Eric Woolridge on behalf of 

Watauga County.  At all times relevant to this contract, Beanstalk shall keep 

and maintain records for construction units and other daily work for 

comparison with the County’s records.   

 7.  Beanstalk agrees to complete this project by July 1, 2012.  It is the 

responsibility of Beanstalk to complete this project as scheduled and time is of 

the essence in the performance of this contract.  If for any reason it appears 

that this project will be delayed, Beanstalk shall notify the County, in writing, 

as soon as possible with an explanation of the reason(s) for the delay.  If the 

delay(s) is approved by the County, the schedule may be modified and the 

agreement amended.  Both failure to give the required notification of delay and 

failure to meet the completion deadline shall constitute failure to perform in 

accordance with the terms of this agreement and the agreement may be 

terminated in accordance with this agreement. 

011712 BCC Meeting

206

mailto:margaret.pierce@watgov.org
mailto:eric@exploreboonearea.com


 8.  This Contract is entered into in Watauga County, North Carolina, 

and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of North 

Carolina.  The parties hereby agree that Watauga County, North Carolina is an 

appropriate venue for the resolution of any disputes arising as a result of this 

contract.  If a dispute arises out of or relates to the Contract which cannot be 

resolved informally between the parties, the parties agree to conduct 

pre-litigation mediation, consistent with the rules of Mediated Settlement 

Conferences for the Superior Court of North Carolina, prior to the filing of any 

suit arising out of this Contract. 

 9.  Watauga County shall cooperate with Beanstalk to coordinate the 

completion of this project, and shall specifically coordinate all meetings with 

County staff, interested associations, and the public involvement on this 

project. 

 10.  In addition to the terms set forth above, Beanstalk shall: 
 
a.  Consult with the County to ascertain the requirements of the project and 

shall confirm such requirements to the County. 

b.  Prepare and file the required documents for the approval of governmental 

authorities having jurisdiction over the project for purposes of obtaining all 

necessary construction permits. 

c.  Establish and conduct a regular schedule of meetings between Beanstalk 

and the County.  Such meetings shall be maintained throughout the entire 

011712 BCC Meeting

207



construction period and shall be for the primary purpose of assessing the 

progress of the work and recommending such remedial actions as are 

necessary to maintain progress and to complete the project within the contract 

time.   

d.  Process and approve, or take other appropriate action in respect of, 

progress schedules, shop drawings and other required submissions promptly. 

e.  Prepare change orders as required, and have such change orders properly 

executed and approved before beginning work on account thereof. 

f.  Submit all necessary documentation involving compliance with minority 

business utilization commitments to the County relating to any subcontractors 

utilized by Beanstalk. 

g.  Provide general administration of the performance of construction 

contracts, including inspection and continuous liaison of the work to ensure 

compliance with plans and specifications, which inspection shall be by 

qualified and mutually agreed upon representatives of Beanstalk as often as 

necessary to ensure compliance with plans and specifications. 

h.  Assist the County in Scheduling and conducting final inspection of the 

project, and coordinate the date for such inspection with the County. 

i.  Assemble written guarantees, affidavits, manuals of inspection for 

operation, if applicable, and other required and closing papers; obtain 

certificates of final completion, certificates of compliance from all consultants 

011712 BCC Meeting

208



whose seal appear on the plans and specifications if required by G.S. 133-1.1; 

final certificates for payment; and set date for beginning of the guarantee 

period, forwarding all closing papers to the County. 

 11.  Beanstalk agrees that its representatives on the construction 

project shall be qualified by training and experience to make decisions and 

interpretations of plans and specifications.  All such decisions and 

interpretations shall be binding upon Beanstalk as if made by it; all such 

decisions shall be confirmed in writing at the earliest reasonable date, with 

copies to the County, conditioned that such decisions and interpretations shall 

not modify adversely the requirements of the contract documents; Beanstalk’s  

representatives shall be replaced promptly and without protest at the request 

of the County, if in the opinion of the County, such representatives are either 

negligent or unqualified to perform their duties. 

 12.  Upon completion of the project Beanstalk shall deliver the Aas 

built@ drawings to the County, and Beanstalk warrants such plans shall 

conform to the final project as constructed. 

 13.  Prior to final payment to Beanstalk, Beanstalk shall prepare and 

deliver to the County a final report of the completed project, which shall 

include a certification by an appropriately qualified individual that the 

playground meets or exceeds ASTM requirements. 

 14.  Beanstalk shall be responsible for all administrative costs related to 

011712 BCC Meeting

209



the project, including, but not limited to, the following: 

a.  Providing required number of plans and specifications for review for all 

agencies involved in the project; 

b.  Paying all cost of handling, mailing, etc., of plans and specifications to any 

sub-contractors of Beanstalk; 

c.  Paying for all telephone calls, travel, administrative overhead cost and any 

other expense incurred by Beanstalk; 

d.  Provide and maintain, at Beanstalk=s expense, such insurance as will 

protect Beanstalk and the County from claims under the Workman=s 

Compensation Act and such comprehensive general liability insurance as will 

protect the County and Beanstalk from all claims for bodily injury, death, or 

property damage which may arise from the performance of Beanstalk or by 

Beanstalk’s employees during the course of Beanstalk’s functions and services 

required under this Agreement, such insurance being in amounts of at least 

one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) for general liability insurance per 

occurrence and workers compensation coverage of at least five hundred 

thousand dollars ($500,000.00) per occurrence.  Beanstalk shall insure all 

materials and the premises and structure that are the subject of this contract, 

that is, the playground facility, until completion of the project and final 

payment by County.  Beanstalk shall list Watauga County as an additional 

insured for the duration of this work.  Copies of these policies shall be 

011712 BCC Meeting

210



provided Watauga County’s project manager, Eric Woolridge. 

 15.  All materials provided by Beanstalk, or any other party shall be free 

from liens, encumbrances, and claims of any individual, partnership, 

corporation, or entity.  Beanstalk hereby waives any and all claims of liens 

related to this project on behalf of itself or its subcontractors. 

 16.  Time is of the essence in the completion of this project. 

 17.  Beanstalk agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, of 

any and all liability arising from any breach of contract or any other action 

related to, or incidental to, the performance of this contract. 

 18.  Beanstalk warrants the materials used in this project to be of 

highest quality and fit and proper for the purposes which they are to be used.  

Where specifications are general in nature, all materials are to be equal to or 

exceed those specified.  Beanstalk further warrants that all work will be 

completed in a workmanlike manner according to the highest standards and 

guaranteed to be free from defect due to inferior installation or construction.  

Beanstalk further warrants that the facility shall be free from structural defects 

and defects in workmanship under normal use and service, for a period of two 

years after the date of installation and acceptance by the County. 

 19.  Watauga County shall not be responsible for incidental or 

consequential damages as a result of any breach of this contract, or for any 

Acts of God, fire, riot, war, civil unrest, or impossibility beyond the control of 

011712 BCC Meeting

211



the County. 

 20.  Records of Beanstalk’s personnel, consultants, additional services 

and expenses pertaining to the project, and records of accounts between the 

County and other parties shall be kept on a generally recognized account basis, 

and all such records shall be available to the County or its authorized 

representative at mutually convenient times. 

 21.  All designs, drawings, specifications, design calculations, notes and 

other works developed in the performance of this contract shall become the 

sole property of Watauga County. 

 22.  In event of termination, Beanstalk shall receive payment for services 

rendered prior to the receipt of written termination notice from the County.  

Any work done by Beanstalk and any materials delivered by Beanstalk or any 

other supplier prior to termination shall become the property of the County. 

 23.  In the event notices are to be sent to either party under this 

agreement, such notices will be sent to the following addresses by regular mail, 

with adequate postage attached thereto: 

 Watauga County   Beanstalk Journeys, LLC 
 Attn:  County Manager  c/o Mike Fischesser 
 815 West King Street  6995 Skyland Road 
 Boone, NC  28607  Jonas Ridge, NC  28641 
 
 24.  Beanstalk may contract with subcontractors for the completion of 

its work.  A copy of each subcontracting party=s agreement shall be provided 

to Watauga County.  Beanstalk agrees that it shall be responsible for the work 

011712 BCC Meeting

212



of its subcontractors as though it were performing each and every act itself in 

which the subcontractor engages, whether authorized by Beanstalk or 

otherwise. 

 25.  The County and Beanstalk each binds themselves, their partners, 

successors, legal representatives and assigns to the other party to this 

agreement and to the partners, successors, legal representatives and assigns of 

such other party in respect to all covenants of this agreement.  Neither the 

County nor Beanstalk shall assign, sublet or transfer its interest in this 

agreement without the written consent of the other. 

 26.  This agreement, together with the attached Exhibits, Exhibit A 

(Request for Proposals) and Exhibit B (Proposal of Beanstalk Journeys), 

represents the entire and integrated agreement, between the County and 

Beanstalk and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or 

agreements, either written or oral.  This agreement may be amended only by 

written contract.  To the extent anything contained in either of the Exhibits 

conflicts with any provision of this contract, the terms of this contract shall 

control over the terms of the Exhibits.  The Request for Proposals shall control 

over the Proposal of Beanstalk Journeys. 

 27.  If any provision of this contract is unenforceable, invalid, or illegal, 

the remaining provisions will continue in full force and effect. 

 28.  In the event that any incorporated documents conflict with the 

011712 BCC Meeting

213



terms and conditions of this contract, the terms and conditions set forth in this 

document shall control. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the County and Beanstalk have executed this 
Agreement, the day and year first above written. 
 

 
County of Watauga   Beanstalk Journeys, LLC. 
 
 
 
By:___________________________ By:________________________________ 
Nathan A. Miller, Chairman  ____________________________(print) 
Watauga County Board    Authorized Representative 
of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST:      
 
By:___________________________  
Clerk to the Board    
 
 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Margaret Pierce 
Watauga County Finance Officer 

011712 BCC Meeting

214



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MATTERS 

B.  Recreation Trails Program Grant Application Request 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Woolridge will request the Board endorse the New River Paddle Trail grant application and, 
if the grant is awarded, enter into an encroachment agreement with NCDOT.  The grant is for 
$75,000 from the Recreation Trails Program with an $18,750 match from the WCTDA.   The 
project will construct two (2) river accesses at Green Valley Park and Pine Run along the New 
River.  The WCTDA will be responsible for all construction and maintenance costs associated 
with the project and encroachment.  The County will not be required to provide any funding.  
 
WCTDA seeks Board approval of the project.   
 
Direction from the Board is requested.    
  

011712 BCC Meeting

215



MEMO 
 
To: Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
From: Eric Woolridge, WCTDA Tourism Planner 
  
Date:  January 10, 2012 
 
Re:   Recreation Trails Program Grant  
 
 
At their January 10, 2012 meeting, the Watauga County Tourism Development Authority 
(WCTDA) Board of Directors authorized staff to submit a 2012 Recreation Trails 
Program grant. If awarded, the $75,000 grant, along with $18,750 committed by the 
WCTDA as a cash match, will be used to implement two river accesses along the New 
River: Green Valley Park and Pine Run.  
 
As noted in the attached grant application, grant funds will be used to install parking, 
canoe launch areas, and information kiosks at both locations. In addition, funds will be 
used to construct a walking trail at Green Valley Park. Nearly 6,500 patrons used the 
Green Valley access alone according to records by commercial outfitters. 
 
Although the WCTDA is the applicant for this grant request, the grant application does 
request documentation concerning whether the local governing board approves the 
project. Also, the Pine Run access will be constructed on NCDOT right of way, which 
will require an encroachment agreement. Should funds be awarded for this project, 
WCTDA staff requests that Watauga County enter into an encroachment agreement with 
NCDOT, allowing the WCTDA to build the access. We are requesting no funds for 
construction or maintenance from the county. 
 
Request 

1. Watauga County endorse New River Paddle Trail project as submitted within the 
grant application 

2. Should grant be awarded, agree to enter into an encroachment agreement with 
NCDOT, thereby allowing the WCTDA to construct the Pine Run Access 

 

011712 BCC Meeting

216



011712 BCC Meeting

217



011712 BCC Meeting

218



011712 BCC Meeting

219



011712 BCC Meeting

220



011712 BCC Meeting

221



011712 BCC Meeting

222



011712 BCC Meeting

223



011712 BCC Meeting

224



011712 BCC Meeting

225



011712 BCC Meeting

226



011712 BCC Meeting

227



011712 BCC Meeting

228



011712 BCC Meeting

229



011712 BCC Meeting

230



011712 BCC Meeting

231



011712 BCC Meeting

232



011712 BCC Meeting

233



011712 BCC Meeting

234



011712 BCC Meeting

235



011712 BCC Meeting

236



011712 BCC Meeting

237



011712 BCC Meeting

238



011712 BCC Meeting

239



011712 BCC Meeting

240



011712 BCC Meeting

241



011712 BCC Meeting

242



011712 BCC Meeting

243



011712 BCC Meeting

244



011712 BCC Meeting

245



011712 BCC Meeting

246



011712 BCC Meeting

247



011712 BCC Meeting

248



011712 BCC Meeting

249



Blank Page 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

250



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

LANDFILL GAS TO ENERGY PROJECT MATTERS 

A.  Proposed Interconnection Agreement with BREMCO 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Brian Crutchfield, with Blue Ridge Electric, will present the interconnection agreement 
between the County and BREMCO.  The interconnection agreement is part of the County’s gas 
to energy project and is required in order to for the County to place electricity from the project 
onto BREMCO’s electric infrastructure.   
 
The County Attorney has reviewed the contract and Board action is requested to approve the 
interconnection agreement as presented.    

011712 BCC Meeting

251



011712 BCC Meeting

252



011712 BCC Meeting

253



011712 BCC Meeting

254



011712 BCC Meeting

255



011712 BCC Meeting

256



011712 BCC Meeting

257



011712 BCC Meeting

258



011712 BCC Meeting

259



011712 BCC Meeting

260



011712 BCC Meeting

261



011712 BCC Meeting

262



011712 BCC Meeting

263



011712 BCC Meeting

264



011712 BCC Meeting

265



011712 BCC Meeting

266



011712 BCC Meeting

267



011712 BCC Meeting

268



011712 BCC Meeting

269



011712 BCC Meeting

270



011712 BCC Meeting

271



011712 BCC Meeting

272



011712 BCC Meeting

273



011712 BCC Meeting

274



011712 BCC Meeting

275



011712 BCC Meeting

276



011712 BCC Meeting

277



011712 BCC Meeting

278



011712 BCC Meeting

279



011712 BCC Meeting

280



011712 BCC Meeting

281



011712 BCC Meeting

282



011712 BCC Meeting

283



011712 BCC Meeting

284



011712 BCC Meeting

285



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

LANDFILL GAS TO ENERGY PROJECT MATTERS 

B.  Proposed Facilities Charge Agreement 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Crutchfield will request the Board approve the Consumer Requested Facilities Charge 
Agreement.  The purpose of the agreement is to cover the cost of the facilities constructed by 
BREMCO in support of the gas to energy project.  BREMCO has installed primary metering at a 
single point, eliminating the seven existing meters and permitting the County to utilize the mini 
grid while BREMCO still maintains these facilities. 
 
The agreement establishes a permanent Consumer Requested Facilities Charge that will be billed 
monthly as long as the service is being provided. 
 
Staff and the County Attorney have reviewed the agreement and recommend Board approval.       
  

011712 BCC Meeting

286



Practice Statement Number: P-9-3-8 
Consumer Requested Facilities Charge 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF _CALDWELL___ 

 
 

CONSUMER REQUESTED FACILITIES AGREEMENT 
AGREEMENT NO. _005________ 

 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this ______day of ____JANUARY____, _2012___, 
by and between BLUE RIDGE ELECTRIC MEMBERSHIP CORPORATION, hereinafter referred to as 
“Cooperative”; and ___WATAUGA COUNTY_______________________, hereinafter referred to as 
“Consumer”. 
 
 Whereas, the Consumer is the owner/lessor of certain real property to which Consumer has 
requested non-standard electric service facilities and/or the relocation or conversion of existing electric 
service facilities with associated costs identified per Exhibit A; and 
 
 Whereas, the Consumer has requested that the Cooperative provide for these requested 
installations and/or relocations/conversions per this agreement and the associated costs specified in 
Exhibit A; and 
  
 Whereas, the Consumer understands that the Consumer Requested Facilities Charge is a 
permanent charge reflecting the cost of the facilities contributed by the cooperative (specified in Exhibit A)  
and any normal maintenance of these facilities over time; and,  
 

Whereas, should the Consumer choose to purchase power from a source other than the 
Cooperative, the Consumer Requested Facilities Charge will remain in effect as long as the Cooperative’s 
plant distributes electric power and energy to the Consumer’s facility.  
 
 The parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to and controlled by Cooperative Policy 
Statement Number 5-4B and Cooperative Practice Statement Numbers P-9-3-6 and P-9-3-8.   The parties 
further acknowledge these policy and practice statements have been made available to Consumer for 
reference.  
 
 In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this agreement by their duly authorized 
representatives as of the date first written above. 
 
BLUE RIDGE ELECTRIC MEMBERSHIP CORPORATION    
 
By:  ________________________________ ATTEST:  ________________________________ 
     Chief Executive Officer          Secretary 
 
        (SEAL) 
 
__WATAUGA COUNTY________________   

 Consumer 
 
By:  ________________________________ ATTEST:  ________________________________ 
 
Title:  _______________________________ Title:  ____________________________________ 
 
        (SEAL) 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

287



Practice Statement Number: P-9-3-8 
Consumer Requested Facilities Charge 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF _CALDWELL___ 
 
 
 I, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that __________________________ 
personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that __he is Secretary of BLUE RIDGE 
ELECTRIC MEMBERSHIP CORPORATION, a North Carolina corporation, and that by authority duly 
given and as the act of the corporation, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its Chief 
Executive Officer, sealed with its corporate seal, and attested by ________________________________ 
as its  Secretary. 
 

Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this the ______day of _JANUARY____, _2012____. 
 
 
My Commission Expires:__________________________________ 
 
 
 
                         Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF __WATAUGA___ 
 
 
 I, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that __________________________  
personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that __he is __________________________ 
of ____________________________________________, a _________________________ corporation, 
and that by authority duly given and as the act of the corporation, the foregoing instrument was signed in 
its name by its _____________________________, sealed with its corporate seal, and attested by  
_____________________________________ as its ____________________________________.. 
 
 

Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this the ______day of __JANUARY__, _2012____. 
 
 
My Commission Expires:___________________________________ 
 
 
 
                         Notary Public 
 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

288



Exhibit A 
 
 

Consumer Requested Facilities Agreement 
Agreement No. 005 

 
 

BLUE RIDGE ELECTRIC MEMBERSHIP CORPORATION 
 

And 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY 
 

 
Location Boone, NC    Map Location 2-17-09-242   
 
Member Number 8844685    Account Number 148618   
 
Rate Schedule LP    Effective Date __12-01-2011  
 
 
Description of Consumer Requested Facilities:  
 
Blue Ridge Electric (BRE) was asked to participate in an innovative project being implemented 
by the Sanitation Department of Watauga County, NC to demonstrate the practical value of 
combusting landfill methane gas in two (2) GM 8.1 liter / V-8 Truck engines that will in turn 
operate two Taylor generators (100kV each) that are supplied by KSD Enterprises from 
Clarskburg, West Virginia.  These generator sets will produce electricity (combined capacity of 
190kW) that will be delivered to the electric grid of BRE on a circuit that is located on property 
owned by Watauga County and operated as a Solid Waste Processing and Transfer Facility that 
also contains the now closed sanitary landfill of the county.   
 
The Interconnection Facilities owned and operated by the Cooperative, include the pad mount 
generator step-up transformer, underground and overhead power distribution system serving all 
landfill facilities, and primary metering for all landfill facilities.   
 
Prior to the implementation of this project BRE had constructed distribution facilities that served 
seven (7) separate accounts/meters and two security lights.  These accounts/meters 
represented Basic Facility Charges of $273.80 per month.  Basic Facility Charges are designed 
to pay for distribution facilities and plant constructed to deliver electricity to various accounts.  In 
constructing a new primary meter that will serve all of the seven accounts/meters located at the 
Watauga County landfill complex, the existing meters will no longer be read and the revenue to 
support these facilities will no longer be collected.   
In lieu of this previous arrangement a Consumer Requested Facilities Agreement is being 
implemented to establish a costing option involving distribution plant relocation, conversion of 
existing facilities at the request of the consumer/member (Watauga County) to supply service to 
a new designated delivery point, and a method for the Cooperative to meet the consumer’s 
revised requirements but assure that the new facilities are economic feasible to the 
Cooperative. Consequently a “Consumer Requested Facilities Charge” (Practice Statement 
Number: P-9-3-8) is being added to the monthly bill. 

011712 BCC Meeting

289



The “Consumer Requested Facilities Charge” also serves as a method to value the cost of the 
existing facilities that will be used by Watauga County to provide electric services to various 
facilities and show the cost (materials and labor) that have been incurred to construct a new 
primary metering/delivery point and new facilities to interconnect the “Generating Facility” to the 
BRE distribution grid plant.  In March of 2011 an facility review was performed that estimated 
the value of existing facilities that are currently in place to provide service to the seven accounts 
that were previously served by BRE.  The review determined the value of the facilities (poles, 
conductor, transformers, meters, labor etc.) if they were replaced at current values.  The value 
of the existing facilities was estimated at $85,177.17. 
 
In addition the cost to install new facilities to interconnect the “Generating Facility” and install a 
primary meter to both register the electricity sold to the County and the electricity that is being 
purchased from the facility by Duke Energies was estimated at $45,241.00.  This estimate 
includes the actual cost of materials and labor and reflects the true cost of the job.   
 
Altogether these two estimates total $130,418.17.  While the current policy permits the 
Cooperative to apply a monthly “Consumer Requested Facilities Charge” equal to 1.7% of the 
cost of plant provided by the Cooperative to meet the requested needs of the 
consumer/member, the Cooperative agreed to be a partner in this innovative Landfill Gas 
Generation project with Watauga County and charge a fee that is more in line with the previous 
charges associated with the Basic Facilities Charge of the seven existing accounts.   
 
The Cooperative has determined and agreed to charge a “Consumer Requested Facilities 
Charge” of $135.00 per month that will be applied in addition to the current $75 Basic Facilities 
Charge associated with the Large Power Rate Schedule and any other applicable taxes and 
charges that are associated with normal Member Service Rules and Regulations and others 
fees that may be mandated by the governmental entities over time.  This charge will be applied 
to Account Number 148618 associated with Member Number 8844685 located on Pole Number 
2-17-09-242. This becomes effective upon the implementation of this Consumer Requested 
Facilities Charge on the bill rendered after December 14, 2011. 
 
Should additional plant facilities (transformers, conduit, poles, meters, etc) be required in the 
future to meet the service requirements of new buildings or equipment installed by Watauga 
County for future growth at the Solid Waste Processing and Transfer Facility complex, the 
Cooperative will work with Watauga County to determine an appropriate charge to cover the 
cost of the facilities to serve the new facilities.  The cost of these facilities shall however be 
governed by the “Consumer Requested Facilities Charge” policy (currently Practice Statement 
Number: P-9-3-8) that is in place at that time. 
 
 
Description         $     Amount      

BRE Labor/Benefits, Materials & Trans     $ 130,418.17 

TOTAL         $ 130,418.17 
 
MONTHLY CONSUMER FACILITIES CHARGE (TOTAL X 1.7%)  $     2,217.11 
 
MONTHLY CONSUMER FACILITIES CHARGE (Per Agreement)  $        135.00 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

290



BLUE RIDGE ELECTRIC MEMBERSHIP CORPORATION 
 
 

Practice Statement Number:  P-9-3-8 
 
SUBJECT:   Consumer Requested Facilities Charge 
 
RELATED BOARD POLICY:  5-4B (New Electric Service Extensions), 6-1B (Service Rules and 
Regulations) 
 

I. PURPOSE: 
 

A. To establish a costing option involving distribution plant relocation, conversion of existing 
distribution facilities in conflict with existing facilities or non-standard distribution facilities 
requested by the Consumer in addition to existing facilities supplying electric service to the 
designated delivery point. 
 

B. To assure that Consumers are provided uniform cost in each of the four operating districts. 
 

C. To assure that the cost to the Cooperative for providing consumer requested non-standard 
facilities other than that supplying electric service to the consumer’s delivery point is economically 
feasible to the Cooperative. 

 
II. SCOPE:  This practice applies to Commercial and Industrial distribution systems with associated 

construction costs of $15,000 or more. All consumer requests will be discussed and negotiated with the 
Director of Sustainable Development, the Electric Services Group, the key accounts manager and the 
Consumer to determine appropriate aid to construction in relation to anticipated load growth, job 
creation and community impact and will be eligible for payment options outlines below. Sections 
directly affected are the Electric Services Group, and the four operating districts. 
 

III. EXPLANATION:  As a rule, the Cooperative’s cost to supply distribution and electric service facilities 
are adequately covered. However, at the request of the Consumer, Blue Ridge Electric Membership 
Corporation will install, own, and maintain facilities (overhead or underground) other than that 
necessary to provide electrical service to the designated delivery point. The following practice is to 
give guidance in handling the different types of consumer requests that may occur due to economic 
growth within the Cooperative’s service area and will be governed by the terms and conditions set 
forth in this practice and applicable agreements. 

  
IV. PRACTICE 

Definitions 
 
“Distribution facilities” consist of equipment, including transformation, to supply primary voltage to 
the Consumer’s property (owned or leased). 
 
“Service facilities” consist of equipment, including overhead or underground cable, to supply 
secondary voltage to the Consumer’s delivery point. 
 
The “delivery point” is where the Cooperative’s service conductors are connected to the 
Consumer’s conductors at one point, through one meter, and at one voltage.  
 
“Consumer requested facilities” refers to non-standard plant constructed at the Consumer’s 
request in addition to existing facilities supplying electric service to the designated delivery point and 
may include, but is not limited to, relocation or conversion of existing facilities, multiple primary or 
secondary extensions, associated transformers or multiple meter locations. 

 

011712 BCC Meeting

291



Practice Statement Number: P-9-3-8 
Consumer Requested Facilities Charge 

 
 

A. Distribution/Secondary Delivery Accounts: A “Consumer Requested Facilities Charge” equal to 
1.7% of the cost of non-standard facilities provided by the Cooperative in addition to standard 
electric facilities, shall be billed to the Consumer on a monthly basis in addition to the billing for 
energy, or for demand plus energy, in accordance with the applicable rate schedule. The 
Consumer has the option of paying all associated charges at the time the construction estimate is 
provided as outlined in Practice Statement Number P-9-3-6 (Electric Plant Conflicts). 

 
B. Alteration of Existing Electric Facilities: A “Consumer Requested Facilities Charge” may be 

implemented when the Consumer desires a non-standard alteration of existing electric facilities. 
The Consumer Requested Facilities Charge for non-standard electric facilities shall be the original 
cost of material used, including spare equipment, if any, plus applicable labor, transportation, 
stores, tax, engineering and general expenses, all estimated if not known plus the cost of removal 
of existing facilities, if applicable, less the current value of any materials that can be salvaged. The 
original cost of materials used is the current market price of the equipment at the time the 
equipment is installed, whether said equipment is new or out of inventory. Refer to Policy 
Statement Number P-9-3-6 (Electric Plant Conflicts).  

 
C. Right of Refusal: The Cooperative shall have the option of refusing requests for all non-standard 

Consumer requested electric facilities if, on its own determination, the requested electric facilities 
are not feasible, or may adversely affect the Cooperative’s service to other consumers. 
 

D. Cost Estimate: All costs will be determined as soon as electrical requirements are fully known and 
will be discussed with the consumer prior to installation on any consumer requested facility. 
 

E. Contractual Agreements: A contractual agreement must be executed whenever the Consumer 
requests non-standard electric facilities.  A copy is attached. 
 

F. Termination:  Should the Consumer cease operation or vacate the premises, for whatever 
reason, full payment of the balance of the remaining charges associated with the consumer 
requested facilities charge will be required.  If the Consumer chooses to purchase power from a 
source other than the Cooperative, the Consumer Requested Facilities Charge will remain in 
effect as long as the Cooperative’s plant distributes electric power and energy to the Consumer’s 
facility.  

 
 
V. RESPONSIBILITY 
 

A. It will be the responsibility of the Director of Engineering Services and the Director of Sustainable 
Development to implement this practice and for making required revisions. 

 
B. The Director of Engineering Services will be responsible for providing guidance, auditing and 

reviewing exceptions as required. 
 
 
 
Date Adopted:  June 1, 1999 
 
Dates Revised:  3/01, 7/08 

  

011712 BCC Meeting

292



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

LANDFILL GAS TO ENERGY PROJECT MATTERS 

C.  Proposed Baseline Gas Monitoring  
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Brian Raichle, ASU Department of Technology and Environmental Design, will seek permission 
from the Board to install up to three (3) wellhead monitors to record landfill gas flow, 
temperature, and humidity in real time.  Mr. Raichle believes the baseline data has the potential 
to strengthen future proposals for external funding.  Eric McGee, McGee Environmental, with 
whom the County currently contracts for services related to the landfill gas, will provide input on 
the design of the monitors.  No County funds are requested. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
 
   
  

011712 BCC Meeting

293



Baseline Landfill Gas Monitoring at the Watauga County Landfill 

We propose to design, construct, and install up to three wellhead units to monitor landfill gas 

flow, temperature, and humidity in real time.  The collected data will provide measurement 

experience and baseline data that will strengthen future proposals for external funding. 

All instrumentation and equipment will be provided by ASU.  

No permanent modifications will be made to the wellheads or existing gas collection system.  A 

short section of PVC pipe will be attached between the wellhead and collection pipe using 

flexible PVC pipe fastened with hose clamps.  Gas flow will not be altered in any way. 

A self‐contained data logger will be located at each monitored well.  Data will initially be 

manually downloaded from each logger, but a wireless, web‐based well monitoring system will 

be developed and installed during Spring 2012.  The system will require a computer with 

Internet access to be located near the landfill, perhaps at the engine room or the new ASU 

greenhouse. The data will be relayed from each wellhead by spread spectrum radio or any 

other wireless communication devices such as ZigBee to the computer.  

All wellhead instrumentation will be designed with input from Eric McGee of McGee 

Environmental. 

Instrumentation will be installed during January and February, 2012, and will remain in place as 

long as is practical, or until Watauga County requests its removal. 

 

Brian Raichle 

Ok‐Youn Yu 

Department of Technology and Environmental Design 

Appalachian State University 

011712 BCC Meeting

294



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

PROPOSED GATED COMMUNITY ORDINANCE 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Joe Furman will review the proposed Gated Community Ordinance.  The purpose of the 
ordinance is to establish rules and standards for the installation of electronic access gates for 
gated communities.  Staff recommends the Board schedule a public hearing for the February 21, 
2012, meeting to allow public comment on the proposed changes.   
 
Board action is requested.   
 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

295



011712 BCC Meeting

296



011712 BCC Meeting

297



011712 BCC Meeting

298



011712 BCC Meeting

299



Blank Page 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

300



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

TAX MATTERS  

A.  Monthly Collections Report 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd will present the monthly collections report and be available for 
questions and discussion.  
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

301



Blank Page 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

302



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

TAX MATTERS  

B.  Refunds and Releases 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Byrd will present the Refunds and Releases Report.  Board action is required to accept the 
Refunds and Releases Report. 
 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

303



011712 BCC Meeting

304



011712 BCC Meeting

305



011712 BCC Meeting

306



011712 BCC Meeting

307



011712 BCC Meeting

308



011712 BCC Meeting

309



011712 BCC Meeting

310



011712 BCC Meeting

311



011712 BCC Meeting

312



011712 BCC Meeting

313



011712 BCC Meeting

314



011712 BCC Meeting

315



011712 BCC Meeting

316



011712 BCC Meeting

317



011712 BCC Meeting

318



011712 BCC Meeting

319



011712 BCC Meeting

320



011712 BCC Meeting

321



011712 BCC Meeting

322



011712 BCC Meeting

323



011712 BCC Meeting

324



011712 BCC Meeting

325



011712 BCC Meeting

326



011712 BCC Meeting

327



011712 BCC Meeting

328



011712 BCC Meeting

329



011712 BCC Meeting

330



011712 BCC Meeting

331



011712 BCC Meeting

332



011712 BCC Meeting

333



011712 BCC Meeting

334



011712 BCC Meeting

335



011712 BCC Meeting

336



011712 BCC Meeting

337



Blank Page 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

338



AGENDA ITEM 13: 

FINANCE MATTERS 

A.  Budget Amendments 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will review budget amendments as included in your 
packet. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

339



 

 

                  W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 

814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 

         

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:   Deron Geouque, County Manager 

FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Budget Amendments-FY 2011/12 

DATE:  January 17, 2012 

 

The following budget amendments require approval of the Watauga County Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 

 

103586-384000  Donations – POA     $1,500 

105550-429200  Program Supplies   $1,500 

 

Per Board approval 7-12-11 of grant application, to recognize grant award from Exxon Mobile 

Volunteer Foundation. No match is required.  

 

Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 

 

143531-323000  Admin Cost Reimb from State   $139,621 

145480-438800  Crisis Intervention Payments  $139,621 

 

To recognize additional state DSS allocation for crisis intervention payments to clients. No 

County funds are required in this program. 

 

Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 

 

103839-384000  Donations      $7,500 

104330-454000  Capital Outlay - Vehicles  $7,500 

 

To recognize acceptance of mass casualty trailer as part of a regional grant program from 

Homeland Security.  

011712 BCC Meeting

340



AGENDA ITEM 13: 

FINANCE MATTERS 

B.  Records Retention Request 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will provide a revised electronic scanning policy to allow 
for additional departments to use the policy.  The revised copy has already been sent to the NC 
Department of Cultural Resources for their approval.  In addition, changes have been made to the 
records retention and disposition schedules related to County government requiring the approval 
of the most recent schedules. 
 
Staff recommends the Board approve the expanded electronic policy and the new records 
retention and disposition schedules. 
 
Board action is required. 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

341



                  W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 
   814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
 
M E M O R A N D U M     
 
 
 TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
 SUBJECT: Document Scanning Policy and Retention Schedules  
 DATE: January 10, 2012 
 
Attached please find a revised document scanning policy. Staff would like expand the scope for all 
County departments to be able to scan documents electronically for retention; therefore the request 
is for the Board to authorize all County departments to be eligible to utilize electronic retention. A 
draft of the proposed policy for acceptable records retention per General Statute requirements has 
been sent to the NC Department of Cultural Resources. 
 
With the implementation of Northwoods and the continued use of Tyler document management 
systems, the Department of Social Services and the Finance Department requests approval to apply 
to the NC Department of Cultural Resources for electronic retention of the attached list of 
documents.  
 
The NC Department of Cultural Resources publishes records retention and disposition schedules for 
all areas of public government in NC. For the County departments to follow these schedules, 
approval of the most current schedules is required by the County Commissioners.  
 
Board approval is requested for the revised policy, the listed retention changes, and the updated 
retention schedules. 
 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

342



WATAUGA COUNTY 
ELECTRONIC RECORDS SYSTEM POLICY 

 
PURPOSE: 
 
Records are considered to be the property of Watauga County and maintained for the benefit of agency use 
in delivering services and in documenting agency operations.  In keeping with current trends, modern 
electronic technology is widely used.  This electronic imaging record policy reflects guidelines set forth in 
the North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources publication, North Carolina Guidelines for 
Managing Public Records Produced by Information Technology Systems.  Established guidelines will not 
only increase the reliability and accuracy of records stored in information technology systems, but also 
ensures they remain accessible.  Established guidelines for reproduced records will likewise enhance their 
admissibility and acceptance by the judicial system as being trustworthy.  Privileged or confidential 
information will also be protected by this policy.  This policy will be re-evaluated at least every five years 
and updated as required. 
 
DESTRUCTION OF RECORDS: 
 
Individual departments will seek the approval of the North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources for 
the destruction of any paper records that have been scanned in accordance with this policy.  That approval 
will be requested and recorded on the “Request for Disposal of Original Records Duplicated by Electronic 
Means” form.  Individual Departments will submit a new form each time they scan a new records series.  
Destruction of the original paper record will be conducted only after imaging and quality control assurance 
procedures have been completed, all necessary corrections have been made, all auditing procedures have 
been conducted, and the destruction is approved by the Department Head. 
 
The paper originals of records series scheduled as “permanent” in the Records Retention and Disposal 
Schedule County Management issued by the NC Department of Cultural Resources, division of Historical 
Records, Archives and Records Section, Government Records Branch will not be destroyed unless a 
microfilm preservation duplicate is created prior to destruction.   
 
Optical disks containing scanned records will be maintained for the specified retention periods according to 
the Records Retention and Disposal Schedule County Management published by the North Carolina 
Division of Historical Resources.  The original paper record will be shredded on premises by Department 
staff or by other authorized personnel.  Security backups of all imaged documents will be generated nightly 
and maintained off-site by the Information Technology Department. One set of optical disks will be 
considered the official agency record and will be maintained by the Information Technology Department.  
Any hard copy generated from the official record will be considered a reference or working copy. 
 
TRAINING: 
 
The key imaging operators have received formal training in the use of the equipment.  All applicable staff 
will be trained in the correct procedures required for imaging and the reproducing of records.  All 
applicable staff will be trained in the correct procedures for viewing imaged documents and for reproducing 
of any imaged document. 
 
AUDITS:  
 
Watauga County staff will periodically audit imaged records for accuracy, readability, and reproduction 
capabilities.  Original paper records will not be destroyed until staff has audited a sampling of those records 
for system’s accuracy.  This audit is an internal process and does not involve the external auditors. 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

343



AUDIT TRAILS: 
 
Documentation of all imaging activities is maintained through audit trails built into the imaging system to 
protect the agency from potential fraud or any other unauthorized acts, as well as the authenticity of the 
records.   
 
Audit trails include: 
Applications:  Create/Delete/Modify 
Index:  Create, Delete, Modify 
Pages:  Add, Delete, View/Print/Export/Mail 
Batches:  Create, Delete, Batch import/scan, Batch Index  
Batch Page:  Add, Delete, Attach to a document  
Query:  Execute 
User:  Login/Logout 
Group:  Create/Delete/Modify 
 
DOCUMENTATION: 
  
Procedures: 
Departments will be responsible for the preparing and updating of detailed procedures that will describe the 
process followed to produce and reproduce an automated record.  This documentation will include a 
description of the system hardware and software.  A current procedural manual will be maintained to assure 
the most current steps are followed and to assure reliable system documentation will be available for 
judicial or similar proceedings. 
 
Training: 
Documentation will be maintained for the distribution of written procedures, attendance of individuals at 
training sessions and refresher training programs and other relevant information, including dates. 
 
Retention: 
One set of all system documentation, including documentation describing how the system operates from a 
functional user and data processing point of view, will be maintained permanently in the event a court 
review is necessary.  When system documentation changes, old versions will be maintained for 3 years 
after discontinuance of system and after all data (records) created by the system has been destroyed or 
transferred to a new operating environment. 
 
AVAILABILITY OF SYSTEM FOR OUTSIDE INSPECTION: 
 
This agency recognizes the fact that the judicial system may request pretrial discovery of computer 
programs and related materials.  Agency personnel will honor requests for outside inspection of the system 
and testing of data by opposing parties and the court.  It will also honor inspection and copy requests 
pursuant to Chapter 132 of the North Carolina General Statutes. 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

344



 North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources 

Division of Historical Resources 
Government Records Branch 

 
REQUEST FOR DISPOSAL OF ORIGINAL RECORDS DUPLICATED BY ELECTRONIC MEANS 

 
TO Assistant Records Administrator 
 N.C. Division of Historical Resources 
 Government Records Branch 
 4615 Mail Service Center 
 Raleigh, NC  27699-4615 
FROM Name  Margaret Pierce, Finance Director  
 Department/Agency  Watauga County Finance Department  
 Division  
 Section  
 Branch  
 Phone number  (828) 265-8007  
 
Use this form to request an amendment to your programs schedule from the Department of Cultural Resources to dispose of paper records you  
have scanned, entered into databases, or otherwise duplicated through digital imaging or other conversion to computer or digital environments.   
This form does not apply to records which have been microfilmed or photocopied. In addition, this form does not apply to records with a  
permanent retention or that are to be transferred to the State Archives. Records with a permanent retention or which will come to the State  
Archives must have a paper or microfilm copy. A completed copy of the “Electronic Records Production Control Self-Warranty” form must be  
attached.  It can be found in the North Carolina Guidelines for Managing Public Records Produced by Information Technology Systems. 
 

RECORDS TITLE DESCRIPTION INCLUSIVE 

DATES 
QUANTITY MICROFILMED? 

(YES OR NO) 
RETENTION PERIOD 

Accounts Receivable Records concerning receivables owed 
and collected. 

July 1, 2011 
To present 

5 Linear Feet 
Each Year 

No Destroy in office after 3 years 

Bids For Disposal 
Of Property 
 

Records concerning the disposal of 
surplus property.  May include various 
disposition procedures used, such as 
sealed bids and public auction. 

    July 1, 2011 
    To Present 

2 Linear Feet 
Each Year 

No Destroy in office all records after 
the disposition of property has 
been recorded in governing board’s 
minutes 

Cash Receipts Cash Receipts July 1, 2011 
To present 

2 Linear Feet 
Each Year 

No Destroy in office after  
3 years 

Deposits Deposits July 1, 2011 
To Present 

3 Linear Feet 
Each Year 

No a)Destroy in office official/audit 
copies after 3 years. 
 b)Destroy all remaining records 
in office after 4 years. 

Time Sheets, Cards, 
& Attendance  
Records 

Records concerning the work hours 
and attendance of employees. 

July 1, 2011 
To present 

5 Linear Feet 
Each Year 

No a)Destroy in office 30 years from 
date of separation records used 
for retirement or similar benefits 
verification.  
b)Destroy all remaining records 
in office after 4 years. 

Travel 
Reimbursements 

Includes authorizations and requests 
for reimbursement for travel and 
related expenses. 

July 1, 2011 
To Present 

2 Linear Feet 
Each Year 

No Destroy in office after 3 years 

 
 
 
Requested by:  ,  ,   
 Signature Title Date 
 
 
Approved by:  ,  ,   
 Signature Agency Unit or Branch Manager Date 
 
 
Concurred by:  ,  ,   
(except as indicated) Signature Assistant Records Administrator Date 

011712 BCC Meeting

345

http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/sections/archives/rec/e_records/swfintro.htm
http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/sections/archives/rec/e_records/managerec.htm


 North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources 

Division of Historical Resources 
Government Records Branch 

 
REQUEST FOR DISPOSAL OF ORIGINAL RECORDS DUPLICATED BY ELECTRONIC MEANS 

 
TO Assistant Records Administrator 
 N.C. Division of Historical Resources 
 Government Records Branch 
 4615 Mail Service Center 
 Raleigh, NC  27699-4615 
FROM Name  Margaret Pierce, Finance Director  
 Department/Agency  Watauga County Finance Department  
 Division  
 Section  
 Branch  
 Phone number  (828) 265-8007  
 
Use this form to request an amendment to your programs schedule from the Department of Cultural Resources to dispose of paper records you  
have scanned, entered into databases, or otherwise duplicated through digital imaging or other conversion to computer or digital environments.   
This form does not apply to records which have been microfilmed or photocopied. In addition, this form does not apply to records with a  
permanent retention or that are to be transferred to the State Archives. Records with a permanent retention or which will come to the State  
Archives must have a paper or microfilm copy. A completed copy of the “Electronic Records Production Control Self-Warranty” form must be  
attached.  It can be found in the North Carolina Guidelines for Managing Public Records Produced by Information Technology Systems. 
 
 

RECORDS TITLE DESCRIPTION INCLUSIVE 

DATES 
QUANTITY MICROFILMED? 

(YES OR NO) 
RETENTION PERIOD 

Daily Journal and 
Ledger Entry Update 
Printouts 

Printouts and documentation of daily 
journal and ledger entries. 

July 1, 2011 
To present 

2 Linear Feet 
Each Year 

No Destroy in office after 1 year. 

Financial Journals and 
Ledgers 

Financial journals and ledgers.     July 1, 2011 
    To Present 

2 Linear Feet 
Each Year 

No a)Destroy in office after 3 years, 
year-end summaries of receipts 
and disbursements. 
b)Destroy in office after 1 year 
daily, monthly or quarterly 
transaction detail journals and 
ledgers. 

Vendor File Records concerning specific vendors.  
May include accounts payable activity, 
federal tax identification number, 
name & address, correspondence and 
related records. 

July 1, 2011 
To present 

2 Linear Feet 
Each Year 

No Destroy in office when 
administrative value ends. 

 
 
 
 
Requested by:  ,  ,   
 Signature Title Date 
 
 
Approved by:  ,  ,   
 Signature Agency Unit or Branch Manager Date 
 
 
Concurred by:  ,  ,   
(except as indicated) Signature Assistant Records Administrator Date 

011712 BCC Meeting

346

http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/sections/archives/rec/e_records/swfintro.htm
http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/sections/archives/rec/e_records/managerec.htm
http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/sections/archives/rec/e_records/managerec.htm


 North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources 

Division of Historical Resources 
Government Records Branch 

 
REQUEST FOR DISPOSAL OF ORIGINAL RECORDS DUPLICATED BY ELECTRONIC MEANS 

 
TO Assistant Records Administrator 
 N.C. Division of Historical Resources 
 Government Records Branch 
 4615 Mail Service Center 
 Raleigh, NC  27699-4615 
FROM Name  Jim Atkinson  
 Department/Agency  Watauga County Department of Social Services  
 Division  
 Section  
 Branch  
 Phone number  (828) 265-8100  
 
Use this form to request an amendment to your programs schedule from the Department of Cultural Resources to dispose of paper records you  
have scanned, entered into databases, or otherwise duplicated through digital imaging or other conversion to computer or digital environments.   
This form does not apply to records which have been microfilmed or photocopied. In addition, this form does not apply to records with a  
permanent retention or that are to be transferred to the State Archives. Records with a permanent retention or which will come to the State  
Archives must have a paper or microfilm copy. A completed copy of the “Electronic Records Production Control Self-Warranty” form must be  
attached.  It can be found in the North Carolina Guidelines for Managing Public Records Produced by Information Technology Systems. 
 

RECORDS TITLE DESCRIPTION INCLUSIVE 

DATES 
QUANTITY MICROFILMED? 

(YES OR NO) 
RETENTION PERIOD 

Standard 6 - Program 
Operational Records:  
Adult and Family 
Services (Items 1-24) 

Records related to services for elderly 
and disabled adults, child care subsidy, 
family preservation, guardianship registry 
& case records, information and referral, 
medical transportation, and special 
assistance for adults.   
*Note: This does not include a list of 
terminated guardianships maintained as a 
permanent record. 

July 1, 2011 
To present 

20 Linear Feet 
Each Year 

No Records are retained as defined 
in the retention schedule 
approved by DHHS and only 
after being notified by DHHS 
that specific records are released 
from all audits, reports, or other 
official actions. *There are no 
permanent records included in 
the items listed for this standard. 

Standard-8. Program 
Operational Records: 
Childrens Services  
(Items 1 & 3-8) 

Records related to adoption assistant 
case files, adoption clearing house 
records, child fatality prevention 
records, child protective services case 
files, child support enforcement case 
management records, foster care case 
management records and foster home 
facility & licensure records. 

    July 1, 2011 
    To Present 

20 Linear Feet 
Each Year 

No Records are retained as defined in 
the retention schedule approved 
by DHHS and only after being 
notified by DHHS that specific 
records are released from all 
audits, reports, or other official 
actions.  *There are no permanent 
records included in the items listed 
for this standard. 

Standard 9-. 
Program 
Operational 
Records: Economic 
Assistance Services 
(Items 1-9) 

Records related to emergency 
assistance case management, food 
assistance case management, first stop 
employment assistance case 
management, low income energy 
assistance case management, medicaid: 
adult case management, medicaid: 
family and children case management, 
refugee assistance services, special 
assistance services and work first 
assistance case management. 

July 1, 2011 
To present 

100 Linear 
Feet 

Each Year 

No Records are retained as defined in 
the retention schedule approved 
by DHHS and only after being 
notified by DHHS that specific 
records are released from all 
audits, reports, or other official 
actions.  *There are no permanent 
records included in the items listed 
for this standard. 

 
Requested by:  ,  ,   
 Signature Title Date 
 
Approved by:  ,  ,   
 Signature Title Date 
 
Concurred by:  ,  ,   
(except as indicated) Signature Assistant Records Administrator Date 

011712 BCC Meeting

347

http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/sections/archives/rec/e_records/swfintro.htm
http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/sections/archives/rec/e_records/managerec.htm


011712 BCC Meeting

348



011712 BCC Meeting

349



Reproduce this form as needed.

North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources
Division of Historical Resources

Government Records Branch

SSelf-Warranty: Electronic Records 
 

Identification of Originating Government Office and Specified Records  

Type of Government Office:       County  ( )            Municipal  ( )           State Agency  ( )           *Other  ( )  

For Other, enter name of "parent" agency unless unassigned_____________________________________________________ 

*Other includes assigned and unassigned offices (authorities, boards, bureaus, commissions, councils etc.)  

County/Agency: __________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name of Office: __________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address: ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Telephone: (___)____________  Fax: (___)____________  E-mail address:  __________________________________________ 

______I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the records created or duplicated by electronic means in the 
aforementioned office are prepared in accordance with the suggested guidelines as indicated by the following statements. 

Quality - Records are legible, accurate, and complete.  

The records are produced or reproduced as part of a regularly conducted activity.  

Detailed, documented procedures are in place and followed when the records are created, copied, modified, or duplicated.  

The person(s) who creates, copies, modifies, or duplicates the records receives formal training on detailed system procedures 
prior to records preparation.  

o Details of the training received are adequately documented through written policies and procedures.  

o Training records are signed by employee after receiving training. 

Audit trails document the individual(s) who creates, duplicates, modifies, or otherwise prepares the records, what they do in the 
process, when they do it, and describe the results.  

Audits –  

o are performed periodically to confirm that the process or system produces accurate results. 

o confirm that procedures actually followed are in accordance with procedure stated in the procedure's documentation.  

o are preformed routinely on documents to ensure no information has been lost.  

o performed by an independent source (i.e., persons other than those who create the records or persons without an 
interest in the content of the records. Acceptable source may include different department or authorized auditing 
authority). 

o are adequately documented.  

The process or system hardware and software are adequately documented. 

Back up procedures are in place and comply with best practices, as established by the Department of Cultural Resources. 

Successful disaster recovery back up is completed at least once every two years. 

 
______Furthermore, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that this agency will comply with the best practices and 
standards established by the Department of Cultural Resources as published on its website. 
 
______I certify that this agency has an established Electronic Records/Imaging Policy. 
 
______Local Government Agencies: I certify that this agency will complete a “Request for Disposal of Original Records 
Duplicated by Electronic Means” for each new records series converted from paper to electronic record. 

______State Government Agencies: I certify that this agency will contact the Government Records Branch to amend the 
agency schedule to comply with the best practices and standards established by the Department of Cultural Resources. 

Signature of Official: ______________________________  Title of Official: ___________________________________________ 

Name of Official: _____________________________________________________________  Date: _______________________ 

Watauga County

All Watauga County Departments
814 West King Street, Rm. 216 Boone, NC 28607

8282658007 8282658006 tammy.adams@watgov.org

011712 BCC Meeting

350



AGENDA ITEM 14: 

UPDATE ON CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Per Commissioner request, time has been set aside for discussion on consolidated dispatch.  
Attached is a job description for an Emergency Services Director and data collected from ASU, 
Town of Boone, and Town of Blowing Rock in reference to consolidated dispatch.    
  

011712 BCC Meeting

351



Job Title
(See Attached Chart) 2011      

To Date

2010 2009 2008

$537,147.00 Telecommunicator I 30,602 - 47,433 1 FTE Admin. Admin. Admin. Admin.
Telecommunicator II 31,979 - 49,568 6 FTE 54,891 79,311 85,445 89,994
Telecommunicator Supervisor 33,418 - 51,798 2 FTE 911 911 911 911
Chief Telecommunicator 34,923 - 54,131 1 FTE 11,877 12,641 13,192 13,149

CAD CAD CAD CAD
Total Communications Salary $353,785 10 FTE 24,478 27,643 28,396 25,453

$480,049.00 Telecommunicator 29,719 - 44,579 6 FTE, 1 PTE Admin. Admin. Admin. Admin.
Sr. Telecommunicator 31,205 - 46,808 46,644 60,521 69,080 70,636
Communications/Records Sup. 39,827 - 59,740 1 FTE 911 911 911 911
Administrative Support/Records 29,719 - 44,579 1 FTE 7,293 7,655 7,918 8,088

CAD CAD CAD CAD
Total Communications Salary $251,055 8 FTE, 1 PTE 20,366 23,099 23,860 20,393
Telecommunicator I 24,370 - 33,640 1 FTE, 1 PTE Admin. Admin. Admin. Admin.
Police Communications Asst. Dir. 25,590 - 35,320 1 FTE 1,693 2,246 2,063 1,736
Police Communications Director 26,870 - 37,085 1 FTE 911 911 911 911

131 234 281 333
CAD CAD CAD CAD

Total Communications Salary $121,550 3 FTE, 1 PTE 10591 8262 11112 9085
Public Safety Telecommunicators 28,100 - 32,179 5 FTE
Pulbic Safety Supervisor 35,000 1 FTE
Total Communications Salary $185,627 6 FTE

Note* ASU Police Department is not interested in consolidated dispatch.  ASU is not a 911 call center.  The ASU call center is responsible for dispactch of campus police, and they also dispatch numerous 
administrative type services and other university functions; which must be routed through the ASU dispatch center no matter how their police calls are dispatched.      For this reason ASU must have a 
dispatcher on campus 24/7 and would not participate in a consolidated Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP).

BUDGETARY INFORMATION FOR CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH IN WATAUGA COUNTY
TOTAL BUDGET FY 

11-12
BUILDING 

COSTS
SALARY RANGE Number of 

Positions
STAFFING LEVELS TOTAL NUMBER OF CALLS /                  CAD 

ENTRIES

Note* Due to their geographic location the Town of Beech Mountain would not participate in a consolidated Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP). 

WATAUGA COUNTY

TOWN OF BOONE

ASU

Two dispatchers work 
duirng the busiest 
times of day and one at 
all other times.

Mon-Fri, 3 to 4 
telecommunicators work 
during busiest times and 2 
telecommunicators during 
slower times.  Sat. and Sun 2 
telecommunicators all day.

$306,518 - Special 
Revenue Funds, only 
received by Watauga 
County and Town of 

Boone

One dispatcher is on 
duty at all times.

8am-12am (2) 
telecommunicators, 12am-
7am (1) 
telecommunicator.

TOWN OF BLOWING ROCK

Number of Calls for Service

44,967 47,644 48,498 47,097

$14,708.50

$8,696.00

$10,141.00

N/A N/A

$261,636.00 

$131,717 - Special 
Revenue Funds, only 
received by Watauga 
County and Town of 

Boone

011712 BCC Meeting

352



EMERGENCY SERVICES DIRECTOR  - 6100 
 
GENERAL DEFINITION AND CONDITIONS OF WORK: 
Performs complex professional and difficult administrative work planning, organizing and 
directing specified emergency activities of the county; does related work as required.  Work is 
performed under general supervision.  Supervision is exercised over all department personnel. 
 
This is light work requiring the exertion of up to 20 pounds of force occasionally and/or up to 10 
pounds of force frequently and/or a negligible amount of force constantly to move objects; work 
requires reaching, fingering, and repetitive motions; vocal communication is required for 
expressing or exchanging ideas by means of the spoken word, and conveying detailed or important 
instructions to others accurately, loudly, or quickly; hearing is required to perceive information at 
normal spoken word levels, and to receive detailed information through oral communications 
and/or to make fine distinctions in sound; visual acuity is required for preparing and analyzing 
written or computer data, operation of machines, determining the accuracy and thoroughness of 
work, and observing general surroundings and activities; the worker is not subject to adverse 
environmental conditions. 
 
ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS/TYPICAL TASKS: 
Planning, directing, coordinating and supervising Office of Emergency Management/Fire 
Marshal and County 911 Communications Center; ensuring compliance with all local, state, 
and federal laws and requirements; providing technical assistance to emergency service 
agencies; directs emergency services during emergencies; maintaining appropriate records 
and files; preparing reports. 
Supervises and directs the operations of the Fire Marshal/Emergency Management office. 
Oversees the maintenance and updates to the county emergency operations plan; 
Meets with state and local officials and others to stay informed on new techniques, equipment and 
communication systems; 
Supervises and directs the operation of the 911 Communications Center; 
Supervises shifts of telecommunicators who handle communications and dispatching calls for law 
enforcement, emergency medical, rescue and fire services; plans and assigns work; hires, trains, 
and provides performance coaching and evaluation for department staff; develops work schedules; 
assures communications center is always staffed. 
Develops and administers department budget including general fund and emergency telephone 
surcharge fund appropriations; procures equipment and supplies; researches, plans, and coordinates 
with telephone companies and vendors upgrades in equipment such as 911 system, computer aided 
dispatch, radio, and other electronic systems; coordinates and participates in installation, 
maintenance and repair of equipment. 
Creates, maintains, and oversees the design of the Watauga County Emergency Communications 
Standard Operating Guidelines, the Emergency Medical Dispatch (EMD) Guidelines, Emergency 
Fire Dispatch, Computer Aided Dispatch System (CAD), Procedures Manual, tracks statistical 
information, and evaluates service delivery. 
Responds to complaints, questions, and information about the services. 
Assures the maintenance and completion of records, reports, memos and other information 
required in this field. 
Serves as a member of various professional committees in the County and region, attending and 
participating in meetings and other activities, as appropriate. 
Performs related tasks as required. 
 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES: 
Thorough knowledge of the DCI system, Emergency Medical Dispatch (EMD) program, 
Emergency Communications Standard Operating Guidelines; Emergency Fire Dispatch, thorough 

011712 BCC Meeting

353



knowledge of the local, federal and state laws and regulations regarding civil defense and 
emergency management; thorough knowledge of laws and procedures for fire investigations and 
fire code inspections; thorough knowledge of all facets of emergency services; thorough 
knowledge of a variety of electronic equipment including radios and telephone systems and their 
related computer hardware and software applications involved in 911, computer-aided dispatch,; 
considerable knowledge of  budgeting, purchasing, and personnel policies and procedures; ability 
to plan, organize, schedule, and direct the work of subordinate personnel including training, 
motivation, coaching, and evaluating work performance; ability to work with volunteers, volunteer 
organizations and related agencies; ability to write detailed reports; ability to develop and maintain 
effective working relationships with emergency personnel, law enforcement agencies, volunteers, 
County officials, staff and the general public. 
 
EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE: 
Any combination of education and experience equivalent to graduation from an accredited 
community college or university with major course work in public safety, public administration or 
related field and progressively responsible experience in emergency services.  
 
 
SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS: 
Requires valid NC Driver’s License.   

011712 BCC Meeting

354



AGENDA ITEM 15: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A.  Request to Donate Bleachers from Old High School 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A request has been made in reference to the bleachers located at the old high school.  It is staff’s 
understanding that Optimist is interested in using the bleachers at the baseball fields leased by 
the County. 
 
The property would need to be declared surplus and a resolution adopted to donate the property 
to Optimist.  Optimist would also have to be an incorporated nonprofit.  Staff would verify that 
the school system no longer had any use for the bleachers.   
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board.   
 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

355



Blank Page 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

356



AGENDA ITEM 15: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B.  Boards & Commissions 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The term of Watauga County Recreation Commission member, Mr. Denny Norris, representing 
the Green Valley Elementary School district, expired December 31, 2011.  Green Valley 
Principal, Phillip Griffin, has recommended the reappointment of Mr. Denny Norris. 
 
Two terms on the Watauga County Tourism Development Authority (TDA) are set to expire at 
the end of February 2012.  The TDA requests that Mr. Rob Holton and Mr. Mike Hall each be 
reappointed to three-year terms.  Both Mr. Holton and Mr. Hall are willing to continue to serve if 
so appointed. 
 
Also, per TDA Bylaws, the TDA Chairman is due for appointment by the Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
The term of Watauga County Nursing Home Community Advisory Committee (NHCAC) 
member, Mr. Fred Badders, will expire January 24, 2012.  High Country Council of 
Governments’ Ombudsman, Ms. Julie Wiggins, has nominated Mr. Badders for reappointment.  
Mr. Badders is willing to continue to serve is so appointed. 
 
The above are first readings and, therefore, no action is required at this time. 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

357



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Phillip Griffin <griffinp@watauga.k12.nc.us>
Sent: Tuesday, January 10, 2012 8:31 AM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: GV Recreation Rep.

Anita, 
 
I would like to recommend that Denny Norris continue serving as the Green Valley Rep on the Recreation 
Commission. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Phillip Griffin 
Principal, Green Valley Elementary School 
 
--  
Phillip Griffin 

011712 BCC Meeting

358



011712 BCC Meeting

359



011712 BCC Meeting

360



011712 BCC Meeting

361



011712 BCC Meeting

362



011712 BCC Meeting

363



AGENDA ITEM 15: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C.  Announcements 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners will hold a seminar, at the UNC 
School of Government’s Knapp-Sanders Building, on January 20, 2012, entitled “Leading Your 
County Governing Board.”  If interested in attending, please notify Anita who will help with 
registration and reservations. 
 
 
Proposed dates for the Annual Pre-Budget Retreat are February 24 & 25, 2012, or March 2 & 3, 
2012, with times proposed as 12–6 P.M. on Friday and 9 A.M.–12 P.M. on Saturday.  Direction 
from the Board is requested to set the date of the Retreat. 
 
 
The 2012 Watauga County Economic Development Summit is scheduled for Wednesday, March 
7, 2012, from 1:00–5:00 P.M. at the Blowing Rock Art and History Museum in Downtown 
Blowing Rock. 
  

011712 BCC Meeting

364



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Deron.Geouque
Sent: Tuesday, January 03, 2012 8:31 AM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: FW: Registration open for Leading Your County Governing Board: Jan. 20 at the School of 

Government

1-17-2012 announcements 
 
 
Deron Geouque 
Watauga County Manager 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 
(P) 828-265-8000 
(F) 828-264-3230 
Email Deron.Geouque@watgov.org 
 
From: David Thompson [mailto:david.thompson@ncacc.org]  
Sent: Friday, December 30, 2011 10:07 AM 
To: Deron.Geouque 
Subject: Registration open for Leading Your County Governing Board: Jan. 20 at the School of Government 
 
TO:                         Board Chairs and Vice Chairs 
                                County Managers 
                                Clerks to the Boards 
                                County Attorneys 
 
CC:                         NCACC Board of Directors 
 
FROM:                  David F. Thompson, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT:             Special Training Event:  “Leading Your County Governing Board” 
 
Dear county friends: 
 
Historically,  the NCACC has offered  training  for newly appointed Board Chairmen every other  year as a part of our biennial
Legislative Goals Conference.  In recent weeks, since the first Monday  in December, your staff here at the NCACC, and various
faculty members  at  the UNC  School  of Government  in  Chapel Hill,  have  received  a  significant  number  of  requests  for  this
training.   
 
In the interest of meeting this identified need as quickly as possible, Deputy Director Patrice Roesler and General Counsel Sharon 
Scudder have worked with School of Government faculty to jointly develop a special one‐day seminar to be held on January 20 
addressing  the  roles and  responsibilities of  the Board  leader,  the  relationship of  the Chairman  to other board members and
other officials, legal and procedural requirements that Chairmen should be aware of, and other issues that might be helpful.  The 
seminar will be held at  the Knapp‐Sanders Building – home of  the School of Government – at UNC‐Chapel Hill. A preliminary 
agenda and registration form are available at www.ncacc.org/leadingyourboard.html. 
 
While  this  program  has  been  developed  quickly,  it  is  very  thoughtfully  designed  to  help  our  newly  installed  Board  leaders
become sufficiently informed about their new roles to allow them to operate judiciously and comfortably in the public setting. I 
hope you will take advantage of this opportunity to strengthen your leadership skills. Commissioners who attend will receive six
credits toward recognition through the Local Elected Leaders Academy (LELA) recognition program. 

011712 BCC Meeting

365



2

 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please do not hesitate to contact Patrice Roesler at (919) 715‐2893 or 
patrice.roesler@ncacc.org.  
 
Thank you for all you do on behalf of county government.  
  

011712 BCC Meeting

366



 

 
 
 
 
 

SAVE THE DATE!!!! 
 
 

2012 Watauga County Economic Development Summit 
Blowing Rock Art and History Museum 

Downtown Blowing Rock 
March 7, 2012 

 
1:00 PM – 5:00 PM 

 
 

Agenda: 
 

Overview of the Watauga Economy 
Presentation of EDC’s Targeted Marketing Analysis 

Significant Drivers of Economic Growth 
Challenges and Opportunities Facing Local Organizations 

Where to Focus Economic Development Efforts 
Areas and Opportunities for Increased Cooperation 

 
Sponsored By 

 
BREMCO 

New River Light & Power 
Advantage West 

 
 

Plenty of Parking on Site 
 

Snow Date: March 21, 2012 
 

For additional information contact: 
 

 Watauga County Economic Development Office  
 

828-264-3082 
 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

367



Blank Page 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

368



AGENDA ITEM 16: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Time has been reserved to allow citizen comment to address the Board for any area of interest or 
concern. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 17: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 18: 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 
 
 
 

011712 BCC Meeting

369


	Approval of the Minutes
	Approval of the January 17, 2012, Agenda
	Sheriff’s Office Vehicle Bid Award Request
	USDA’s Proposed Lease Request for the Location of the Watauga/ Avery County Service Center
	Presentation of W.A.M.Y. Community Actions, Inc.’s, 2012-2013 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Application
	Green Valley Community Park Request
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on the North Carolina Department of Transportation’s Secondary Road Improvements Program for FY 2012
	Tourism Development Authority Matters
	Tourism Development Authority Matters
	Tourism Development Authority Matters
	Landfill Gas to Energy Project Matters
	Landfill Gas to Energy Project Matters
	Landfill Gas to Energy Project Matters
	Proposed Gated Community Ordinance
	Tax Matters
	Tax Matters
	Finance Matters
	Finance Matters
	Update on Consolidated Dispatch
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session
	122011 MINUTES.pdf
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of Agenda
	Presentation of Fiscal Year 2011 Audit
	Proposed American Red Cross Shelter Agreement
	Planning and Inspections Matters
	Budget Amendments
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	Public Comment
	Closed Session
	Action After Closed Session
	Adjourn

	WAMY csbg2012_13_funding_application1.pdf
	SECTION III.  GOAL AND STRATEGY      
	SECTION III.  GOAL AND STRATEGY         
	SECTION III.  GOAL AND STRATEGY      
	SECTION III.  GOAL AND STRATEGY      
	Low-Income Community:  Through their representatives on the Board of Directors, low-income persons participate in the assessment and evaluation of agency programs at the Board level.  Community needs assessments are targeted towards low-income residen...
	Program Participants:  Participants in Total Family Development are invited to be active in the assessment and evaluation of the program by participating in intermittent focus groups and written evaluations to share their unique perspectives on  the ...
	Others:  Notification of the availability of the CSBG proposed application is made throughout the service area by the most widely read news media to solicit a wide range of community input.  W.A.M.Y.’s Community needs assessment was distributed widely...
	MONITORING, ASSESSMENT AND EVALUATION PLAN
	MONITORING, ASSESSMENT AND EVALUATION PLAN

	WAMY Copy of csbg2012_13_Funding_Application_Budget_Form225(1)(1).pdf
	Client Services Other

	03  02  WAMY Copy of csbg2012_13_Funding_Application_Budget_Form225(1)(1).pdf
	Client Services Other

	07  02  Consumer Requested Facilities Agreement 1-4-12  Draft 2.pdf
	Practice Statement Number: P-9-3-8
	STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
	Consumer requested Facilities Agreement
	Practice Statement Number: P-9-3-8

	COUNTY OF _CALDWELL___
	COUNTY OF __WATAUGA___
	Consumer Requested Facilities Agreement
	Agreement No. 005
	Blue Ridge Electric Membership Corporation
	BRE Labor/Benefits, Materials & Trans     $ 130,418.17
	TOTAL         $ 130,418.17
	I. PURPOSE:

	IV. PRACTICE
	Definitions


	V. RESPONSIBILITY

	10  02  01  cover for scanning policy for county wide.pdf
	814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006

	10  02  Scanning - Imaging Policy county wide.pdf
	Procedures:
	Training:
	Retention:

	11  02  Budget.pdf
	Communications Budget Info.

	AGENDA 011712.pdf
	WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
	COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM




